IN THE FEDERAL COURT OF AUSTRALIA
DISTRICT REGISTRY

No. V621 of 2005

IN THE MATTER OF ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED
(ACN 004 209 410) & ORS (in accordance with the
Schedule attached) (All Subject to a Deed of
Company Arrangement)

and

MARK ANTHONY KORDA and MARK FRANCIS
XAVIER MENTHA {as Deed Administrators of the
Companies)

CERTIFICATE IDENTIFYING EXHIBIT

This is the exhibit marked "MAK-23" produced and shown to MARK ANTHONY

KORDA at the time of swearing his affidavit dated 12 September 2005.

Before me: %f

LEVEL 21, &7
MELBOURME SOgDA CURAENT
 NATURAL PERSON WHO 1_ CURiE T
fP;ACTITiONER WITHIN THE M_f-:_AN]NG Oi
THE LEGAL PRAGTICE ACT 1965

Exhibit "MAK-23"
Numbered bundle of documents relating to
Head Office Proceeds matters
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) WINUTES OF FIRST MEETING OF DIRECTORS OF TRE COMPANY

HELD AT 489 SWANSTON STREET, MELBOURNE, ON THE 207H

DAY OF SREPIEMBER 1978 AT 3.00 O*CLOCK IN THE
AFTER NOON
.i
PRESENT : Mr. R.DL. Coopelr {Chairman}

Mr. F. Pascoe

DIRECTORS @ The Chairman advised that Ansett
pransport Industries Limited, the
nholder of the "A" ordinary Share
in the Company appointed Mr. Ralph
Leyton Cogper as pirector and that
Ansett Transport Industries
n {Operations} rroprietary Linited,
' - the holder of "B" ordinary Shares
; in the Company appointed Mr. Frank
pascoe as Director of the Company.
Measrs. R.L. Cooper and F. Pascoe
accepted office. Mr. R.L. Cooper
was appointed Chairman.

SECRETARY : IT WAS RESOLVED that Mr. Wiliis
Fregerick Franklin of 35 Karnak
noad, Ashburton be appointed
Sacretary of the Company.’

b

PUBLIC OFFICERS = IT WAS RESOLVED that Mr. Willis
Frederick Franklin be appointed
public Officer of the Company and
that Notice of such appointment
and registration papers {where
necesgsary) be forxwarded to the
appropriate authorities.

y RETURN OF The Secretary was instructed 1o
DIRECTORS complete the Return of Directors
ete. (Form 43) and arrange for
lodging of same with the

commissioner for Corporate Affairs.

REGISTERED OFFICE : IT WAS RESOLVED that the regigtered
5TFide of the Company be changed
from 489 Swanston Street, Melbourne
to 4th Floor, 350 La Trobe Street,
melbourne and that it be open and
accessible to the public between
10.00 a.m. and 4.00 p.m. of each day,
Saturdays, Sundays and rpublic
holidays excluded. The Chairman
advised that Notice of Situation of
registered Office (Form 37) was
lodged with the Comnissioner for
corporate Affairs.




BOORE AND
REGISTERS :

BANK
QPERATIONS

ISSUE OF SHARES
TO SUBSCRIBERS +
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The Chalyman reported that
he had procured a Seal for
the company, which was
produced and an impression
thereof was made in the
margin ¢of this page in the
Minute Book.

IT WAS RESGOLVED that this
Saal be adeopted as the
Ccommon Seal of the Company.

The Secretary was instructsd to cbtain
all the necessary books and registers
and arrange for the management of the
game and of the accounts of the
Company .

IT WAS RESOLVED :

1. That an acgount in the name of
the Company be opened with the
Australia and New Zealand Banking
Group Limited of 388 Collins
Street, Melbourne.

2. That all cheques, drafts,
promissory notes, bills and other
negotiable instruments must be
signed by two Directors and all
cheques and other negotiable
ingtruments received be paid into
the said account to the credit
of the Company with the said
Bank for such purposes endorsed
by any one birsctor or the
Secretary.

3. That a copy of this resolution
together with Bpecimen Bignatures
of those authorised to sign or
endorse cheques and other
nagotiable instruments for or on
wehalf of the Company be forwarded
to the Bankerxs. '

1T WAS RESOLVED that the signatories
to the Memorandum of Association of
the Company be registered as members
in respect of the shares for which
they subgcribed (payment be made in
cash in full at par}! namely, Ansett
Transport Industries Limited omne ¥ A
Ordinary Share of $1.00 and Ansett
Transport Industries {Operations}
Proprietary Limited three "B"
ordinary Shares of $1.00 and that
certificates be issued in respect

of the subscribers’ shares under the
Seal of the Company. The Secretary
wag instructed to make all necessary
entries in the Register of Members
and to complete the Return of
allotment of Shares (Form 17) and to
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arrange for lodging of same with
the Commizsioner for Corporate Affairs.

QUORIM OF 1T WAS RESOLVED that the gquorum of

DiRECIURS : Pirectors shall be two Directors one
appointed by the "A" Ovdinary
shareholders and one by the "BY
Ordinaty shaveholdexs personslly ox
by duly appointed representatives
present.

PURCHAEE OF 1T WAS RESOLVED that the Company shall
LAND ¢ enter into s Contract of Sale of Land
for the purchase of the whole of the
land comprised in Rlan of Consalidation
No. CP 106685 being the land woras
particutarly described in Certificates
of Title Volume 7432 Folio 347, Volume
8561 Folio 904, Volume 4305 Follo B42
Lo and Volume 8561 Folio 902 for the cum
of ONE MILLION FOUR HUNDRED AND
. SEVENTEEN THOUSAND SEVER HUNDRED AND
SBVENTY DOLLARS (§1,417,770.00) and
that a Director of tha Company be
authorised to sign the Contxact on
babalf of the Company.

IT WAS FURTHER RESQLVED to affix the
Common Seal of the Company to a Transfer
of Land as transferee from Angett
Tranaport Industrien Linmited in vespect
of this land purchase.

LOAN 17 WAS RESOLVED that the Company should
bortow the sum. of ONE MILLION FOUR
HUNDRED AMND SEVENTEEN THOUSAND SEVEN
HIRDRED AND SEVENTY DOLLABS
($1,417,770.00) on the terwms of the
loan Agveemsnt annexed hereto and that
a Dirvactor of the Company be authorized
to sign the Loan Agreement on behalf
of the Company.

% AUDITORS : 1T _WAS RESOLVED that Yarwood Vane & Co,
of 461 Bourke Street, Melbourne be appointed
auditors of tha Company.

Confirmed @

wemasrsnaraadsnad s vaarpaRTaNal
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501 SWANSTON STREET PROPRIETARY LIMITED

MINUTES OF MEETING OF DIRECTORS HELD AT

439 SWANSTON STREET, MELBCURNE, ON THE
* 28th DAY OF  JUNE, 1979 AT TWO O'GLOGK -IN:THE AFTERNOON

PRESENT: E.L. Coocper Chairman
F. Pascos Director
C.¥W. Baird - Acling Secretery

IT WAS RESOLYED that the Company sgree to act
as Trustee over the property Anastt Centre,
Melbourne on behalf of the benefieclsl owners of
Angett Centre, namely Ansett Transport Industries
. Limited as to 25% and Ansett Transport Industries
(Operations) Pty. Ltd. {in itg capacity as
Trugtee administering the Ansett Transport
Industries Limited Superanruation Plans) as to

75%s
IT WAS ALSO RESOLVED that the Company execute

The Unit Trugt Deed cresting the Trust.

IT WAS FURTHER RESOLVED that an issue of 100

| fully pald $1.00 Units in the Trust be ispued

‘ ; in accordance with the two applications for
% Units ag raceived, nemely:

25 fully paid $1.00 Units to Ansebt
Trangport Industries Lid,

75 fully paid $1,00 Units to Ansett
Traneport Industries (Operations) Pty. Ltd.

IT WAS FURTHER RESOLVED that for the purpose of this
neeting, Mr, C.W. 3sird be appointed Acting Secratary.

Confirmed :

ITESSNEEREERRE ) R B0 )

Chairman
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501 SWANSTON STREET PROPRIETARY LIMITED

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS OF DIRECTORS

BULLBING RESOLVED that the Common Seal of the Gompany be affixed
CONTRACT: to a Building Contract with Clvil and Civie Fty, Ltd.,

the Builder, to construct a new twepty stotey office
building comprising basement fox parking, plant and
sarvices, ground floor foyer, seventeen office floors,

and lower and upper plant rooms situvated at 501-511
Swancton Street, Malbourne, Victoria at a cost of
$15,331,000 or such other sum ag schall become payable at
the times and in the manner specified in the conditions of
the said Contract Agreement.

SUPFLEMENTARY RESOLVED that the Common Seal of the Company be affixed
AGREEMENT ; to a Supplementary Agreement between the Proprietor

{Ansett Transport Industries Limited) and the Builder
(Civii and Civic Pty. Ltd.} that ss from the date hereof
the expresaion "the Proprietor” wherever used in the
Contract Documents for the construction of the Ansett

_ Centra, Melbourne shall mean 501 Swanston Styeet Proprietary
Limited in substitution for Ansett Transport Kkndustriaes
Limited and 501 Swanston Street Proprietary Limited shall
hereipafiter accupt all the rights and obligations of the
Proprietor under the said Contract Documents but that
otherwise the rights and obligations of the parties shall
rewain unaltered.

MANAGEMENT RESOLVED that the Common Seal of the Company be affixed

AGRE t to a Management Agreement appointing Civil and Civie Pty, Lid.

of 437 St. Kilda Road, Melbourne g6 Maneger to manage the
planning design conatruction and completion of the Ansett
Centre, Melbourne at a Management Fee of 6% of the Building
Contract Sum adjusted for required changes in the project
and subject to rise and fall provisions oot exceeding
350;0009
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DATED this 3rd day of August. 1979.
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501 SWANSTON STREET PROPRIETARY LIMITED

SPECTIAL RESOLUTION OF DIRECTORS

RESOLVED that the Company in its capacity as Trustee of the
Unit Trust Deed involving the Ansett Centre Building borrow
the sum of $6,000,000 (Six million dollars) from Ansett
Transport Industries Limited and the sum of $12,313,982

8 (Twelve million three hundred and thirteen thousand nine
hundred and eighty-two dollars) from Ansett Transport
Industries {(Operations} Pty. Ltd. Both Loans to be repayable

on demand.

v il b s

| - -

DATED this 6th day of April,198l1.
I
|
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501 SWANSTON STREET PROPRIETARY LIMITED

MINUTES OF MEETING OF DIRECTORS HELD AT
Fos

A.M. ON THE 7/ DAY OF Ak“fLA,«u,ﬁ?_

rd

(9L /
I8 AT

489 SWANSTON STREET, MELBOURNE

ﬁg,‘ Z~q delﬁ7é%£ﬁ?chairman
f=. S cop

PRESENT :

Director

-

TT WAS RESOLVED that the transfer of the
one (1) "A" Ordinary Share held by

ANSETT TRANSPORT IMDUSTRIES LIMITED to

the other shareholder in the Company,

ANSETT TRANSPORT INDUSTRIES (OPERATIONS)

PROPRIETARY LIMITED be approved.

Confirmed: h%M}§\J\vhkjkx_//\\h##ﬁ#ﬁh

Chairman
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COMPANIES ACT 1981

2 COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

_of-.'—

501 SWANSTON STREET PROPRIETARY LIMITED

TYE name of the Company is. 501 SWANSTON STREET

PROPRIETARY LIMITED

’

THE objects for which éhe Company is established
are -

1. (a) Te act as Trustee for unit holders with-
respact to a property to be acquired and developed
by the Company at 501 Swanston Street, Melbourne
in the State of Victoria which praperty SO
developed shall be managed and controlled by
Ansett Transport Industries Limited or its

nominee.

(b} To adopt and carry into effect (with or
without modification) an agreement to be entered
between the Company as such a Trustee of the one
part and Ansett Transport Industries Limited
of the other part whereby the said Ansett
Transport Industries Limited shall manage and
control the said properxty {upon the completion
of the building to be constructed thereon) a
copy whereof has for the puxposes of identificatioﬁ
been endorsed on the date hereof with the

gignatures of the subscribers hexeto.

{c) To act as trustee, nominee, custodian,

receiver, executor, administrator, manager,

director, consultant, brcker, agent, attorney,

60008




delegate and any other officeé or situations
of advice, management, representation, trust
or confidence and to perform and discharge the
duties and functions inéidental theretoe and
generally to carry on the businesses usuvally
carried on by nomiﬁee, holding, management,

investment or trustee company.

2. To contract, associéte, cd;oﬁerate with

or assist, any person or body corporate as, '
trustee or custodian trustee of, or be concerned
or interested in any other capacity with any

trust or other fund and to execute and enter into
any trust or other deed, instrument, guarantee

or declaration and to vary, amend or revoke the
same by deed, instrument, declaration or otherwise

orally or in writing.

3. To acquire and hold any shares, stock,
debentures, bonds, obligations, scrip, guarantees,
policies, annuities, securities or cther property
by original subscription, tender, purchase,
exchange or otherwise and to guarantee the
subscription thereof and to exercise and enforce
all rights and powers conferxed by or incidental
to the ownership or holding thereof and to sell

or otherwise dispose any or all of them.

4. Tﬁ acquire, hold, execute declarations
of trust in respect of, deal in and with, sell,
assign, exchange, éharge, mortgage and exercise
all or any of the rights and duties conferred
and imposed by the holding of, any real or

personal property or thing in action.

60009
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5. To manufacture, buy, sell, exchange,

export, import, hire, alter, repair or improve

and prepare for market or otherwise deal in or
with all kinds of goods, plant, machinery,
apparatus, substances, materials and things of

every kind and description.

6. To sell or érant annuities and charge
or encumber property or othér assé£siof the
Company in order to secure payments undex sucﬁ
annuities or otherwise éo enter into obligations ' :

in connection therewith. ‘ : !

_ ' T. . To acquire and undertake the whole or |
any part of the business, property and | .
liabilities of any pexrson ox companf carrying . : B,
on any business which the Company is authorised
fo carry on or posssss Or any property suitable ;

for the purposes of the Company. . . Lo

8. 7o purchase, take on lease or in , i
e exchange, hire and otherwise acquire any real
and personal property and'any rights or privileges

which the Ccmpany may think necessary ox

' convenient for the purposes of its business and
in particular any land, buildings, easements,

machinery, plant and stock in trade.

9. To employ experts to investigate and
examine the condition, prospects, value, character
and circumstances of any business concerns and

undertakings and generally of any assets property

or rights.




0. To acguire of absorb or to unite or
amalgamate with any other company, association
firm or individual for any purpdse which the
Company is authorised to carry on business and
by way of ccensideration for such acquisition,
absorptién or othérwise to make payments of
cash or enter into any agreement for periodical
payments of cash, secured or unsecured, or to
issue or transfer shares whélly ofipértly paid
up stocks, bonds, obligations, debentures, stéck
segrip or securities of any person, company .or
corporation and whether of the Company or
corporation with which amalgamation is effected

or not.

11, To undertake and execute any trusts and
undertakings whereof which may seem desirable to
the Company and either gratuitously oxr

otherwise.

12. To establiszh and regulate, whether in

or out of the State bf Victoria agencies for any
of the purposes of the'COmpany and tc establish
local boards to appoint attorneys to open branch
registeré and to do all acts and things of whatsoever
nature necessary to procure the Company to be
registered incorporated or legally recognised in
any place outside the State of Victoria and to
secure to the Company the same rights and
privileges outside the State of Victoria as are
possessed by local companies or partnerships of

a similar nature.
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13. To convert any éf the assets of the
Company from one type of investment to another and
for the purpose.of any such conversion to sell,
exchange or otherwise dispose of or deal with

any real or personal préperty or any rights

concessions privileges or assets.

14. To insure any director, émployee or
servant of the Company against risk of accident
in the course of his service to the Company and
to insure for the purpoée of holding indemnified
the Company in respect of ¢claims by reason
of any such risk or acqident and to pay premiums

on such insurances.

15. To issue to employees and servants of the
Company shares in the capital of the Company by
way of bonus or payment for sexvices rendered or
for such other consideration and upon and subject
to such terms and conditions as may be considered

fit and proper in the circumstances.

le6. Toc enter into any arrangement for the
payment of bonuses or for participation in the
profits of the Company or in any scheme or

profit sharing with employexs or other persons.

17. To appoint as and when considered
necessary upon such terms as appropriate any
person or corporation for the purposes of
carrying out and perfecting all or any of the
objects of the Company as set out in this
Memorandum of Association for the management and

conduct from time to time of the business of the

Company but so that SuCh_E9W¢£$m@9

not. exceed
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the powers of the Directors of the Company.

i8. 7o adopt such means of making known and
publicize the business and products of the

Company as may seem expedient.

1. To carry out all or any of the objects
of the Company and do all or any qﬁ.phe above
things in any part of the world and éither as
principal, agent, contractor or trustee or
otherwise and by or throﬁgh trustees or agents
or otherwise, and either alone or in conjuncﬁion'

with others.

20. To pay all costs and expenses of and
incidental to or in connection with the formation

of the Company.

21. To exercise and do all or any such of .
the ﬁowers ag are or may be conferred on or
implied in favour of a company having a share
capital under or by virtue of Section 19 of the
Companies Act 1961 in the same manner and to the
same extent as if the Third Schedule of the said
Act were herein set ocut and as if paragraphs 1

to 26 (both inclusive) of the said Third Schedule
ware herein respectively set ocut as and stated

to be separate objects of the Company.

22. To carry on any othexr business which may
seem to the Company capable of being conveniently
carried on in connection with its business and the

other objects of the Company o calculated

directly or indirectly to enhance the value of

60015




III.

or render profitable any of the property, assets,
business or rights of the Company for the time
baing.

AND IT IS HEREBY DECLARED that in the

interpretation ofuthis clause setting forth the
objects of the Company gnd in the interpretation
of the Third Schedule of the Companies Act 1961
and in the event of any ambiguity the meaning of
any of the Company's objects or powefs shall be
éonstrued in such a way/as to widen and not to.

restrict the objects or the powers of the Company

and shall not be restricted by reference to or

inference from any other object or power or

by reason of the juxtaposition of two or more
objects or powers it being the intentioﬁ that
the objects specified in each paragraph of this
clause and the powers in the Tﬁird Schedule of
the Companies Act 1961 shall be construed in the
most wide and liberal way and as independent
objects and powers (as the case may be) and
further that the word “"Company” in this
Memorandum when not'applied to this-Coméany
shall be deemed to include any partnership or
other body of persons whether incorporated or
to be incorporated and whether domiciled in the
dtate of Victoria or elsewhere and whether now

existing ¢ér hereafter to be formed.

THE Agreement referred to in sub-clause 1 (b).
of clause II of this Memorandum shall not be
nodified, varied, altered, cancelled, abrogated
or determined prior to its full term without the
written consent of all the shareholders in the

Company for the time being first had and obtained.




Iv.

vI.

uE liability of the members is limited.

THE share capital of the Company is TEN THOUSAND

DOLLARS ($10,000.00) divided into Ten Thousand
(10,000) shares of ONE DOLLAR ($1.00) each with
power to increase or re&uce the capital and td
divide the shares in the original ox increased
capital for the time being into ségefal or
different classes and to issue any part or parts
of the original capital or increased capital

for the time being with such deferred, gqualified,
guaranteed ox other special rights, privileges,
restrictions, limitations or conditions wifh
reference to preferential, guaranteed, fixed,
fluctuating, redeemable or other divided ox
interest or voting or return of capital orx
3istribution of assets or otherwisa howsoever

as shall from time to time be determined by the
Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association for the time being of the Company.
The rights for the time being attached to any
class or classes of shares may be varied or
abrogated subject to the requirement of the
Companies Act 1961 then ip force in the manner
provided for in the Articles of Association for

the time being of the Company.

THE full names and addresses and occupations

of the subscribers hereto and the number of the

shares in the capital of the Company they

00015
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respectively agree to take are:-
ANSETT TRAKSPORT INDUSTRIES LIMITED

489 Swanston Streeﬁ,
Melbourne. agQo.

One "A" Ordinaxy
Share

ANSETT TRANSPORT TNDUSTRIES
(ODBERATIONS) PROPRIGTARY LIMITED .

489 Swanston Street,
Melbourne. 390090,

Three "B" Ordinary
Shares

. WE the several persons whose.names and a@dreéses
are herein subscribed are de<irous of'being formed
into a Ccmpany in pursuancé of this Memorandum

..... 1 . ' of Association and we’respeétively agree to take
£he_numbe¥ of shares in the capital of the Company
- ;_‘ . set oul opposite to our respective naﬁes in the
' last éreceding parc".-.qraph.

September 1973

DATED this lst | day of

Numbér-of Shares
taken by each

Signature of Subscribers )
- N l' Subscribar

THE COMMOM SEAL of ANSETT ) One

. THENSPORT INDUSTRIES

I IMITED was hereunto

atfixed in the presence
of: | .
R.L. Cooper Director

W.F. Franklin Secretary

THE COMMON SEAL of ANSETT

3

TREANSPORT INDUSTRIES
[{CPERALLIONS) PRCZRIETARY
LIMITED was hereunto
zffixed in the presence
of:. '

R.L. Cooper

Director
F. Pascoe Director

W.F. Franklin Secretary

} "A" Qrdinary Share

)
)

)
) o
) _ Three
} "B" Ordinary Shares

)

)

Total: Four

WITNESS to the abave Seals:

B. Moss,
11/20 William Street
Frankstqn




COMPANIES ACT 1961

" A COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

- 0of -

501 SWANSTON STREET PROPRIETARY LIMITED

INTERPRETATION

In these Articles unless the context otherwise
requires :

vihe Act" means the Companies Act 1961. Co.
{as amended) ;

"5 Member" shall mean a member of the Company
in accordance with Sub-section 5 of Section
1¢ of the Act;

"the Register of Members" means the register
of members to be kept pursuant to the Act;
"+he Seal" means the Common Seal of the
Company for the time being;

"Secretary" means any person appointed to
perform the duties of a Secretary of the
Company; '

n1gtate" means the State of victoria;

Words importing the singular shall include
the plural and vice versa;

Words importing any gender shall include

the other genders;

Words importing persons shall include
individuals partnerships and bodies
corporate;

Expressions referring to writing shall be

construed as including reference to type-

writing, printing, lithography, photography




2nd other modes of representing or reproducing

words in a visible form;

wiords and expressions contained in these Articles
of Association shall be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of the Act and of the Act or
Ordinance (as the case may be) appertaining to
the interpretation of the Act as in foxrce in the
State at the date at which these Articles become
birnding on the Company.

The Regulations contained in Table "A" of the
Fourth Schedule to the ﬁct shall not apply to

the Company. v

" The registered office of the Compény shall be at

the place to be determined by the hirectors.

PROPRIETARY COMPANY

The Company by these Articles of Assocliation

restricts the right to transfer its shares in the

manner from time to time set out in these

Articles.

The Company by these Articles of'Association

jimits to not more than fifty the number of its
members {(counting joint holders of shares as one
person and not counting any person in ther
employment of the Company or its subsidiary or any
person who while previously in the emcloyment of
the Company or of its subsidiary was and thereafter
has continued to be a member of the Company) . |
The Company by these Articles of Association
prohibits any invitation to the public to subscribe
for any shares in, or debentures of the Company.
The Company by these Articles of Association

prohibits any invitation to the public to deposit

money with the Company for fixed periods or




payable at call whether bearing or not bearing

interest.

SHARES

(a) Subject to the provisions of the Act and
these Articles and without prejudice to any
special rights or restrictions (if any) attached
to any existing shares or class of shares at the
time concerned, shares in the Company may be
issued by the Directors witﬁ such preferred,
deferred or other special rights or subject to

i

restrictions whether in regard to dividend, woting,

- return of share capital, payment of calls or

otherwise as the Directors shall from time to
time determine.

(B) Subject to the provisions of the Act, any
prefexrence shares may be issued by the Directors
on the terms that they are, or at the option of
the Company, are liable to be redeemed in such
terms and in such manner as the Directors may
determine.

Subject to the provisions of the Act and these
Articles and without prejudice to any special
rights or restrictions (if any) previously
conferred on the holders of existing shares or
class of shares in the Company (including any
new shares created by any increase of the share
capital) shall be under the control of the
Directors who may classify the same, allot or
otherwise dispose cof the same to such persons,
upon such terms and conditions and at such times
as the Directors think fit and with full power
to give to any person the call of any shares

either at par or at a premium or discount and for

such time and for such consideration as the
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Directors think fit. .
10. The Company, pursuant to the Act, may at any
time pay a commission to any person for
subscribing or agreeing to subscribe whether

absolutely or conditionally for any shares in the

Company or procuring, or agreeing to procure

subscriptions, whether absolute or conditional
for, or underwriting, any shares in thé Company

but so that if the commission shall be paid or ' _%
payable out of capital the conditions and
requirements contained in the Act shall be

observed and complied with. The commission shall

‘ not exceed ten (10) per cent of that price at
which the shares in respect whereof the same is 2
paid are issued or any amount egual to £en'(10}
per cent of that price (as the case may be}. Such
commission may be paid or satisfied in cash or b?
the allotment of full or partly paid shares;
debentures or debenture stock of. the Company oT
otherwise. The Company may in addition to or in
lieu of such commission pay such brokerage as is
permitted by law.
1l. Every person whose name is entered as a member

in the Register of Members shall be entitled

‘ without payment to receive either one certificate
in respec£ of all the shares held by him or i
separate certificates in reasonable denominations
under the Share Seal (if any) or +he Seal. of the
Company in accordance with the Act in respect of
different parts of his holdings and specifying
the share or shares held by him and the amount
paid up thereon and may require the Company to

cancel any certificate or certificates for the

purpose of subscribing his holding in different




17.

13.

14,

15.
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manner PROVIDED THAT in respect of a share or

shares held . jointly by several persons the
Company shall not be bound to issue more than one
certificate and the delivery of a certificate for
a share to one of several joint holders shall be
sufficient delivefy to all such holders.

If_a share certificate, letter of allotment,
transfer, receipt or any other document of titlé
to shares or debentures is lost or déstroyed or
defaced a duplicate certificate oxr a document.in
lieu thereof may be issued on application in-
writing by the owner thereof upon the conditions’
set out in the Act applicable thereto on payment
of such fee (if any) and on such terms {(if any}
as to evidence and indemnity as the Diréctors may

think fit.

Save as otherwise herein provided the Company

shall be entitled to treat the registéred holder
of any share as the absolute owner thereof and_
accordingly shall not, except as ordered by a
Court of competent jurisdiction or as by law
required, be bound to recognise any equitable or
other claim to, or interest in, such share on the
part of any other persdn {even when.having notice
thereof).

No part of the funds of the Company shall directly
or indirectly be employed in the purchase of the
Company's shares, but nothing herein contained
shall prohibit transactions mentioned in

subsection 2 of Section 67 of the Act.

CALLS ON SHARES

The Directors may from time to time (subject

to the terms of the issue of any shares) make

calls upon the members in respect of any moneys
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unpaid on their shareé (whether 6n account of the
nominal value of the shares or by way of premium) .
A call shall be deemed to be made at the time when
the resolution of the Directors authorising such
call has been passed. Each member shall (subject
toc receliving at léast fourteen days' notice
specifying the time or £ime and place of payment)
pay to the Company at the times or time and place
se specified the amount called upéﬁ bn his shares.
A call may be made payable by instalments. A'

call may be revocked or ;ostponed as the Directors
may determine.

The joint holders of a share shéli'be, jointly and
severally, liable to pay all calls in respect
thereof. |

T a sum called in respect of a share is not paid
before or on the day appointed for payment thereof
the persons from whom the sum is due.shall pay
interest on the sum from the time appointed for the
payment thereof to the time of actual payment at a
rate not exceeding ten (1)) per cent per annuh as
the Directors may determine but the Directors shall
be at liberty to waive payment of that interest
whelly or in part.

Any sum which by the terms of issue of a share
becoﬁes payable on allotment or at any fixed date,
whether on account of the nominal value of the

share or by way of premium, shall for the purposes

of these Articles be deemed to be a call duly made

and payable on the date on which by the terms of
issue the same becomes payable, and in the case
of non-payment all the relevant provisions of these

Articles as to payment of interest and expenses,

forfeiture, or otherwise shall apply as if the sum
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during such time as any part of such call or

had become payable by virtue of a call duly made
and notified. | |
The provisions of these Articles as +o the
liability of joint holders and aslto payment of
interest or otherw;se shall apply in the case of
non-payment of anj sum which, by the texrms of

issue of a share, become payable at a fixed time,

whether on account of the nominal value of the
share, or by way or premium, as if the same had
become payable by virtue of a call duly made. and

notified. - i

The Directors may on the issue of shares make !
H

arrangements to differentiate between the holders
as to the amount of calls to be paid and the i
times of payment. - |
The Directors may, if they think fit, receive from .
any member willing to advance the same all or any

part of the moneys uncalled and unpaid upon any

shares held by him; and upon all or any part of

the ﬁoneys so advanced may {until the same would,

but for the advance, become presently payable) pay

interest at such rate {(not exceeding, without the .

sanction of the Company in general meeting, ten

(19) per cent per annum) éé may be agreed upon

between the member paying the sum in advance and

the Directors. _ i

FORFEITURE OF SHARES

If a member fails to pay any call or instalment
of a call on the time appeinted for payment

therecf, the Directors may, at any time thereafter

instalment remains unpaid, serve a notice on him

requiring payment of so much of the call or

instalment as is unpaid together with any interest

00025
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which may have accrued and all expenses-that may
have been ingurred by the Company by reason of
such non-payment. -

The notice shall name a further time (not earilier
than the expiration.of fourteen days from the
date of the notice) on or before which and the
place at which the payment required by the notice
is to be made, and shall state that in the event
of non-payment at.or before.the time:and at the

place appointed the shares in respect of which the

-
I

call was made will be liable to he forfeited.

" ff the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid

are not complied with, all or any shares in respect
of which the notice has been given may at any time
thereafter, before the péyment requiredlby the
notice has been made, be forfeited by a resolution
of the Directors to that effect. Such forfeiture
shall include all dividends declared in respect of
the forfeited shares and noct actﬁally paid before
the forfeiture.
Forfeited shares shall be sold or otherwise
disposed of by the Directoxs in the following
mannerf
(A) In the first instance they shall be

offered by notice in writing to

existing shareholders {other than the

shareholder whosé shares are being

forfeited) in proporticn (as nearly

ag the circumstances admit} to the

nominal value of the issued shares in

the Company held by them at the date

of such offer and at a price considered

by the Directors to be the proper

value of such forfeited shares on such




(B)

()

(>

terms and in such manner as the .

Directors think fit;

3

The notice hereinbefore referred to in
sub-Article{a) of this Article 25 shall
specify the numbexr of shares offered,

the price considered by the Directors to
be proper value, the terms and the manner
aforesaid and limiting the time {not being
less than seven days) within which the
offer if not acgepted will be deemed to be

declined;

Any shares so offered and not accepted

as provi@ed in the notice appertaining
thereto.shall be deemed declined and shall
then he offered likewise for the same price
and on the same terms and in the manner and
the proportion to those shareholders who
accepted the offer in the first instance

aforesaid;

Any shares offered in the last mentioned
offer referred to in the immediately
preceding sub-Article (C) of ghis Article 253
not accepted for the price and on the

terms and manner aforesaid may be sold or
otherwise disposed of to such person on

such terms and in such mannerlas the

Directors think fit.

PROVIDED HOWEVER :

(i}

that at any time érior to the sale or
disposition of the forfeited shares the
forfeiture may be cancelled on such terms
as the Directors think may be most
beneficial to the Company; and

that the members by special resolution

may direct that the forfeitaed shares shall

00025
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be sold or disposed of otherwise than.
as hereinbefore provided in this

Artiecle 25,

The net proceeds of sale shall be applied in orx
towards satisfaction of the moneys which at the
date of forfeiture were presently payable by the
member to the Company in respect of his shares and
the residue (if any} shall be paid to such member
or his executors administraﬁors ox aésigns.

A person whose shares have been forfeited shall
cease to be a member in respect of the forfeited
shares but shall, notwithstanding, remain liable
to pay to the Company all moneys which, at the

date of forfeiture, were presently payable by him
to the Company in respect of the shares {together
with interest not exceeding the rate of ten (10}
per cent per annum from the date of forfeiture on
the money for the time being unpaid.if the Directors
think fit to enforce payment of such interest) and
the Directors may enforce the payment thereof if
they think fit but his liability shall cease if and
when the Company receives payment in full of all
such moneys in respect of the shares.

A Statutory Deﬁlaration that the declarant is &
pirector or the Secretary of the Company and that
the share in the Company therein mentioned has been
duly forfeited or expropriated on a date stated in
the declaration shall be conclusive evidence of the
facts therein stated as against all persons c¢laining
to be entitled to the share. The Company may
receive the consideration {if any) given for a
forfeited share on any sale or disposition thereof,

and may execute a transfer of the share in favour

of the person to whom the share is sold or disposed
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_proceedings in reference to the forfeiture, sale i

- the laws of any State of country and the liens
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of and he shall thereupon be registered as‘thel

holder of the share and shall not bhe bound to

gee to the application of the purchase money

{if any) nor shall his title te the share be

affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the ?

or disposal eof the share;

The provisions of these Articles as to
forfeiture shall apply in the casélof
non-payment of any sum which by the terms of . oo
jissue of a share becomes payable at a fixed time
whether on account of the amount of such share
or by way of premium as if the same has been
payable by virtue of a call duly made and

notified.
LIEN

{7} The Company shall have a first and
paramount iien on every share (ngt beiné a fully
paid share) for all moneys (whether presently
payable or not} called or payable at a fixed time
or otherwise in respect of that share, and the
Company shall alsc have a first and paramount

lien on all shares standing registered in the name
of a single person for all moneys presently

payable by him or his estate to the Company under

referred to in sub-Article (B of this Article 30;
but the Directors may at any time declare any
share to be wholly or in ﬁart exem?t from the ;
provisions of this Article 30. The Company's
lien (if any) on a share shall extend to all
dividends payable thereon.

(B) Whenever any law for tﬁe time being of

any State or Territory in the Commonwealth of
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Australia country or place imposes or purporﬁs
to impose any immediate ox future or possible
liability upon the Company to make any payment
or empowers any Government or taxing authority
or government official to reguire the Company

tc make any payments in respect of any shares
registered in any of the Company's registers as
held, either jointly or solely, by any member or
in respect of any interest dividends'bonuses or
other moneys due or payable or accruing due or
which may become due or/payable to such member by

the Company on or in respect of any shares

registered as aforesaid or for or on account or in

respect of any member and whether in consequehce

of :

{a) the death of such member, or

(b) the non-payment of any income tax or
other tax by such member, or

(c) -the non-payment of any estate probate
succession death stamp or other duty by
the executor or administrator of. such
membar or by cr out of his sstate, or

(@) any assessment of income tax against the
company in respect of interest or dividends
paid or payable to such member, or

(e) any other act or thing

the Company in every such case

(i) shall be fully indemnified from all
jiability by such member or his executor
or administrator and by the person who
becomes registered ag holder of such
shares on the diétribution of the
deceased member's estate

(ii) shall have a first and paramount
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lien oxr charge upon the shares in
guestion for all moneys paid by the
Company in respect of such shares under
or in conseguence of any such law

shall have a lien upon and/or a right

of set off'against all dividends bonuses
and other moneys pavable in respect of the
shares registered in any of the Company's
ragisters aé held either jbiﬁtly ﬁr
solely by such member for all moneys éaid
or payable by tﬁe Company in respect of
the same shares or in respect of such
member or his estate or the person who
becomes registered as the holder of such
shares in the distribution of the
deceased member's estate under or in
consequence of any such law together with
interest at the rate of ten (10) per

¢ent per annum or such lesser rate as the
Directors may determine thereon from

date of payment to date of repayment and
may deduct ox set_off against any such
dividend bonus or other monefs pavable as
aforesaid any moneys paid oxr payable by
the Company as aforesaid togethexr with
interest as aforesaid

may recover as a debt due from such mgmber
or hig executor or administrator or other
person aforesaid wherever resident any
moneys péid by the Company under or in
consequence of any such law and interest
thereon at the rate and for the period
aforesaid and in excess of any dividend
bonus or other moneys as aforesa;d.then

dve or payable by the Company to such

e
|
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member executor or administrator ox
other person
(v) may if any such money is paid or payable
by the Company under any such law as
aforesaid refuse to register a transfer
of any shares by any such member oxr his
exacutor or administrator or such.other
person until such money and interest as
aforesaid is set off or déﬁuéted as
aforesaid and in case the same exceedé
the amount of any such dividend bonus
or other money as aforesaid then dueior
payable by the Company to such member
until such excess is paid to the Company.
Nothing herein expressed Sr implied shall prejudice
or affect any right or remedy which any such law
may confer or purpert to confer on the Company and

as between the Company and every such membey as

" aforesald his executors agministrators and estate

wheresoever constituted or situate any right or
remedy which such 1aw shall confer or purport to
confer on the Company shall be enforceable by the
Company .

The Company may sell or otherwise dispose of on
such terme and in such manner as the Directors
think fit any shares on which the Company has a
lien and the brovisions of Article 25 cof these
Articles of Association shall apply mutatis
rutandis to any such sale or disposition PROVIDED
HOWEVER that no sale or digposition shall be

made unless some sum in respect of which the lien
exists is presently payable, nor until the

expiration of fourteen days after a notice in

writing, stating and demanding payment of such

G003
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part of the amount in respect of which the lien E
i

|

exists as is presently payable, has been given

to the registered holder for thé time being of :
the share, or the.person entitled thereto by
reason of his death, insolvency or bankruptcy.

32. (a) To give effect to any such sale the

Pirectors may authorise some person to
transfer the shares sold to the
‘'Purchaser thereof; ' I. .
(B) The Purchaser shall be régistered as

. _ the holder of the shares comprised in any

such tranéfer and he shall not be bound ;
‘ to see to the application of the purchase

money, nor shall his title to the shares
be affected by any irregularity or
invalidity in the proceedings in reference
toc the sale.

33. The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the
Company and applied in payment of such part of the
amount in respect of which the lien exists as is
presently payable and the residue if any shall
{subject to a like lien for sums hot presently
payable as existed upon the shares before the gale)

. be paid to the person entitled to the shares at
‘ the date of the sale.

CLASSES OF SHARES

34. (A) The present share capital of the Company
which is presently comprised_of'TEN

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) divided

into Ten Thousand (10,000} shares of
ONE DOLLAR ($1.00)}, is classified as

follows =

{i) 4,000 are A Ordinary Shares,




(B)

<)

(D)
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(ii) 4,000 are B Ordinary ghares,
(iidi} The residue, namely 2,000

Shares are unciassified

Ordinary Shares.
Subject to the provisions of these
Articles the A Ordinary Shares and the
B Ordinary Shares shall rank in all
respects pari passu with each other and
shall have the same‘right tozparticipate
in any distribution of income éapital or
surplus assets 5y the Coméany or by its
liquidator proportionate to their
respective holdings.
Except as provided by these Articles, A
Ordinary Shares and B Ordinary éhares
shall be deemed to be shareas of the same
class.
Unless all of the Directors for the time
being in office otherwisé unanimously
decide, all further issues in the capital
of the Company whether out of the present
capital or out of any increase of capitél
shall be offered by notice iﬁ writing.in
the first instance to the then members of
the Company in proportions as nearly as may
be to the number of shares held by them.
Each offer shall remain open for a pericd
of not less than thirty days from the date
thereof and shall caxry the right to accept
the offer in respect of a smaller numbex
of shares than that contained iﬁ the offer.

Any shares déclined or not accepted within

the period stated in the offer shall be

G003%
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offered in the same manner to those
' shareholders who have accepted all the

shares originally offered to them and
in proportion as nearly as may be f& the
number of sharés held by them as aforesaid
and so on until all the further issue has
been accepted or it appears that no
shareholder is willing to take up any
further shares. If-any sliares of the
further issue then remain, they may bhé
disposed of as the Directors decide.

(E) Ordinary Shares issued by the Company

| whether out of the present capital ox
cut of any increase of capital to a
holder of A Ordinary Shares shall
themselves bhe classified as A Ordinary
Shares and Ordinarxy Shares issued to a
holder of B Ordinary Shares shall
themselves be classified as B Ordinary
Shares and Ordinary Sharés jssued to any
person not being a holder of any A
Ordinary Shares or B Orxdinary Shares
shalil be classified as the Directors decide.

{F) The one subscriber share presently held by
Ansett Transport Industries Limited shall
be classified as A Ordinary Share and the
three subscriber shares presently heid by
and registered in the name of Ansett
Transport Industries (Operations}
proprietary Limited shall be classified as

B Ordinary Shares.

TRANSFER OR TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

Mo shares in the Company shall be transferred
unless and until the rights of the pre-—emption

hereinafter conferred shall have been

exhausted save and except in case of the
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members by special resolution directing otherwise.

(A) Any member who intends to transfer shares
(hereinafter called "the proposing
transferor") shall giver notice in writing
(hereinafter referred to as "the notice of
intention to transfer”) to the Directors of

"his intention to do the same. On receipt
of such noticé the value of the shares to
be transferred shall be determined (as
hereinafter provided in Article 42} and
such value shall be referred to as "the
proper value".

{(B) Upon determination of the proper value of
the shares {(as hereinafter provided) a
transfer:notice shall be prepared by the
Directors and signed by the proposing
transferor. Such notice shall specify
the sum fixed as the proper value of the
shares and without prejudice to Article 41
herein shall constitute the Directors as
the agents of the proposing transferor for

~the sale of the shares therein mentioned in
one or more lots at the discretion of the
Directoxrs at the prdper value to the
members (other than the proposing transferor).
A transfer notice may include several shares
and in such case shall operate as if it
were a separate notice in respect of each

share PROVIDED THAT shares in different

classes (if any) shall not be included in
the same transfer notice.
(A} Upon receipt of a transfer notice duly

signed by the proposing transferor the

pirectors shall forthwith offer the shares

g0C3 4




therein mentioned at the proper value

thereol to all the then existing members
(other than the proposing transferor) in
proportion (as nearly as the circumstances '
admit) to the nominal value of the issued

shares in %he Company held by them at the

time of such offer. Such offer shall be

made by giving a notice in writing to all

the members of the Company'(othef than the
proposing transferor) of the number and
price of the shares to be sold to each
member {other than the proposing transferor)

and invite each to state within thirty days

b ' from the date of such notice whether he is |
willing to purchase any and if so, how many, i
of the said shares offered to him.

(B) At the expiration of the said thirty days
the Directors shall allocate the_said
shares to or amongét the member orx memhers

who shall have expressed his or their

willingness to purchase as aforesald any or
all of the shares so offered to them by.
the notice referred to in the immediately :
preceding sub~Article (A} of this Article
37 provided that no member shall be obliged ?
to take more than the shares which he I
advised the Directors he is willing to
purchase. Upon guch allocation being made
the Directors shall give notice in writing
thereof to the proposing transferor and he
shall be bound on repayment of the proper
value to transfer such shares to the
raspective purchaser thereof. Every such
notice chall state the name and address of

the purchéser and the number of shares

agreed to be purchased by him and the
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purchase shall be completed at a place
and time to be appointed by the Directors

not being less than seven days nor more

than thirty days after the date on which

the proper value of such shares shall have

been agreéd or fixed as hereinafter

provided.

{c) any shares not so taken up within the
aforesaid time shall- likewise be then
offered successively on the same basis’ ' :
and in the same proportion to the
remaining members.

' 38, If the Directors shall not within a period of
‘ two calendar moni;hs from the date of the offer
made pursuant to Article 37 {2} find members

willing to purchase all the shares mentioned in

the transfer notice the Directors may wiﬁhin thirty

days find a person selected by the Directors as

one whom in the interest of the Company it is

desirable to admit to membership and who 1is

willing to purchase all such shares or the majority

thereof at the proper value.

39. (A)  1f the Directors shall not within the

space of three galendar months from the i

‘ date of the transfer notice referred to i
in sub-Article (B) of Article 37 find a i
member of'the Comnpany dr a parson
selected as aforesaid willing to purchase
the shares, the Directors shall be at
1iberty and at the direction in writing of
the proposed transferor to re-offer the shares
not so taken up by the members and the

. . person aféresaid to all the then-existing

menbers {other than the proposing
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rransferor) in proportion (as nearly as
the circumstances admit) to the nominal ;
‘value of the issued shares in the Company
held by them at the date of such re-offer
at a price less than proper value as the

proposing transferor may direct in writing.

{B) fhe re-offer referred to in sub—Articie (a) :
oflthis Arﬂicle 38 shall be made by giving
a notice in writing to all the members of
the Company (other than the proposing

transferor) of the number and the re-offer

price of the shares to be sold to each

member {(other than the proposing transferor)

and invite each to state within fourteen

(14} days (Saturdays, Sundays and Public

Holidays excepted) from the date of such
re-offer whether he is willing to purchase : E

any and if so, how many, of the said shares

re-offered to him.

{C} At the expiration of the said fourteen (14)
days the Directors shall alliccate the said
shares to or amongst the membexr or membexrs
who shall have expressed his or their |

‘ willingness to purxrchase as aforesaid any

or all of the shares so re~offered to

them by the notice referred to in the
immediately preceding sub-Article (B} of
this Article 39 provided that no rember
shall be obliged to take more than the
shares which he advised the Directors he
is willing to purchase. Updn such
allocation being made the Directors shall
give notice in writing thereof to the

proposing transferox and he shall be bound

on repayment of the re-offer price to transfer




such shares to the respective purchaser
thereof. Every such noticé shall.state
the name and address of the purchaser and
" the number of shares agreed to be purchased ‘ :
by him and the purchase shall be completed
at a place and time to be appointed by the
Directors not being less than seven (7) days
nor more than thirty (30) days after the
date on which the re~offer of such shares
was made. |

(m Any shares not so taken up within the

aforesaid time shall likewise be thén

s ' offered successively on the same basis and
in the sqmé proportion to the remaining
members.

(B) Any shares not so taken up in accoxdance

with the immediately preceding sub-Article
(D) of this Article 39 shall be re-offered
at such lesser price than the last re-oiffer
price referred to in sub~Article (A} of this
= Articie 39 as the proposing transferor may
from time to time redir%ct tha Directors in
writing and in the manner as provided in
‘ | sub-Article (A), (B}, (C) and (D) of this
article 39 with the necessary adaptations
in order to apply to this new re-oifer price.
40. Tf the Directors shall not within a petiod of one
calendar month from the date of the re-offer made
pursuant to sub-Article (A) ofIArticle 39 find membérs
.willing to purchase all the shares mentioned in the
re-offer notice then at any time within one month there-
after the Directors in conjunction with the proposed
transferor shall be at liberty, subject to Article 43

hereof to transfer to.any person by a bona fide sale

at a price not less than the re-offer price




41.

referred to in sub-Article (A) of Article 39

PROVIDED THAT the Directors may reguire to be

satisfied in such manner as they may reasonably | ]
require that such shares are being transferied in
pursuance to a bona fide sale for the consideration
stated in the transfer without any deduction,

rebate or allowance whatsoever to the purchaser and
if not so satisfied may refuse to regiéter the
transfer. If the Directors in conjunction with the
proposing transferor_éhall fail to sell and transfer
the shares és hereinbefore provided within the said
period of one calendar month the Directors shall sell !
the shares on behalf of the proposing transferor to |
any person at any price but no less than the re-cffer
price and on terﬁs they think fit.

If the proposing transferox makes default in
transferring the shares as aforesaid, the Chairman

of the Directors of the Company, for the time being,
or failing him one of ﬁhe Directors duly nominated

by the Directors for that purpose, shall forthwith

bé deecmed to be the duly appointed attorney of the
proposing transferor with full power o execuie,
complete and delivér in the name ané on bhehalf of

the proposing transferor, a transfer of the shares

to the purchasing member or other person {as the

case may be) and to receive and give a good

discharge for the purchase money on behalf of the
proposing-transferdr {which purchase money shall

be held on trust for the proposing trangferor} and
upon any such transfer being executed and delivered
the Directors may enter the name of the purchaser

in the Register of Members as the holder of transfer

of such shares purchased by him and after such

name hag been entered in the Register of Members
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43.

00C4u
in purported exercise of the aforesaid power the

validity of the proceedings shall not be

questioned_by any person.

For the purpose of Article 36 to 40 {both inclusive)

the expression "proper value" shall where

applicable mean thé sum per share specified in

the transfer notice ahd éhall be determined by the

Directors and the proposed transferor by mutual

agreement. In the event that theré are any

differences between the Directors and the propésihg
transfgror as to such proper value and such
differences are not resolved within ten (10) days

(oxr such other period as they may agree upon) of

the date of the notice of intention to transfef,

such proper value shall be determined by a valuer
to be mutually agfeed upon between the parties and
failing such agreement by a valuer appointed by the
auditor of the Company (if any} or a Public or

Chartered Accountant as the parties may mutually

agree or failing agreement to be nominated by the

Presiden£ of The Institute of Chartered Accountants

of Australia fof the time being and such valuer so

nonminated shall act as an expert and not as an
arbitrator in determining the proper value of the
shares to be transferred. Such determination made
by the said valuer shall be final and binding upon
the parties.

(A) Notwithstanding anything hereinbefore set
out the Directors ﬁay refuse to register
any tfansfer of a share:

{&) where the Company has a lien on
the share;
{ii) wheré the Directors are of

opinion (without assigning any

reason therefor) that it is not
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desirable to admit the proposed

tranferee to membership.

(B} The provisioﬁs of Articles 36, 37, 38, 39,
40 and 41 hereof and sub-Article (A) of |
this Article 43 shall not apply to a :
transfer bf a personal represéntative to a i
legatee under a Will or to persons
beneficially entitled thereto upon the
distribution of the éstatedof'a deceased
member, nor to a transfer by a trustee'to

;

a beneficiary nor to a transfer to a

- Company which is deemed to be related to
‘ a member by virtue of the provisions of |
sub~gection (5) of Section 6 of the Act,
nor to a transfer of shares in consegquence
of the distribution of assets arising from
the winding up or reduction of capital of
a member being a corporation, nor to a
transfer (not complying with the provisions
of Articles 36, 37, 38, 39, 40 and 41
'hereof} which was approved by the Directors.
44, The instrument of transfer of any share in the
“ Company shall be in tﬁe usual form or such other
‘ form as the Directors may approve and shall bhe
executed both by the transferor and ths transferee | j
and attested by one witness at the least and the
transferor shall be deemed to remain the nolder
of such sﬁare until such transfer is registered and
the name of the transferee is entered in the
Register of Members in respect thereof.

45, The instrument of transfer of any share must be

forwarded to or left at the share register of the

Company in which such share is registered for
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registration accompanied by the certificate of

the shares to which the transfer relates and by
such other evidence as the Directors may require

to prove the title of the transfercor and thereupon
the Company shall subject to the powers vested

in the Directors bf these Afticles register the
transferee as a member and retain the instrument of
transfer. 1If the Directors refuse to register the
transfer of any shares, thef shall“wifhin one month
after the date oﬁ which the transfer was recei&ed

by the Company, send to the transferee a notice of

~ the refusal.

‘ 46. The Directors shall have no power to register and
shall refuse to register any transfer or transfers
of a share or shares if the effect of the
registration of which would be that the Company
would cease to fulfil the requirements of the Act
or any modification thereof for the time being in
force relating to proprietary companies.

47, The transfer bocoks may be closed for such period
or periods not exceeding fourteen days in each year
as the Diréctors shall direct during which period

_ or périods the Directors may suspend the

‘ registration of transfers. |

48. The legal personal representatives of a deceased
sole holder of a share shall be the only persons
recognised by the Company as having any title to
the share or any bénéfits accruing in respect
thereof.

49. In the case of a share reuistered in the names of
two or more holders, the survivors or survivor, or
the legai personal representatives of the deceased

survivor shall be the only persons recognised by

the Company as having any title to the share or
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~any benefits accruing in respect thereof.

In the case of thé hankruptcy or insolvency of any
mewmber of the Company such membei shall be deemed
to have given to the Coméény_a transfer notice
pursuant to Article 37 hereof.

A person becoming entitled to a share by reason of

the death or bankxruptcy or insolvency of the holder

shall he entitled to the same dividends and other

advantages +to which he would be entiﬁied if he vere
the registered holder of the share, except that he
shall not, before being registered as a member in
respect of the share, be entitléd in respect of it
to exercise any right conferred by membership in
relation to meetings 6f the Company.

Any person becoming entitled to any share in
consequence of the death bankruptey or insclvency
of a member may instead of being himself registered
elect to have some person to be named by him and
approved by the Directors to be registered as a
transferee.l The person S0 becoming entitled shall
testify such election by executing to his approved
nominee an instrument of transfer of such share

and such instrument qf transfer shall be presented
to the Company accompanied with such evidence as
the Directors may require in preoof cf the title of

the transferor.

ALTERATION OF CAPITAL

The Company in general meeting may fror time to
time by special resolution increase the share
capital by such sum to be divided into shares of
such amount as the regolution shall prescribe,

Except for the shares subscribed for by the

Memorandum of Association of the Company all the
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whether in its original share cébital or in the

increased share capital of the Company (if any) ' '

shall be offered in the first inétance to the
existing members of the Company in proportion

{as nearly as the circumstances admit) to the i

nominal value of the issued shares in the Company )

held by them at the date of such offer PROVIDED

THAT the Company in general meeting by a

spacial resolution may detefmine that.the shares

(whether in the originalfcapital or in the

increased share capital ;f the Company) be

offered otherwise than in the proportion

hereinbefore referred te in this Article 54 or to

persons who are not members of the Company.

55, Except so far as otherwise provided by the
conditions of issue or by these Articles {(if any)
any capital raised by the creation of new shares
shall be subject to the provisions herein
contained with reference to the payment of calls
and instalménts, transfer and transmission,
forfeiture, expropriation, ﬁoting and otherwise as
the éhares in the original share capital. |

56. _Subject to the special rights or restrictions
{if any) attached to any existing shares oxr class
of shareg at the time concerned the Company nay
by special resolution:

(&) Consolidate and divide its share capital
into shares of larger amount than its
‘existing shares;

(B) gubdivide its existing shares, or any of
them into shares of smaller amount than
is fixed by the Memorandum of Association,

provided however that in the subdivision

the proportion between the amount paid
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and the amount {if any) unpaid on each _ ;
reduced share shall be the same as it
was in the case of the sﬁare from which
the.reduced share is derived;

(C) Cancel shares which at the date of the
passing of‘the resolution in that behalf
have not heen taken or agreed to be taken
by any person or which have been forfeited
"and diminish the amoﬁnt of its share
capital by the amount of the shares so
cancelled.

T 57. (a) tThe Company may by special resolution

reduce its share capital, any capital

redemption reserve fund or any share.
premium account in any manner and with
and subject to any incident authorised and
consent required by law;

(B) The Diréctors may {subject to the provisions

of the Act) accept surrenders of shares.

MODIFICATION OF RIGHTS

58. If at any time the share capital of the Company by
reason of the issue of preference sharss or
otherwise is divided into different classes of shares,

. all or any of the rights and privileges attached to

. any class (unless otherwise ?rovided by the terms
of issue of the shares of that class) may whether
or not the Company is being wound up and subject to

‘the provisions of Section 65 of the Act be

modified, commuted, affected, abrogated, dealt with

or varied in any way with the consent in writing of
the holders of at least three-fourths of the issued

shares of that class, oOr with the sanction of a

special resolution passed at a separate general
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meeting of the holders of the shares of the class -

affected. To every such separéte_general meeting
the provisions of these Articles relating to
general meetings shall mutatis mutandis apply but
so that the necessary quorum shall be two persons
at Jeast holding of representing by proxy one-
third of the issued Sharés of the class and that
any holder of shares of the class present in
person or by proxy may aemana a poil PROVIDED
THAT if such a quorum be not present at any suéh
separate méeting or if sach resolution be not
carried by the ﬁecessary majority all or any of
such rights and privileges may be modified,
commuted, affected, abrogated, dealt with or
varied in any way by a consent in writing signed
by the holders of at least three—-fourths of the
class of shares affected within two months from

the date of the said separate meeting.

GENERAL MEETING

General mWeetings (to be called annual general
meetings) shall be held once in every year at such
time (not being more than eighteen montas after
incorporatioﬁ or fifteen months after the holding
of the last preceding annual general meeting, as
the case may be) and place as the Directors shall
determlne. in default of a general meeting so held
a general meeting shall be held in the month
following and may be covened by any one member

in the same manner as nearly as possible és that in
which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.
All genevral meetings othexr than those mentioned in
the last ﬁreceding Ar£icle 59, shall be called
extraordinary general meetings.

The Directoré may whenever they think fit convene

axtraordinary general meetings and such meetings
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may also be convened on such requisition or, in ' E
default, may be convened by such requisitionist as 1
are nentioned in and as is provided by Section 137 !
of the Act. TIf at any time there are not within i
the State sufficient Directors capable of acting i
to form a guorum, ény Director or any one member
may convene an extraordihary_general meeting in
the same manner_és nearly as possible as that in

which meetings may be conveﬁed by the Directors.

PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

. 62. Subject to the provisions of sub-section (1) pf i
Section 144 of the Act relating tc special !
‘ - resolutions twenty one days' noticé at the i
least (exclusiVe'of the day on which the notice i
is serﬁéd or deemed o be served but inclusive of
the day for which notice is given) specifying the
place, the day and the hour of the meeting and in . i
case of special business, the general nature of
that business shall be given in the manner
.hereinafter mentioned, or in such other manner,
if any, as may be prescribed by the Ccmpany in
e geﬁeial meetiﬁg, to such persons as are, under i
~the Articles of the Company entitled to receive
such notices from the Company; provided that the
% non-receipt by a member of, or accidental '
omission to give the notice of the meeting shall
not invalidate the proceedings of such meeting and
" resolutions passed therein, and, provided furthef
that with the consent of all members entitled to
receive notice of an annual general meeting and in
the case of any othef meeting if it is so agreed
by majority in number.of the members having the
right to attend and vote at some particular meeting

being a majority together holding not less than

i ninety five per cent in nominal value of the shares
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giving that right that meeting may be convened by :

such shorter notice and in such manner as those : P

members think f£it.
When it is proposed to pass a special resolution

at any general meeting and it is so agreed by a

to attend and vote at such meeting, being a
majority together holding not less than ninety five

(9%) per cent in nominal value of the shares

giving that right, a resolution may be proposed and i

passed as a special resolution at a meeting of
which less than twenty one {21) days' notice has
been given;

All business shall be deemed special that is
transacted at an.extraordinary general meeting,
and all that is transacted at an annual general
meeting with the exception of sanctioning a
dividend, the consideration of the accounts,
balance sheets and reports of the- Directors and
auditors (if any) prescribed by the Act the
clection of Directors and other officers in the
place of those retiring by rotation (if any) and
the fixing of the remuﬁeration of the Auditors
(if any).

¥Mo business shall be transacted at any general
meeting unless a guorum of members 1s present at
the time when the meeting proceeds to business.
The guorum for -the transaction of the business
at any general meeting shall be two members one

of whom shall be the holdexr of the "A" Ordinary

Sshares (or his prozy attorney or representative)
one of whom shall be the holder of the "B"

Ordinary Shares (or his proxy attorney or

representative) . For the purpose of this Article

!

- 004c
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"member® includes a person attending as an
attorney or as a proxy or as representing a
corporation which is-a member.

66. If within a guarter of an hour from the time
appointed for the meeting a guorum is not present,

the meeting, if convened upon the requisitions of ' i

members, shall be dissolﬁed: in any other case

it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the b

next week at the same time and plaée; If at any ' | -

adjourned meeting a guorum shall not be presen£ P

within fifteen minutes from the time appointed for

the neeting the meeting shall be dissolved.

' 67. The Chairman (if any) of Directors shall preside

at every general meeting of the Company.

68, if at any meetiné no person entitled to be Chairman
shall be present within fifteen minutes after the
time appointed for holding the same, or if at such
meeting any person so entitled shall be unwilling
+o act as Chairman, then and in any such case, the
members present may choose some Director to act as
Chairman .or if no Director be present or if all
.the Directors present decline to take the chair, the
members shall choose some ﬁember present to be the
Chairman of the meeting. _

‘ 69. (a) . The Chairman may, with the consent of any
meeting at which a guorum is present (and
shall if so directed by the meeting)
adjourn the meeting from time to time and
from place to place, but no business shall
be transacted at any adjourned meeting
other than the business left unfinished at

the meeting from which the adjournment

took place;
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When a meeting is adjourned for ten (10}
days or more at any one time notice of

the adjourned meeting shall be given as in

the case of an original meeting;

Save as aforesaid it shall not be necessary
to give any notice for an adjourned meeting i

or of the business to be transacted at an

adjourned meeting.

At any general meetiﬁg a résdiution put to
the vote of the meeting shall be decided on

a show of hands but subject to the provisions
of Article 73 hereof unless a poll is (before

or on the declaration of the result of the

show of hands} demanded by at least one
member and unless a poll is so démanded a
declaration by the Chairman that a
resolution has on a show of hands been -
carried or carried unanimously or by a
particular majority or lost or not carried

by a particular majority and an entry to

that effect in the book containing the
minutes of the proceedingé of the Company
shall be prima facie evidence of the fact
without proof of thé number or proportion of
the votes recorded in favour of or against
that resolution. The demand for a poll may
be withdrawn.

A poll demanded on the election of a Chairman
or on a guestion of adjourﬁment shall -be
taken forthwith. A poll demanded on any
other question shall be taken at such time

as the Chairman of the meeting directs.
Except as hereinbefore provided in this

Article 71 if a poll is duly demanded it

shall be taken in such manner as the Chairman

G050
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directs, . and the result of the poll shall
be deemed to be the resolution of the meeting
at which the poll was demanded.
Tn the case of an eguality of votes, whether on a
show of hands or on a poll the Chairman of. the
meeting at which tﬁe show of hands takes place or
at which the poll is demanded shall not be entitled
to a second or casting_vote.
Subject to the provisions of Articiel74 hereof if
the holdersof the "A" Oxrdinaxy Shares (or his éroxy
attorney or representati;e duly appeinted) or the

holdersof the "B" Ordinary Shares (or his proxy

_attorney or representative duly appointed) vote

against any resolution (including special and
ordinary resolution} propb;ed moved or voted upon
at a general meeting of the.Company_the last
mentioned resolution shall be deemed lost notwith-
standing that a majority of the members voted for
it.
Any resolution of the Company deternined on without
any general meeting and evidenced in writing under
the hands of all Directors or a sole Dirsctor and of
members of the Company holding nine-tenths of the
issued shares of the Company including the holders
of the "A" Ordinary Shares and the "B" Ordinary
Shares shall be as valid and effectual as a
resolution duly passed at a general meetiné of the
Company but this Article shall not apply tc any
resolution required by the Act or these Articles to
be dealt with in general meeting.
(a} Notwithstanding Articles 62 to 73 of these
Articles {(both inclusive} should the holders

of "A" Ordinary Shares present at any general

meeting and the holders of "B" Ordinary

G005 ;
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resolve unaninously ‘on any wmotion, resolution
oxr proposal put to that general meeting it shall

“~be deemed lost notwithstanding that a majority
of members present voted for it.

3 % {B) (L} In the event that such a motion, rescolution or

amm«de%

propdsal is deemed lost then either the holders

of "A"™ Ordinary Shares or the holders of "B"

Ordinary Shares may éivé to the other a notice

{ﬁereinafter referred to as a “Notice of Dispute")

specif&ing the mdtion resolution or pfﬁposal which
. ‘failed to be so unanimously resolved.

{2} Within thirty (30} days of the giving of a Notice

of Dispute the party giving the Notice of Dispute

{"the d%feror") shall give a notice in writing
(hereinafter referred to as "a Notice of Sale
Piice“) to the other party ("the Offeree”)
nominating the priLe per.share ("the Sale Price”)
‘at which' the Offeror offars to séll to the
Offeree all of the GA“ Crdinary Shares or all of
‘the "B" Ordinary Shares, as the case may be. .
{3) Within a period of gixty {60) days of receipt
by the Offeree of the Notice of Sale Price {which
period of sixty (60) days is hereinafter referred
to as "the Option Perlied") the Offeree shall have
an option to be;exercised'by giving within the
Option Period a Notice in writing to the Offerdr.
of the Offerge’s_intention to acquire all the
*A" Ordinaxy Shares or the "B" Ordinary Sharss
so offered by the Offeror, as the case may be,
at the Sale Price.
{4) If the last mentioned o?tion-to acgquire all the
said Ordinary Shares is not.exercised by the

Offeree within the Option Perxiod then the Offeror

-
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Uess

shall be bound to buy and the Offeree shall be
bound ta-sell all of the "a" Ordinary Shares of
“all of the YB" Orxdinary Shares in the Company as s
the case may ﬁe which were not so 6ffered by the
Offeror at tge Saie Price.
{5) - In either caée the transfer of the sharesnéhali
be completed'within'sixty_(so} dafé after the
expiration of the Option Period in the maaﬁer
applicable tb tfénsfeficf shares hereinbeforae .

set out in Articles 36 to 40 (both inclusive)

with tﬁe nec@ssary adaptations iﬁ oxrder o apply
to the sale resulting from the provisions of
this Article 74.(B).

(8) - The puréhase price shall be paid simultaneously

with thed transfer of the shéres.

{(H The provisions of Article 35 shall not apply -
in case of a transfer of shares resulting £rom
8 Notice of Disputé givéh_pursuant to Articie

. 74.(B) (1}

(3} ‘During the period commencing on the giving'of

the Notice of ﬁispuﬁe pursuant to Article 74. (B) (1)

v
and ending upon the complation of transfer of

shares resulting therefrom as contemplated in

the preceding provisions of this Article 74. (B)

- no member shall give the notice of intention to

transfer referred to in Article 36.(A) and )
any steps then uncompleted iﬁ connection with
-the sale of shares resulting from such a notice

" of intention to transfer given prior to the
giving of the last mentioned Notice of Dispute

shall be suspended unless the Directors otherwise

decide. - = 3

3
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{C) If the holdexrs of the "A" Qrdinary Shares
shall not exercise such option within six
(6) calendar months of tﬁe date of the
giving of the Notice of Dispute, the holders
of "B" Ordinary Shares shall have the right
(to be exercised by a written notice to be
given to the holders of &ll the "A" Ordinary
Shares) to acquire from fhg_holders of ”Ag
Ordinary Shares all Ef the A" Ordinary
Shares at the proper value determined as
provided in Article 42 of these Artigles and
in the manner set out in the immediatély
preceding sub-Article (B} of this Afticle
74 subject to the necessary adaptations to
an option exercised by the holders of the

"g" Ordinary Shares.

VOTES OF MEMBERS

 Subject to any rights or restrictions for the tine

being attached to any class or classes of shares at
meetings of members or classes of members each
member entitlied to vote may vote.@n person or by
proxy or by attoxrney oOr by'a representative
hereinafter referred to and on a show of hands every

member present in person or by a proxy or by

attorney or by a representative of a member appointed

pursuant to Section 140 (3) of the Act shall have one

vote and on a poll every member present in persen or
by proxy or by attorney or other duly authorised
representativé shail have one vote for each share of
which he is the holder.

In the case of joint holders the vote of the senior
who tenders a vote, whether in person oxr by proxy,

shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of

the other joint holders; and for this purpose

seniority shall be determined by the ordex in which
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the names stand in fhe Register of Members. Several
executors OY administrators of aldeceased-member
not being one of several joint hélders ghall be the
only persons recognised as having any title to the
shares registered in the name of such member and in
case of death of any one or more of the joint
holders of any registered shares the survivors shall
be the only persons regognised by Fhe'Company as
having any title to or interést in such shares.

A member who is of unsou?d mind, or whose person

or estate is liablé to be dealt with in any'way
ander the law relating to mental health may vote,
whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his
committee or by His trustee or by such cther person
as properly has the management of his estate and
any such committee, trustee or other person may
vote by proxy or attorney.

No member shall be entitled teo vote at any general
meeting unless all calls or other moneys presently
payable by him in respect.of shares in the Company
have been paid, and no joint holder of a share
shall be entitled ta vote as 10ngvas ha, or any
joint holder with him, shall be indebted to the
Company in respeét of any such moneys then payable.
On a poll votes may be given either personally or
by vroxy or attorney or the said representative.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in
writing (in the éommon or usual form) under the
hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly
authorised in writing or if the appointoxr is a
corvoration either under seal oxr under the hands

of an officer or attorney duly authorised.and.may
appoihf several persons in the alternative. &

proxy may, but need not, be a member of the

Company. The instrument appointing a proxy shall
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be deemed to confer authority to demand or join
in demanding a pcll.

Bl. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of
attorney or othér authority (if any} under which it : i -
is signed or a copy thereof &ertified to the
satisfaction of the Directors shall be deposited
at the registered office of the Company not less
than twenty~four {24) hours befére the time for
holding the meeting or adjourned meetiné or taking.
a poll, as the case may be, at which the person
named in the proxy proposes to vote and in default
the instrument of proxy shall not be treated‘as
valid.

82. Any corporation which is a member of the Company may i

by resclution of its Diractors or other governing

body, authorise such person as it thinks fit to

act as its representative at any meeting of the
ICompany or of any class of members of the Company,
and the person so authoriséd shall be entitled to
exercise the same powers on behalf of the corporation
which he represents as that corpofation could

exercigse if it were an individual member of the

Company including (in the event snecifisd therein)

the matters referred to in Section 140 of the Act.

. . DIRECTORS

83. {Aa) The holders of the "A" Ordinary Shares
shall be entitled to appoint two Directors
and the holders of the "B" Ordinary-Shares
shall_bé entitled to appeint two Directors.

(B) Any Director appointed by either class of
shareholders under the provision of this
Article 83 may be removed from office by
the class of shareholder which so appointed

him and that class shall have power at any

time to appoint another Director in the
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place of the Director so removed or of

any Director appointed bj that class of
shareholders who dies or resigns or
otherwise vacates office under these
Articles. ‘
{C) _Any appointmen£ ér;removal of a Director

under this Article may be madelby a
majority of the membérs of‘ﬁhé.class
appointing or removing that Director

e - and shall be in ériting and shall be -
effective when deposited at the registered

‘ E office of the Company.

(D) A new Director may be appointed'by the

same instrument as that which removes

another Director. Any appointment or -
removal may be by letter, +telex, telegram,

cablegram, radiogram or any other form of

vigible communication.
(£) The present Directors of the Company
Ralph Leyton Cooper shall be deemed to

have been appointed by the holder of : P

the "A" Ordinary Share and Frank Pascoe
shall be deemed to have been appeinted by
% t+he holder of the "B" Ordinary Shares. i
.84, Until otherwise detexrmined by a general meating the
number of Directors shall not be less than two nox
more than four. The first Directors whose names
appear in the immediately preceding sub-Article
(E) of Article 83 were appointed by thé subscribers
to.the Memorandum of Association of the Company.

All subseguent Directors subject to the provision

of Article 83 shall be appointed by special




85.

86.

a7.

- 41 -

resolution of the Company.

A Director need hold no shares in the capital of

the Conmpany.

If any Director being willing shall be called upon

to perform extra services or to make any special

exertions in going or residing abroad or otherwise

for any of the purposes of the Company the Company

by a resolution of the Directors may reimburse the

Director so doing for expenses incﬁrréd by him in

connection thereof oxr otherwise as may be

determined by the Directors.

(B

(B)

(<)

BORROWING POWERS

The Directors may from time to time at
their discretion exercise all the powexs

of the Company to borrow money for the
purposes of the Company;

The Directors méy secure the payment or
repayment of.money borrowed in exercise

of the powers referred to in the
immediately preceding sub-Article (A)

or any debts liabilities contracts or
obligations undertaken or incurred by the
Company or a third party in such form or
manner and upon such terms and conditions
in all respects as they think f£it including
the issue of debentures or debenture stock
(terminable ox perpetual) or the giving of
any bond, mortgage, charge or other sacurity
6or obligation of the Comﬁany chargcd upon
all or any part of the property and assets
of the Company (both présent and future)
including its uncalled and/or uﬁpaid capital
for the timelbeing or of uv-ligations of the
Company;f -

The Dir “~ ¢ may cause or permit any of

W
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the mortgages, debentures, debenture stock,

bonds, charges or other securities ox

'obligations referred to in the immediately

preceding suh-Article to be redeemed,
assigned or transferred as they may think
fif: -

The Directors may for the purposes of
securing the payment of any debentures
bonds or other securities or the payment
with interest of any moneys so borrowed as
aforesaid or payable under any contract
whatsocever or o£herwise howsoever take and
carry into effect aﬁy arrangement which
they may deem expedient by assigning or
conveying any property of tﬁe Coﬁpany
{including uncalled capital) te trustees;
Any debentures debenture stock bonds or
other security may be issued at a discount
premium or otherwise and ﬁith or without
the right to the holder thereof to exéhange
the same in whole or in part at certain or
uncertain times or with any special
privileges as to redémption surrender
drawings allotment cof shares attending and
voting at general meetings of the Company
appointment of Directors and otherwise and
any debenture or debentures may be reissued
notwithstanding that it or they may have
been paid off or satisfied. And the
pDirectors may give and execute, in the name
and on behalf of tﬁe Company as provided by

these Articles in favour of any Director,

or other person, who may incur or be about

to incur any personal liability for the

00059
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benefit of the Company, such mortgéges of
the Company's property (present and.futufe}
as they think fit and any such other powefs
covenants and provisions as shall be agreed
upon; -

If any uncdlled capital of the Company be
included in or charged by any mortgage or
other security the Directors may by
instrument under the Company's seal
authorise the person in whose favour such
mortgage ox 6thef security is executed or
any other person in trust for him to make
calls on the members in respect of such
uncalled capital or to control the making
theresof ﬁith power to control or. veto
transfers and to sue in the name of the
Company or otherwise for ﬁhe recovery of
moneys becoming due in respect of all calls
so made and to give valid- receipts for

such moneys and the power so delegated
shall subsist during the continuance of the

mortgagé or security nthithstanding any

change of Directors and shall be assignable

if expressed so to be;

The Directors may, with the approval of the
Court and subject to the.other requirements
of Section 69 of the Act; pay interest at
the rate of five (5) per centum on the
amount of capital for the time being paid
up in reépect of any shares issued for the
purpose of raising money to defray the
expenses of the construction of any works

or buildings or the provision of any plani

which cannot be made profitable for a long
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period, and may charge the interest so paid

to capital as part of the cost of construction

of the works or building or the costs of

the plan.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

88. All- the powers of the Company and the management
supervision and control of its business and affairs
shall be vested in the Directors who in.addition
to the powers and authoritiés by these presents or
otherwise expressly conferred upon them may pay all
expenges incurred in promoting and registerifg the
Company (if any) and may carry into effect all or
any of the objects of the Company mentioned in the
Memorandum of Aséociation and may exercise éll
such powers of the Company and do all such acts
and things as shall belvested in or may be
exercised or done by the Compény and are not by
these Articles or by law expressly directed to be
exercised or done by the Company-in generél
meeting subject nevertheless to the provisions
of the Act (or any'modification ?hereof for the
time being in force} and of these Articles and
subject also to the control of any general‘ﬁeeting

‘ of the Company .but no resolution so made by the

Company in general meeting shall invalidate any

prior act of the Directors which would have been
valid if such resolution had not been passed.

89. The Directors may exercise all the powers of the
Company in relation to any official seal for use
inside the State and in relation to any official
seal for use outside the State and in relation to
branch registers.

90, The Directors may from time to time by power of

attorney appeint ahy corporation firm or person
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or body of persons whethexr nominated directly or

indirectly by the Directors to be the attorney or

attorneys df the Company for such purposes and
with such powers authorities and discretions (not
exceeding those vested in or exercisable by the

Directors under tﬁeée Articles) and for such

period and subject to such conditions as they may

think fit and any such powers of attorneys may
contain such provisions for the prdfeéticn and
convenience of persoﬁs dealing with any such
attorney as the Directors may think fit and may
also authorise any such attorney to delegate all
or any of the powers authorities and discretions
vested in him.

(A} The Directors shalil duly comply with the
provisions of the Act or any modification.
thereﬁf for the time being in force, and
in particular with the provisions in
regard to the registration of the
particulars of mortgages and charges
affecting the property of the Company or
created by it and to keeping a register
of Direétors, managers and sec:etafies and
to lodging with the Commissioner for
Corporate Affairs an annual list of members
and a.summary of particulars relating thereto
and a notice of any increase of share
capital and copies of special resolutions
and a copy of the register of Directors,
managers and secretaries and notifications
of any change therein.

{B) The Directors.shall cause to be kept at

the registered office of the Company a

000
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register of mortgages and charges and ‘to

pe entered therein all mortgages and

charges specifically affééting the property
of the Company and all floating charges

on the undertaking or any property of the
Company giving in each case a short
description of the property mortgaged or
charged the amount of the mortgage orx

charge and {except iﬁ the éaéé of securities

to bearer) the names of the mortgagees or

persons entitled thereto.

92. Chegques on the Company's Banker, Bills of ﬁxchange,
Promissory Notes or other negotiable instruments
shall be drawn made or signed or endorsed in such
manner as the Directors shall from time to time
resclve.

1 93. A meeting of the Directors at which a guorum is
present shall be competent to exercise all or
any of the authorities powers.and discretions by or |
= under the Articles of the Company for the time
being vested in or exercisable by the Directors
generally. '

94. A resolution determined without a meeting of the
Directors or a bommittee thereof and evidenced in
writing under the hand of all the Directors for the
time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting
of the Directors or the Committee concerned shall
be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed

at a meeting of the Directors or of a Committee

thereof duly convened ané held. 2any such resolution
may consist of several documents in like form each
signed by one or more Directors. |

95. The Directors shall cause minutes to be made in

books provided for the ?urpose:—

{a) ~ 0f all appointments of officers made by
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the Directors;

(B) 'Of names of Directors present at each
meeting of the Directors and of any
committee of Directors;

{C) Of all resolutions and proceedings at all
meeatings of tﬁe Company of the Directors
and of committee of Directors. _

Such minutes. shall be signed by the Chairman of thé

meeting at which the pfoceedings Wéfe.held or by

the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting.

7
ASSOCIATE DIRECTORS -

'The Directors may from time to time appoint any

person to be an associate Director and may from
time to time cancél any such appointment. The
Directors may fix determine and vary the powers
duties and remuneration of any person so '
appointed but a person so appointed shall not be
fequired to hold any shares to gualify him for
appointment and shall have no right to attend or
vote at any meeting of Directors excapt by the'

invitation and with the consent of the Directors.

ALTERNATIVE OR SUBSTITUTE DIRECTCRS

(A} (1) Subject to the provisions of the

Act -

(i}  the holder for the time being
of the "A" Ordinary SBhares
shall have the power from time
to time to appoint any person
to act as an Alternate Director
in the place of a Director
appointed by the holder for
the time being of the "A"
Ordinary Shares.

(ii) the holder for the time being

of the "B" Ordinary Shares
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shall have the power from
time to time to appoint any
person to aét as an Alternate
Director in the place of a
Director appointed by the
hclder for the time being

of the "B" Ordinary Shares.

(2) The appointment of an Alternate
Director unde? this sub-Article (A)
may be made by notice in writing,
letter, telex, telegram, cablegram,
radiogram or any other form of.
visiblé communication.

(3) . The appointment of an Altgrnate
Director under this sub—Afticle (a)
may be made fér a stated pericd or
periocds or until the happening of a
specified event or from time to time
whenever by absence or illness or for
any other reason the Director is
unable to attend tec his duties as a
Director. .

(4) The provisions {(if any)} contained in
thése Articles to the contrary shall
be subject to the provisicns of this
sub-Article (A) of this Article 97.

The following provision shall apply to an

Alternate Director appointed pursuant to the

immediately preceding sub-Article {A) of

this Article 97 -

(1) he may be removed or suspended from
office by written notice,. letter,
telegram, cablegram, radiogram, telex

or other form of visible communication

sent to the Company by the person

4008

G




(2}

(3)

(4)

{5)

(6)

(N
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by whom he was appointed;
subject to these Articles he shall

be entitled to receive notice of

‘meetings of the Board and to attend

and vote thereat if the Director

in ﬁlace of whom he was appointed

is not present and subject as
aforesaid, where he is a Director,

to have a sepérate Qoﬂé on behalf

of the Director he is represanting
in'additi;n to his own vote;

he shall be entitled to exercise

all the powers and to perform all

the duties of a Director, insofar

as the Director in place of whom he
was appointed has not exercised or
performed them;

he shall not be required toc hold any
ghare gunalification;

he shall ipso facto vacate office if
the Director in place of whom he was
appointed is removed or otherwise
ceased to hold office Zor any reason;
he shall, whilst acting as a Director,
be responsible to the Company for

his own acts and defaults and shall
not be deemed to be the agent of the
pirector in place of whom he was
appointed;

he shall not be entitled to receive
any remuneration from the Company as
a Directoxr except.for special serviceé
which in the opinion of the Directors

are outside the scope of the

ordinary duties of a birector;




(C)

‘Director during such period as the

- Director he will be responsible to the

(8) " he shall not be taken into account
in determining the pumber of

Dizrectors.

Subject to the preceding sub-Article
{2} and (B} of this Article 97 any
Director may appeint any person approved

by the Directors to act as substitute

Directors may approve an such appointee

whilst he holds office as substitute

Director shall be eﬁtitled to recéive notice
of meetings of the Directors and to attend
and vote thereat accordingly and to
exercise -all the powers {except the power
to appoint an alternate ox substitute
Director} and perform all duties of the
appointer but he shall not be requiréd té
hold any share gqualification and he shall
ipso facto vacate office if and when the
appointor vacates officelas a Director or
dies or removes or suspends the appolntee
from office and any appointment and

removal under this Article shali be
effected by notice in writing under the
hand of the Director making the same; such
substitute Director shall not be taken

into account in determining the nunber of

Directors and whilst acting as such

Company for his own acts and defaults and

shall not be deemed to be the agent of

the .appointor.
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MANAGER

The Directors may from time to timé appoint a
managexr of the business of the Company for such
term and at such remuneration as they think fit
and may remove and‘discharge such manager and
appoint a substitute and the Directors shall take
such security (if any) for the good conduct and

satisfactory discharge of the duties of such

- marager as they in their discretion think sufficient.

SEAL .

The Seal of the Company shall be under the cdntrol

‘of the Directors and the same shall not be affixed

to any instrument éxcept‘certificates of shares,
debentures or notes unless in the presence of and
attested by two Directoré each representing the "A"
Ordinary Shares and the "B" Ordinary Shares and thé
Secretary or some other person appointed by the
Directors fox the purpose. The Seal may be affixed
to certificates for shares, debentures and notes

in such manner as the Directors shall from time to

time determine.

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

The office of a Director shall be vacated if the

Director :-

{A) Ceases to be a Director by virtue of
Section‘llé ﬁf the Act; or

(B) Becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement
or domposition with his creditors
generally} or

{C) Becomes prohibited from being a Director
by reason of any order made under the

Act; or




iol.

(D) Becomes of unsound mind or a person whése
~person or estéte is liable to be dealt with
in any way under the law relating to wmental
health: or
(E) Resigns his office by notice in writing to
the Companf.
Notwithstanding any rules of law or equity to the
contrary no Pirector shall become disqualified by his
office from contraciing with the Coﬁpény either as
vendor, purchaser or otherwise or from being eﬁployed
or acting in any capacity professional or otherwise
by cor on behalf of the Company nor shall any such
contract or agreement entered into-on behalf of the
company with any Company corporation or partnership
of or in which any Director shall be a Director
member partner or otherwise interested be liable to

be impeached affected or avoided by reason of a

Director being a party thereto or interested therein .

nor shall such Director be liable to.account to the
Cdmpany for any profit realised bf or in respect of
such contract or arrangement and he may retain for
his own use and benefit profits mgde by him under
such contract or arrangement_but ﬁe shall be bound
to disclose the nature of the interest in any such
contract or arrangement at the meeting of the
Directors at which.the contract or arrangement is
determined if his interest then exists, or in any
other case at the first meeting of fhe Directors
after the acquisition of his interest. A Directo¥
méy be counted for a quorum and may vote as a
Director 0¥ sharehclder in respect of any contract

or arrangement. in which he is interested and may

" authorise the entering into such contract or

arrangement and may witness the affixing of the

(0089
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Company's Seal or sign such contract or any deed or

.other instrument evidencing such contract ox

arrangement. Failure to make suéh disclosure shéll
not operate to avoid or render voidable any sﬁch
contract agreement or arrangement.

A Director may hold any other office under the
Company in conjunction with the office of Director
and upon such terms as the Directors may arrange
and shall not forfeit his seét as é Director by

reason of holding such office.
J .

DECLARATION OF SECRECY

The Cowpany may reguire from every member Director
Manager auditor trustee servant agent accountant

or other person employed in the business of the

Company to sign before entering upen his duties, a

declaration pledging himself (except as regquired

by the Act) to observe strict secrecy in respect of
all materials, substances or processes used by or
incidental to the Company or its activities and

all transactions of the Company with customers and
the state of accounts with individuals and in all
matters relating thereto and shall by such
declaration pledge not to reveal any of the matters
which may come to his knowledge by virtue of being
a shareholder in the Company or in the discharge of
his duties except when required se to do by the
Directors or by any meeting of the Company or by a .
Court of Law or by the person to whom such matters
relate except so far as may be necessary in order to
comply with any of the provisions in these Articles

contained.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Subject to the provisions of Article B3 the

Company may by a special resolution at any meeting

0070
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at which it is advised that any of the Directors
have resigned or retired £ill up the vacated office _ - i
by electing a like number of persons to be Directors.

105. The Directors shall be entitled to held coffice as
Directors so long as they are alive unless:
_disqualified or removed pursuant to these Articles.

106. If at any meeting at which an election of Directors
cught to take place the places of the vacatihg
Directors are not filled up the vacatlng Directors
or such of them as have not had their places fllled
up shall be deemed to have been re-elected.

: 107. If all the Directors so agree in writing the
s Directors may at any time appoint any person to be

_a Director either to fill a casual wvacancy or as an

additicn to the existing Directors but so that the
total number of Directors shall not at any time
exceed the maximum number fixed in these Articles

and PROVIDED THAT such additional Directors shall

resign prior to the next following annual general
meeting but will be eligible for election by the
Company at the meeting as a Director.

108. The Company may from time to time by special

resolution remove any Director.

‘ ' PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

109. (3) The Directors may meet together for the
despatch of business adjourn and otherwiée : é“
regulate their meetings as they think fit.
A Director may, and the Secretary on the
requisition of a Pirecter shall at any
time summon a meeting of the Directors.
Questions arising at ahy meeting of
Directors shail be determined by a

majority of votes PROVIDED ALWAYS that if

all or the only or a majority of the
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Directors appointed by the holder ox

holders of the "A" 0rdinar§'shares and

present at the meeting or all or the :

only or a majority of the Directors
appointed by the holder or holders of !
the "B" Ordinary Shares and present at
the meeting voteIAgainst'a motion,
resolution or propesal it shall be deemed . i
lost notwithstanding'that a majority of
Directors present vote for it. The -
* _ Chairman shall not be entitled to a casting
~or second vote. For the purpose of this
' Article 109 and Articles 93 and 110 an
alternate of a Director appointed by the

holder or holders of the "A" Ordinary

Shares and present at a meeting shall be

deemed to be that Director appointed by

such holder or holders and an alternate

of a Director appointed by the holder or

holders of the "B" Ordinary Shares and

present at a meeting shall be deemed to

be that Director appointed by such helder

or holders.

(B) In the event that at a meeting of Directors

‘ a motion, resoluticn or proposal is deemed

lost as provided in the immediately preceding

sub-Article (A) of this Article 109 an S

extraordinéry general meeting may be convened

by such requisition as is mentioned in and

provided by Article 61 of these Articles to

resolve the said motion, resolution or

proposal deemed to be lost at the said

nmeeting of Directors.
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The quorum neceséary for the transaction of thé
business of the Directors shall be two one of whom
shall be a Director who shall haﬁe been appointed
by the holder or holders of the "A” Ordinary
Shares and one of whom shall be a Director who
shall have been apéointed by the holder or holders
of the "B" Ordinary Sharés. A Director may be
counted in a quorum notwithstanding that he may be
interested in any business Befofe ghé meeting.

The céntinuing Directors may act notwithstandiﬁg
any vacancy in their bod;, but if and so long as
their number is reduced below the number fixed by
or pursuant to the Articles of the Company as the
gquorum of Directors, the.continuing Directors may
act for the purposes of increasing the ﬁﬁmber of
Directors to that number or of summoning a general
meeting of the Company but for no other purpose.
The Directors may eledt a Chairman of their
meetings and determine the pericd fcr which he is
to hold office, but if no such Chairman is elected
or, at any meeting.the Chairman is not present
within five minutes after the time appointed for
holding the same, the Directors present may choose
one of their number to be Chairman of the meetihg
provided however, that as long as the Shares in
the Company are classified in the manner set ogt in
sub~Articie (A) of Article 34 the position of a
Chairman shall be rotated annuaily betwean one of
the Directors appointed by the holder or holders
of the "A" Ordinary Shares and the "B" Ordinary
Shares, the first Chairman to be elecfed by the
holder of the "A" Ordinary Shares.

The Directors may deiegate.any of their powefs to
committees consisting of such membef or members of

their body as they think fit. Any committee so
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formed shall, in the exerdise of the powers so
delegated, conform to any régulaticn that may be
imposed on them by the Directors.

A Committee may elect a Chairman of its meetings.
If no such Chairman is elected or, if at any
meeting the Chairmén is not present within five
minutes after the-ﬁime appointed to hold_the same,
the members present may choose one of their number
to be Chairman of the meetiné. |

A Commititee may meet and adjourn as it thinks_'
proper. Questions arising at any meeting shall be
determined by a majority of the votes of the members

present and in case of an equality of votes the

Chairman shall have a second or casting vote.

All acts done by any meeting of the Directors or of

a committee of Directors or by any person acting as

a Director shall notwithstanding that it be afterwards
discovered that there was some defect in the
appointment of any such Director ox person acting

as aforesaid or, that they or any of them were
disqualified, be as valid as if every such pexson

had been duly appointed and was gualified to be a

Director.
BANKERS

The Bankers of the Company may bhe from time to time

appointed and changed by the Directors.

DIVIDEND AND RESERVES

The Company ip general neeting may declare a
dividend in respect of any year or otherperiod but
no dividend so declared shall exceed the amount or
rate or differ from the manner recommended by the

Directors. No dividends shall be paid otherwise

than out of profits.
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119, The Directors may from.time to time recommend
that a dividend (including interim dividend) shall
be payable {or not payable) to_of more classes of ' '
shareholders {if any) or that a dividend may be
declared at different rates for different classes
of shareholders (if any) notwithstanding that conly
the Directors thereby become entitled to a dividend
and notwithstanding the length of time during which
no dividends are paid on somé shareg.

120, The birectors méy from time to time pay to the
r

£

] members such interim dividends as appear to the

:  Directors to be justified by the profits of the
‘ Company -

121. If under the Income Tax Assessment Acts or any

other enactment the Company becomes liable to ray
additional tax with respect to any undistributed .
amount of its profits then, noiwithstanding any
other provisions of these Articles, the Company in
making any subseguent distribﬁtioﬁ of its profits
whether out of that undistributed amount or out of
other profits may if the Directorg'tﬁink fit, but - _
‘notso as to affect any priority to which under these
Articles the holders of any class or shares are

‘ entitled, declare dividends at different rates with
respect to the shares of the same class held by
different members in such a way as to ensure as
nearly as may be that each member bears his proper
share of the additional tax which the Company has
become liable to pay.

122. The Directors may, before recommending any dividend,

set aside out of the profits of the Company such sums

as they think proper as a reserve or reserves which

ghall at the discretion of the Directors be applicable
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for meeting.depreciatidn.or contiﬁgencies or for
equalising dividends or for any other purpose to
which the profits of the Company'may be properly
applied and pending such application may, at the
like discretion, e%ther be employed in the business
of the Company or be invested in such investments
{other than shares of.the Company) as the Directors
may from time to time think fit. The_Directors
may {(without placing the samé to reseive) carry
forward any prdfits whic@ they may think prudent
not to divide.

If several persons are registered as joint holders
of any share any of them may give effeetual
receipts for any ‘dividend payable on the share.

No dividend shall bear interest against the Company.

CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS

{A) When any dividend is declaradthe Directors
may direct payment of such dividend wholly
or in part by the distribution of specified
assets and in particular of shares, fully
or partly paid up debentures or debenture
stock of the Company or sharés, fully or
partly paid up debentures or debenture stock
of any other Company or in any one or more
of such ways;

{B) The Compaty in general meeting may, upon
the recommendation of the Directors, by
resolution direct that any part of the
moneys (ihcluding moneys arising from the
realisation of any capital assets of the
Company or any investments'repfesenting the
same) iﬁvestments or other assets forming
part of the undivided profits of the Company

not required for the payment of any dividend

00075
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which at the date of the resclution is

ocutstanding on any preference shares of

the Company (if any} whether standing to
credit of the reserve fund or ctherwise

in the hands of the Company and available
for distriﬁution (or representing premiums
received on the issue of shares and standing
to the ¢redit of the share premium adCOunt)
be capitalised and distributed amongst such
of the shareholders as would be entitléd to
receive the same if distributed by way of
dividend and in the same proportion omn the
footing that thay become entitled thereto

as capital and that all or any paxt of such

capitalised fund be applied on behalf of

_ the shareholders in paying up in full either

at par or at such premium as the resolution
may provide any unissued shares of the
Company and that such uniésued shares or
debentures or debenture stock of the Company
so fully paid shall be isgued or distributed
accordingly or in or towards payment of the
uncalled liability on any issued shares or
debentures or debenture stock and that such
issue distribution or payment shall be
accepted by such shareholders in full
satisfaction of their interest in the said
capitalised sum.

For the purpose of giving effect to any
resolution under the two last preceding
paragraphs the Directors may settle any
difficulty which may arise in regard to the
distribution as they think expedieﬁt and in
particular may issue fractional certificates

or sell shares not divisible by reason of
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fractions and may-fix the value for

distribution of any specific assets and

may determine that cash or other payments

shall be made to any members upon the

footing of the value so fixed or that
fractions of less value than One Dollar
may be disregardéd in order to adjust the
rights of all parties and may vest any
such cash ox specifib assefs in trustees
upon such trust for the persons entitléd
to the dividend or capitalised fund as way E
seem expedient to the Directors. Where
requisite a pfcper contract shall be filed
in accordance with the Act and the Directors
may -appoint any person to sign such contract
on behalf of the persons entitled to the
dividend or capitalised fund and such

appointment shall be effective.
ACCOUNTS

126. The Directors shall cause true accounts and other
records to be kept:
(a) ~ of the sums of money received and expended
by the Company and the matter in respect of

which such receipt and expenditure takes

place: _

(B) of the assets and iiabilities of theCompany;
and

(c) all sales and purchase of goods by the T
Company .

127. The accounts shall be kept at the registered office
of the Company, or at such other place or places
as the Directors think fit and shall always be open
to the inspection of the Directors.

128. Subject to the provisions of the Act the Directors

shall from time to time determine whether and te

P
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what extent énd at what times and places and under
what conditions or regulafions'the éccounts and
books of the Company.or any of them shall be open
to the inspection of meﬁbers not being Directors, .
and no member (not béing a Director) shall have any

right of inspecting any account or book or

" document of the Company except as conferred by

statute or authorised by the Directors or’by'the

Company 'in general meeting.

Once at least in every year the Directors shall

lay before the Company iﬂ an annual general meeting
a profit ané loss account for the period since the
preceding account or (in the case of the first
account) since the incorporation of the Company,
made up to a date not more than six months before
such meeting.

A balance Qheet shall be made out in efery yvear and
laid before the Company in an annual general
meeting, made up to a date not mofe than six months
before such meeting. The bkalance sheet shall be
accompanied by a report of the Di%ectors as to the
state of the Company's affairs, what.amount has
heen written off for depreciation, and the amount
which the Directors recommend to be:paid by way of
dividend and of the amount (if any) which they
propose to carry to a reserve fund.

A copy of the last profit and loss account balance
sheet and the report together with the auditors
réport thereon {if any) shall on the request of any
member of the Company be furnished without charge
to such member within fourteen (14) days of such

request being made.
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AUDIT

Subject to the exemption contained in the Act once
at least in every year the accouﬁts of the Company
shall be examined and the correctness of the profit
and loss account agd balance sheet ascertained by

one or more auditor or auditors.
NOTICES

A notice may be given by the Company to any member
either perscnally or by sending it by post to his

registered address or (if he has no registered

" address within the State) to the address (if any)

in Australia supplied by him to the Company for the
giving of notices to him,

Where a notice is sent by post service of the
notice shall be deemed to be effected by properly
addressing repaying and posting a letter containing
the notice. '

On the expiration of twenty~four (24) hours after
it is so displayed any notice required to be given

by the Company to the members or any of them and

not expressly provided for by these presents shall

be sufficiently givén if given by advertisement.
The service-nf any notice sent by post shall be
deemed to have been effected at the time at which
the letter would be delivered in the ordinary
course of post.

A notice may be given by the Company to the joint
holders of a share by giving the notice to the

joint holder named first on the régister in respect

' of the shares.

A notice may be given by the Company to the persons
entitled to a share in conseguence of the death or
bankruptcy of a member by sending it through the

post in a prepaid letter addressed to them by name,
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or by the.tit;e of representatives of the decéased,
or trustee of the bahkrupt, or by any like
description, at the address, if ény, within the

State supplied for the purpose by the persons
claiming to be so entitled, or funtil suéh an address
has been so suppliéd) by giving the notice in any
manner in which the same might have been given if

the death or bankruptcy had not cccurred.

{a) Notice of every general meétihg shall be

given in any manner hereinbefore authorised

s

to -

(i) every member except those members
who {having no registered address
within the State) have not supplied
to the Company an address within the
State for the giving of notices tc
them; and also to

(ii) every person entitled to a share in
consequence of theldeath or hank-
ruptcy of a ﬁember who, but for his
death or bankruptég, wguld be
entitled to receive noitice of the
meeting; |

{(iii) the auditor of the Company {if any).

{B}) No other person shall be entitléd to receive

notice of general meetings.
WIKDING UP

(A} If the Company shall be wound up whether
voluntarily or otherwise the liquidator
may with the sanction of a special
resolution of the Company divide among the
shareholders Er any of them inlspécie or

i

kind the whole or any part of the assets

of the Company (whether they consist of
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property of the same kind ox ﬁot}_and may . 6988‘“
with the 1ike.sanction vest thg whole or
any part of the assets of the Company in
trustees updn tyust for the benefit of ' ) .
the sharehdlders as the liguidators with the
like sanction shall think f£it;

{B) 1f thouéht expedient {(but subject to any
specific rights attaching to shares issued
on special conditions) any such diviéion may
be otherwise than in accordance with the legal
rights of the shareholders of the Company

and in particular any class (if any) may be

' ' given preferential or special rights oxr may
be excluded altogether or in part but in
case anf division otherwise than in accord-
ance with the. legal rights of the
shareholders shall be determined on any
shareholder who-would be prejudiced thereby
shall have a right to dissent and ancillary
rights as if such determination were a ' ; .
special resolution passed pursuant to the l

Act;

'(C) In case any shares to be divided as aforesaid
p : involve a liability to calls or otherwise
‘ any person entitled under such division to
any of the said shares may within ten (10} i
days after the péssing of the special
resolution by notice in writing diréct the
liguidator to sell his proportion and pay
him the net proceeds and the liguidators shall
if practicable act accordingly.
141. The Directors may present a petition for winding up
the Company without first obtaining the sanction of

a meeting of shareholders for such presentation.
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143,

INDEMNITY

Every Director, managing Director, manager, secretary,

agent, auditor, trusteé and other officer or servant
of the Company for the time being shall be
indemnified by the Company against {and it shall be
the duty of the Directors out of the funds of the
Company to . pay) all costs losses charges damages
expenses and other 1iabiliti¢s which any such
Director, managing Director, manager, secretary,
agent, auditor, trustee and other offiéer ér

servant may incur or become liable to or put -to

by reason of any contract entered into or act or

thing in any way done by them in the execution of

their respective offices in the course of the

"business of the Company.

Subject to the provisions of the Act no Director or
any officer of the Company shalllbe liable for the
acts receipts neglects or defaults of any other
Director. or officeﬁ or for joining in aﬁy receipt
or otﬁer act for conformity or for any loss or
expense happening to the Company through the
insufficiency or.defieiency of t;tle to any
property acquired by order of the Directors for or
on behalf of the Company or fér the insufficiency
or deficiency of any security in or upon which any
of the moneys of the Company shall be invested, for
any loss or damage arising fxom the bankruptcy
insolwvency or tortious act of any person with whom
any moneys securities or effect shall be deposited
or for any loss occasioned by any error of judgment
or oversight on his part or for any loss damage or
misfortune whatever which shall happen in the
execution of the duties of his office in relation

thereto unless. the same happens through his own

dishonesty.
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I .. WITNESS to the above Seals:

- 67 - . .
V0084
N ' THE COMMON SEALS OF : ,
NAMES OF SUBSCRIBERS THE SUBSCRIBERS i
ANSERT TRAMSPORT THE COMMON SEAL of ANSETT j
EﬁpUSTRIES LIMITED TRANSPORT INDUSTRIES LIMITED';
was hereunto affixed in the .
Presence of |
- R.%L. Cooper ]
.......?-....-.... bBiractor
W.F. Franklin '
ceesrrsasrnesnan. Secratar
i
ANSETT TRANéPORT THE COMMON SEAIL of ANSEZTT
INDUSTRIES (OPERATIONS) TRANSPORT INDUSTRIES
PROPRIETARY LLMLTED (OPERA‘I‘IONS) PROPRIETARY
] . ; LIMITED was hercunto
. affixed in the presence
of =
R.L; Cogpexr .. . Director :
F. Pascoe
T s ieecsrssresavuaa. Director
W.F. Franklin .
Tetisasssicseres... Secretary
DATED this 1st day of September 1978.
B. Moss,

11/20 William Street,
Frankston



ompany: 501 SWANSTON STREET PROPRIETARY LIMITED

E:? 0 0 8 f’f; 18-Jun-19%87

ountry:
ncoxrp. Date:

eg. Office:

wuditor:

wuth. Capital:
dfade up of:
Issued Capital:
Ma up of:

Pr . Activity:

Comments:

Directors:

BAUSTRALIA
12.09.78

489 SWANSTON STREET
MELBOURNE VIC 3000

KPMG

$10,000

State: VIC

Reg. No.: C0147677Y
ACN: gos 477 618

4,000 A ORD,4,000 B ORD, 2,000 UNCLASSIFIED ORD

$4

1 A ORDINARY FULLY PAID & 3 B ORDINARY FULLY PAID

TRUSTEE FOR 501 SWANSTON STREET UNIT PROPERTY TRUST

NIL

CHAMBERLAIN, MARK NORMAN
IRVINE, DAVID JAMES

Alternate Directors:

Secretaries:

eholders:

S

NIL

ALLISON, GRAEME CLIFFORD

T AUSTRALIA LIMITED

AN T AUSTRALIA LIMITED

1 BORD paid to $
3 BORD paid to $

Number and type of Shares:

1.00
1.00
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_ AMENDED 2001
/' LAND TAX ASSESSMENT NOTICE

ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

C/- MS SANDRA STARC
501 SWANSTON STREET
MELBOURNE VIC 3000

This notice i§ issued to you on behalf of
The companies set out in the attached statement

PAYMENT METHODS

14

‘ /| Bpay

Please contact your participating
financial institution to make a payment
from your nominated account
(excluding credit cards). You will
need to guote the following:

Biller Code: 5249

(EBPAY

Ref: 22777330

Receipt number:
. Date:

State Revenue Office ABN 44 128 890 975

BY MAIL (CHEQUES ONLY)

Please detach the payment slip and
return it together with your cheque io
the State Revenue Office. Cheques are
to be made out to State Revenue Office
of Victoria and mailed to:

State Revenue Office - Land Tax
PO BOX 2961DD
MELBOURNE VIC 3001

STATE | s
[EEVENUE B

i!lt'l-b!ll

0e08Yy
ISSUE DATE
24 MAY 2001
CLIENT No.
000916236

ASSESSMENT No.
S 024305472

IN PERSON

Present this account intact at any major
bank or at the State Revenue Office.
Insert the amount you are going to pay
in the space provided on the payment
slip.

Banks other than the Bank of
Melbourne may charge a transfer fee.

AMOUNT PAYABLE

e

PAY BY:

7 JUNE 2001

$587,373.55

DAVID POLLARD
Commissioner of State Revenue

% Bank of Melbourne

360 COLLINS STREET MELBOUANE VIC

Banks other than Bank of Melbourne may charge a transfer fee.

tieni Mo DONRLSZEE

Paid in by - Signature

St al T ;}2’;30‘54’72

Telier

I

Note VWhere this deposit Is lodged at s bank ar branch ather than that shown abeve it will be
transferred .under the bank's internal procedures. The bank wili not be held responsible
for dalay in transmission, Cheques etc., not wvallable umll colleceed.

Cheque Detalls - Drawer Bank

Branch

|

P

R

| For CREDIT of State Revenur Ofiice . Vir:téﬁ?_tn_,___'

e P =

®2e?r733

[61]

payment sip (CRE DI T

Date
Deposited

il

Cash

Cheque

$

w® O33amecen LPeDLI0P® B
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[ RevenuE B

i=
505 Little Collins Street Melbourne 3000 . m

ANMENDED 2001 LAND TAX ASSESSMENT NOTIC!

"

ASSESSMENT No.

Statement of Component Companies
024305472

Client No. Name of Company Unimproved Value Amoun.t of Tax

000009487 ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED $5,313,600 $233,827.09
000015404 ANSETT TRANSPORT INDUSTRIES LTD $8,051,760 $354,320.91

000906833 WRIDGWAYS VICTORIA PTY LTD

Total $13,365,360 $588,148.00
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000009487 ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED e

E Land %Qgg j-

505 Little Coliins St

ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED velbourne 3000
&7~ MS SANDRA STARC 9 MARCH 2001 TePsa2s 6312
501 SWANSTON STREET Facsimile

MELBOURNE VIC 3000 . 031 %ﬁiﬂgi?ﬁ
Melbourne 3

Deay sirfMadam

Re: Group or Joint ownership Land Tax Assessment

e) Related corporations and members of joint ownerships are jointly assessed and liable for tax
under Sections 44 or 45 of the Land Tax Act 1958, This means that any cne of the assessed
taxpayers could be required 1o pay the total amount of any assessment in the event of defaull
in payment by the other members of the group of joint ownership.

in prior years, the notice of assessment was served on the first person listed in the group OF
joint ownership. A recent courl decision has clarified that the legislation now requires the
Comrnissioner 1o sefve the notice of assessment ol

A. The person nominated by all the persons under the assessment; or

B. One of the persons (nominated by the Commissioner) named in the assessment, provided
that notice of the service is given {o all other persons named in the assessment; of

C. All persens liable under the assessment.

As this Office has not received a nomination the Commissioner has nominaied you, being
ihe first-listed member of the group or joint ownership, o receive the enclosed Land Tax
Assessment Notice on behalf of the group of joint ownership. Please note that all other

members have been notified that the assessment has been issued 10 you.

A f you wish 10 alter ihis arrangement in respect o future notices please advise this Office \
) immediately.
1f you have any queries regarding the above please call telephone number 96286312, ‘

Yours faithfully

David Pollard
Carpmissioner of Siate Revenue
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Cityof MELBOURNE

ABN 55370 219 287

For the period 1st‘Juiy 2000 to 30th June 2001

Ansett Australia Limited
C/- Property Administrator
Level 6
501 Swanston St
MELBOURNE VIC 3000
A

A\

T ——

00092 18]

Rate Encquiries

tvionday o Friday 7.30am - Gpm
Telephone 03) 9658 9658
Facsimile 03) 9658 9888

Valuation & Rate Notice 2000 2001

Tax Invoice
assessment o, 253468
Date ol issue ZB-AIJQ-Q{;]_ .

46S X

q
4% wwrﬁg

Property \ 465 Swanston Streel, MELBOURNE VIC?DO

. "‘"-—-...________'___ _“-_—___‘________,-—/
Valuations NAY

Vajued as al date

Site Value Capital Improved Yalue Effeciiive date
2,162,000 8,544,000 - 23,740,000 1-Jul-00 i-Jan-00
Ratein $§ 7.9 cems
Details of account. Imporlant: Please read overleaf Amourt GST Tolal
Current Rate ' $170798.00 $0.06  $170798.00
S / g Jso)

Qr) *Toté!:amdi.lnt payable (inc. GST) by 15th Februa_ry 2001 $170798.00 $0.00 $170798.00

OR

$42699.50

First ingfalment payable by 30th September 2000

* Arrears, interest and leyal costs are due immedialely

T\}{Chy of MELBOURNE Payment Options

By mail .
{gi Ci?; of Melthoune Lg

GPO Box 18390 Melbourne 3001 PAY

Biller code: 79616

Relerence No.

/‘i\ﬁ. In person
Melbourne Town Hall

Contact your participating financial
institution 10 make a payment.

10253468

Interest will be c¢harged at 12.3% on all
overdue amounts

7T  Telephone 1300 130 453

» €

Interne! www,maxi.com.su

bankeard, mastercard or visa

7.30am 10 Spm Monday 10 Friday

A3 Direct Debit

i3 To apply for Direct Debit, contact the
City of Melbourne Holline on 8658
9658, Quarterley or monihily
paymems only.

Q

¢ POST

Piease present ihis noticé intact at

any Australia Post oullel
*8?5 08910000000010253468 82

IR BTN

Please print the amount you
are paying in the box below

$
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City of Melbourne V#817724 7

Total Rate% T j 2000-2001
For sites 465/489/50 Swanston St

First Instalment 1/7/00-30/9/0

= amn
-

.= -

$170,798.00

$42,699.50
Building Site

10% $4,269.95

30% $12,809.85

: 60% $25,619.70
t,) ' 100% $42,699.50
——— —_—

INVOICE APPROVAL STICKER

Sap Documem Number

: e N
invoice Date

OCurnens Date)

i P r——

S Vendor Number

]- T m——— ——
&7
f ACCOUNT °

B | company ¢
§ ST | Cooe | COST Cetpe
—t —

TOTAL BEING paIn

CURRENCY.

_ Prepared b N
il BLOCK LeTTERS)
. Signatyre

Form 50-55 o0, e |

324 &
Employee num ber
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Head Office and Registered Office

501 Swanston Street, Melbourne, Australia
Phone: (03) 9623 3333
Postal Address: PO Box 727F, Melboumne, 3001
Wehsite: www.ansett.com.au

Secretary Solicitors " Bankers
Graeme Clifford Allison Allen Allen & Hemsley, Sydney Commonwealth Bank of Australia
Arthur Robinson & Hedderwicks, Melbourme Auditors

Clayton Utz, Brishane & Melbourne KPMG, Chartered Accountants

Board of Directors as at 30 June 1399

Rod Eddington,'Jim McCrea, Ken Cowley, John Curtis, Peter Macourt, Robart Nazarian

Executive Management Team as at 30 fune 1999

Rod Eddington Executive Chairman; Paul Birch Executive General Manager Human Resources;

Pamela Catty Executive General Manager Corporate Affairs; Ron Chambers Chief Information Officer;

David Irvine Chief Financial Officer; TFrevor Jensen Executive Ceneral Manager Operations and Inflight Services;

Garry Kingshott Executive Ceneral Manager Sales and Distribution; Ron Rosallty Executive General Manager Ground Services;
Eyell Strambi Execitive General Manager Business Recovery; Joha Vincent Executive General Manager Engineering;

Craig Wallace Executive General Manager Comumercial Planning and General Manager Ansett internaticnal

Further information about Ansett Australia and its operations can be obtained by visiting the company wobsite: www.ansat

This Annual Review can be read in conjunction with the Ansett Holdings Annuai Accounts 999, which are svaii
Ansett Australia upon request, Please contact Ansett Corporate Affalrs on (03) 9623 3234, This Aﬁ_ﬂ_udi“ﬁ@
alectronically via the Ansett Australla website: www.anseit.com.au L
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This represents more than a
$110 million improvement on last

. | year's figure of $27.8 million

Completing the first year of our Great Business Plan, we returned a trading profit margin of 4.6 percent, exceeding our
target for the year of 3 percent, We have our sights set on 10 percent, and our ultimate goal of becoming not only a
great aitline but also a great business,

Although the results for the year show signs of financial recovery for the business, this does not pre-suppose that the
immediate future offers any comfort. Our performance will be influenced by issues such as the continuing uncertainty of
the global economy, fluctuating ol prices and the effects of currency variations, The airfine industyy is more competitive
than ever and customer demands are increasing. We must also respond to further changes in Australias regulatory
environment, following the Federal Governments consideration of a Productivity Commission enquiry into international
aviation. In general we support deregulation as being in the best interests of our customers and the industry. Another
issue is the new Federal tax regime, and we are working to ensure that the right systems are in place to meéet our
responsibilities with regard to this regime, including the Goods and Services Tax (GST) and its effects on demand.

. Our Great Business Plan comprises a wide range of change projects being implemented under our Business Recovery
Program. One ofthe' key drivers of change is our customer-driven strategy. While continuing to ensure all those who fly
with us receive high quality service, we are identifying those customers who are our most frequent flyers and responding
to their particular needs. We are also looking to strengthen our relationship with our corporate clients. For Ansett, this
custommer-driven strategy reflects a paradigm shift from a regulated airline operator to a service organisation. We are
iooking to leverage the value of our brand in order to build our customer base and achieve long-term sustainable profit

and growth.




“Auiert Holdings Limited Anuwnal Review 1999

Providing true customer service requires us to offer global travel solutions. We moved closer to achieving this aim when,
in March 1999, Ansett Australia was welcomed as a full member of the Star Alliance™ network, the worlds largest global
airline group. '

In addition to joining the Star Alliance™ network, Ansett has formed the Olympic Airline Team, a consortium of eight
major international airlines, to deliver a global service as the official carrier for the Sydney 2000 Olympic Games. We are
. looking forward with enthusiasm to playing a key role in this great event. '

In re-shaping the company, we are maintaining our focus on our core business — aviation. More non-core assets and other
husinesses were divested. We continued to restructure our route network, increasing services on high demand routes,
moving out of those that are unprofitable, and re-positioning the roles of Ansett International and our regional airlines.

The international fleet is being upgraded, with two Boeing 747-400C aircraft replacing the existing B747-300s on routes
between Australia and our key Asian destinations.

The fleet of our major regional airline, Kendell Aérlines, is being significantly increased, facilitating the expansion of
Kendelf's route network. Customers will benefit from fast, comfortable and high frequency jet services.

Anotheér key driver of change is developing the right organisation to enable us to implement our Great Business Plan,
-Reqrganfsation of our management structure is well under way. The comprehensive restructuring is based on improving
'cu'st'o'mer-ser_vice. better meeting the needs of a.dynamic and competitive market, and increasing profitability.

One of Ansetts primary concerns is our people, We are endeavouring to effect major change while preserving this and

other core values of Ansett. A distinguishing factor of our change program is that we are putting in place an

organisational infrastructure that is atigned with people development. The changes we are making to our management
. and staffing structure are facilitated by training, to be supported by a performance development and review process.

Our staff have recognised the need for change and are embracing the change process. | commend them for providing

the support that is gssential for Ansett to meet the challenges ahead and grow as a strong and successful company.

Rod Eddington
Executive Chairman
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GUIDING G OALS

at Ansett, which began in 1997,

has involved changes to

aspect of the business: pro

: All the change projects being implemented have been
stractuve, service and culture. the change projec ng implemenied bave been

developed to help us achieve our corporate goals:

s Safety First

= Sustainable Profit
Satisfied Customers

= Motivated Staff

Responsible Corporate Citizen

Collectively, our corporate goals mean we want to be a company for which safety, profit, custom

staff and community are equ
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GUIDING GCOALS

Provide safe air travel service
for castomers and a

. safe workplace for staff

Ansett Australia’s longstanding commitment to maintaining the highest standards of safety is reflected by one of our
corporate goals: Safety First. The safety committee has board representation and reports directly to the Board on all
aspects of air safety and industrial safaty. The role of the committee has been expanded to report on all code-share
airlines, and a sub-committee has been formed to report on our regional airlines.

Considerable effort is being made to ensure safety continues to be an integral part of company culture. An inaugural
Safety First awareness campaign was developad in conjunction with Professor Patrick Hudsen, one of the worids leading
corporate safety practitioners, and conducted throughout the entire crganisation.

Throughout the year we continued to conduct exercises to test safety and contingency plans, including a major exercise
in preparation for the Sydney 2000 QOlympic Games. The exercise was conducted In conjunction with Federal and State
authorities to ensure the soundness and compatibility of our security procedures.

. The comprehensive compliance audit program established with the Civil Aviation Safety Authority (CASA) is being
applied to all Ansett group airlines, including our regional airlines and all other associated regional airlines. The CASA
program has been expanded to include a pilots exchange scheme, which is now under way.

Quality accreditation continues to be an imperative. Ansett has attained ISO9002 accreditation for its Flight

Operations Department. Flight Despatch, the Flight Plan System Development Group and Qperations Planning also
have 1509002 accreditation.
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A comprehensive review of training program development at Ansett has culminated in the Proficiency Assessment and
Training System (PATS). A process rather than a product, PATS is an essential part of an integrated approach to safety,
standards and training design. PATS is now being applied to all aspects of training program develepment.

The Ansett Milleanium Program is advancing on schedule. This has required a huge investment of staff time, funds and
. involvement in many aviation industry organisations. To ensure Year 2000 readiness, Ansett has followed an
internationaily accepted five-stage methodology with its Miliennium Program,

Ansett has been a key driver in many Y2K industry forums and was a founding member of the {nternational Air Transport
Association's (]ATA) Y2K project. Ansett is also actively sharing information on the Millennium Program with its Star
Alliance™ network partners. Business continuity planning is a major aspect of the Millennium Program and our existing
contingency plans are being reviewed to ensure they cover significant situations that may arise.

During the year, Ansett recelved three awards from the Victorian WorkCover Authority for excellence and innévation in
waorkplace health and safety. The awards are determined by the cost of claims, types of injuries, severity of injuries and
any pro-active approaches that have been instigated. Two of the awards recognise the achievements of our airport
employees in putting the airline’s ‘Safety First' policy Into practice. The third award was for our Flight Altendant

Qccupational Heaith and Safety Program.
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GUIDING G OALS

Sustainable
Profit Create value for sharebolders and
. generate strong and sustainable profits
to invest in future growth

At Ansett Australia, processes and business disciplines have been established that will stand the company in good stead
for the long-term. The year’s results show that the business has the capacity for profit and growth.

The change process is providing us with the flexibility to implement our business strategies. More than 70 ptiority
change projects were agreed upon in addition to those already under way in the Business Recovery Program. These are
being progressively implemented.

Other major events aimed at improving business performance have occurred during the year. We divested more
non-core assets and other businesses, including the Ansett Air Freight doorto-deor divisien and our shareholdings in
Diners Club Limited, Transport Industries Insurance Co, Limited, Carlson Wagonlit Travel Australia and in part Equant NV,

There was further restructuring of the domestic route network 1o ensure that we have the flexibility to meet customer
demand and respond to changing business conditions and competition, Several unprofitable services were discontinued
. and arrangements with regional airlines expanded.

Kendel! Airlines has ordered 12 new state-of-the-art Canadair-Regional Jet Series 200 (CR) 200) aircraft from Bombadier
Aerospace. The 50-seat aircraft are being used to service the airline’s major expansion of its Australian regicnal routes.
The CRJ 200 offers speed, quietness and comfort levels normally associated with much larger aircraft.

Ansett is extending and developing its alliance with Hazelton Airlines in New South Wales to supplement routes not
currently serviced by Ansett, Kendell or Aeropelican. An alliance has also been established with the new Sunshine Coast
airline, Sunshine Express, introducing high-frequency services between Maroochydore and Brisbane.
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In north-west Western Australia and the Northern Territory, an alliance has been formed with Airnorth Regional — the
major regional operator in the Northern Territory — for greater frequency in services covering Darwin, Broome,
Kununurra and Groote Eylandt. '

A code-share arrangement with Ansetts Brisbane-hased commercial partner regional airline, Flight West Airlines, has
been extended. Flights between Cairns and Papua New Guinea have been introduced. Flight West has also intreduced
. services between Sydney and Norfolk Istand to complement existing services from Brisbane.

The Ansett International fleet is beihg upgraded, with the lease of two Boeing 747-400 aircraft from Singapore Airlines,
The B747-400s, equipped with perscnal video screens in every seat, are replacing the two existing B747-300s on routes
between Australia, Hong Kong and Osaka. As well as enhancing the quality of customer service, the new aircraft will
provide operational cost savings.

Ansett International maintained regular services to Hong Kong and Osaka and introduced a third service to Taipei from
Sydney. The service to Shanghai was suspended. However, in response to growing demand, non-stop flights between
Melbourne and Bali have been doubled.

Following the successful introduction of twice weekly services between Sydney and Fiji, a weekly service direct from
Brishane to Nadi has commenced,.

A major code-share arrangement has been formed with All Nippon Airways, and code-sharing with Singapore Airlines

has been extended, resulting in more efficient travel to Singapore, Bangkok, Kuala Lumpur, Frankfurt and London.
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Acquire and retain valued customers
by recognising individual needs and
providing great service

A focus on key customer needs, and responding with services that are profitable, is increasingly evident at Ansett. This
strategy is reinforced by awareness programs, workshops and extensive research into customer needs and expectations.
The extensive redevelopment of the Sydney terminal is largely based on providing our customers with services they vatue.
Check-in and baggage handling are designed for speed and efficiency. Gate lounges are welcoming and comfortable.

Upgrading of the gate lounges and concourses at Melbourne Airport also commenced, providing lighter, brighter and
more spacious customer facilities. A new queue management system was successfully trialed at Melbourne, with
dedicated Queue Management Officers working with Customer Service Officers to minimise check-in time for our
frequent-flying business customers. The initiative has now been introduced at Brisbane and Sydney airports.

New services developed for our corporate clients include a reporting system that allows customers to better manage their
air travel expenditure, and telephone support that provides round-the-clock assistance to business travellers when overseas.

. - Global Rewards tiers have been revised to Diamond, Piatinum and Sapphire. The enhancement of products and services
continues. Global Rewards members have 24-hour access to new online services through Ansetts website, Diamond and
Platinum members now receive fuil Galden Wing Club priviteges. For all members, the Golden Wing Club provides

unparalleted ievels of comfort and convenience, such as international lounge access with Lufthansa, Air Canada, United
Airlines and Air New Zealand.
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Membership of the Global Rewards program grew to 1.5 million during the year, an increase of 24 percent. Membership
of the Golden Wing Club increased to over 155,000, an increase of 15 percent.

During the year, Ansett was welcomed as a full member of the Star Alliance™ network, the world's largest global airline
group. Ansett joins Air Canada, Lufthansa, Scandinavian Airlines System (SAS), Thai Airways International, United
Airlines, Varig Brazilian Airlines and Air New Zealand in the altiance. Japan’s Ail Nippon Airways (ANA} will become a full
member in October 1999, Network activity is expected to boost revenue for Ansett, while other economic benefits will
be gained through joint purchasing and shared use of resources.

Through our membership of the Star Alliance™ network, our customers benefit from greater choice, more efficlent

connections, in terms of both time and ease, and cost savings. Frequent flyer status is honoured whenever a customer

travels with any of the alliance carriers. When ANA becomes a full member in October 1999, the alliance will offer a

worldwide network of more than 760 destinations in over 112 countries, more than 250 lounges and 1,820 aircraft.
. On average, a Star Alliance™ network flight takes off somewhere on the globe every 10 seconds.

The development of these significant international relationships brings us ancther step closer to providing our
customers with a truly global travel solution.

Akt
ANSFTIALETRAL 1L

STAR ALLIANCE ¥,
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Recognise and reward the valuable
contributions of our people and build
a bigh performing team

Achieving our Great Business Plan at Ansett is entirely dependent on the expertise and attitude of our people.
Recognising this, the organisational structure of Ansett is being fundamentally changed, with three aims: to put in place
the right organisation to deliver the business strategy; to support, develop and train our people to deliver the strategy;
and to create a culture that recognises and rewards performance.

Staff have been provided with the opportunity to contribute to this change procass through an Employee Opinion Sunvey,
which has the ultimate objective of achieving maximum staff satisfaction, a key driver of customer satisfaction. Feedback
from the survey will lead to the development of an action plan aimed at enhancing the work environment at Ansett.

At Board levei, a Human Resource (HR} Committee has been estabiished to review the company’s HR philosophy and
broad policies to ensure the company can attract and retain superior management talent through reward, development

and succession planning programs.

The Committee will also ensure the company’s employment practices comply with all statutory requirements as specified
by employment legistation, and are reflective of being a good corporate citizen when henchmarked against other major
Australian companies.

Both this initiative and the Great Business.Plan recognise that Ansett is operating in a highly competitive service industry,
where success is dependent upon people respending to customer needs and dedivering the services they value.

In line with our customerdriven strategy and to build the right organisation to implement and achieve our business
targets, the management structure has been extensively reorganised. Management teams have been formed around the

way we provide services to customers rather than around our business functions.
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Four divisions have been formed based on: designing customerfocused strategies and products; selling the airline’s
products to corporate and individual customers; supporting the products with appropriate ground services at airports;
and providing air services. These four divisions are compiemented by support functions. The divisions and support
functions work together to develop and deliver tailored products and services to our customers,

An intensive recruitment and selection process is being undertaken throughout Ansett to match the right people to the right
. Jobs. The rigorous process is designed to be transparent, and fair to all employees. Mwareness and information programs

about the internal restructuring are being followed by detailed training and development workshops. These are designed

to facilitate change and equip both managers and staff with the skills to defiver long-term sustainable profit and growth.

An example of focusing on the needs of our customers is the program of ‘customer-driven’ workshops aimed at developing ways
to view everyday work actions through the eyes of our customers. The workshops are attended by Ansett managers and staff.
By recognising their needs, we can provide customers with the products and services they really want, in a way that is profitable.

These skill-building programs aimed at estahlishing a performance-driven organisation, are being supported by the
implementation of a comprehensive Performance Development Review Program (PDRP). This system reviews and
ultimately rewards the performance of every Ansett employee. The PDRP will be in place for the first three tiers of
management in the 1999/2000 financial year and progressively rolled out to remaining staff.

Ansett Australia Union Collective Bargaining Agreement 1999 was certified in April. The Agreement makes available 9 percent
worth of pay increases over its three-year term, 6 percent of which is contingent on achievement of labour efficiencies.

The company-wide reorganisation and pecple development processes are re-shaping Ansett as an organisation that is fast
approaching best practice standards.

During the year, a number of awards were won which reflected the skills and dedication of our people and their focus on customer
. satisfaction, Ansett was named Afrline of the Year — for the fifth consecutive year — by the Australian Federation of Travel Agents
at the prestigious National Travel Industry Awards. At the same awards, Traveland was named Travel Agency Group of the Year.

Ansett was ranked second in a global survey assessing customer standards on 67 internationat airfines. The 1998 Business
Traveller Asia Pacific poll of frequent flyers named Ansett among the world’s top three airlines.

Frequent travellers also judged Ansett Australia as the best airline in the 1999 World Business Class Survey conducted by
Inflight Research Services {IRS}. IRS is regarded as the Jeading world expert on airline inflight qualitative analysis. Amongst
long haul international business travellers, Ansett emerged as the clear leader, also taking out the quality awards for the
Best Pacific Airline, the Best Onbeard Catering and the Friendliest Cabin staff.
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Responsible
P Conduct business in an ethically,
Corporate ] .
S socially and environmentally
. Citizen ,.onble way

Uil ¢ llange process being implemented throughout Ansett focuses on examining all aspects of the business that
“wwlnnental to being a responsible corporate citizen. This takes into account our relationship with all our
‘i, including our shareholders, staff, customers, communities near airports and flight paths, suppliers,

Svennenls, authorities and the media

e 1o ensure we conduct our business in a way that builds positive and productive long-term relationships with
taleloleers, with mutually beneficial outcomes.,

o 1w wide-ranging review process, specific activities include further appraisal of our Code of Conduct, Code of
_eud 1 ivironment Policy. The Code of Conduct sets out the standards expected in areas such as equal opportunity
Lmunews dealings. These codes guide the daily work practices of every employee.

i wnimient Policy sets standards aimed at minimising the environmental impact of cur operations. Ansett has signed
e aiclum of Understanding with the Federal Government that commits us to pursue al cost-effective opportunities
. - Lasoin operations to reduce the level of greenhouse gas contributions to the atmosphere. The major contributors are
~d1 el burn and electricity use, which together account for 95 percent of Ansett’s emissions. The aim is to use energy
e wenlly as possible without compromising our service or adversely affecting our work environment.

.« tywrnions Division has established a fuel management group that is developing and implementing fuel-saving
St | he Property Services Divislon has alfocated resources to help identify and impiement opportunities ta lower

Pty lhage.

e ddetailed environmental report can be found on our website www.ansett.com.au
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Ansett Holdings Limited

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Dhraciors” Heport

The directors present their report together with the concise financial report of the consolidated entity, being Ansett Holdings
Limited ("the Company") and its controlled entities, for the year ended 30 June 1999 and the auditors' report thereon.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company who are in office at the date of this report are:

Roderick lan Eddington (49) B.Eng {(Hons), M.Eng.5ci, D.Phil {Oxon)

Appointed Director and Executive Chairman in February 1997, Director and Executive Chatrman of Ansett Australia
Holdings Limited and Ansett Australia Limited since January 1997. Member of Safety and Human Resources Committees.
Director of the News Corporation Limited since September 1999. Deputy Chairman of News Limited since September
1998. Director of News Limited since January 1997, Formerly Managing Director of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited.

James MoCrea (60)

Appointed Director and Deputy Chairman in October 1996. Director of Ansett Austraiia Holdings Limited and Ansett
International Limited since October 1996, Managing Director and Chief Executive of Air New Zealand Limited. Member
of the New Zealand Tourism Board.

Kenneth Edward Cowley AO {64)

Appeinted Director in 1994 {formerly Executive Chairman 1994 - 1997). Director of Ansett Australia Holdings Limited since
1988 (formerly Executive Chairman 1992 - 1997). Director of Ansett Australia Limited since 1992. Chairman and Director
of Ansett International Limited since 1993. Chairman of Safety Committee. Formerly Director of News Limited 1978 - 1997,
Managing Director 1980 - 1997 and Executive Chairman 1992 - 1997, Director of Independent Newspapers Limited since
1990. Director of The News Corporation Limited since 1979. Chairman of R.M. Williams Holdings Limited since 1994,
Chairman of PMP Communications Limited since 1991, Director of Commonweaith Bank of Australia since 1997,

John Simon Curtis (49) LLB (Hons) BA

Appointed Director in May 1998, Director of Ansett Australia Holdings Limited since May 1998. Chairman of Human
Resources Committee. Chairman of Allianz Australia Limited, Rothmans Holdings Ltd, Anglian Water international
Australia Limited, St Hilliers Pty Ltd and First Data Resources Australia Advisory Committee and Caiiburn Partnership Pty
Ltd (associated with The Lazard Houses), Director of Air New Zealand Limited, Australian Technology Group Limited,
Perpetual Trustees Australia Ltd, Stadium Australia Management Ltd and St George Bank Limited.

Peter John Macourt (43) B.Comm, CA

Appointed Director in October 1996 (formerly Alternate Director for Messrs Cowley and Cleary 1994 - 1996). Director
of Ansett Australia Holdings Limited since Qctober 1996 (fermerly Alternate Director for Messrs Cowley and Cleary
1991 - 1996). Alternate Director of Ansett International Limited for Mr Cowley since June 1996. Member of Audit and
Human Resources Committees. Deputy Chief Executive Officer of News Limited since September 1998, Director and
Chief Financial Officer of News Limited since 1994. Director of AAP Information Services Pty Limited since May 1996,
Director of Foxtel Management Pty Limited since January 1998.

Robert Harry Nazarian (48) B.Ec, MBA (Han/), CPA

Appointed Director in Qctober 1996. Director of Ansett Australia Holdings Limited and Alternate Director of Ansett
International Limited for Mr McCrea since October 1996, Member of Audit Committee. Executive Vice-President and
Chief Financial Officer of Florida East Coast industries.Inc since July 1999, Formerly Chief Financial Officer of Air New
Zealand Limited (1995-1998). Formerly Treasurer of Northwest Airlines Corporation (1998-1939).
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Ansett Holdings Limited

AND iTS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

independent Audit Report on Concise Financial Report
te the Members of Ansett Holdings Limited

Scope

We have audited the concise financial report of Ansett Holdings Limited and its controlled entities for the financial year
ended 30 June 1999, as set out on pages 28 to 33, in order to express an opinion on it to the members of the Company.
The Company's directors are responsible for the concise financial report.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance
whether the concise financial report is. free of material misstatement. We have also performed an independent audit of
the full financial report of Ansett Holdings Limited and its controlled entities for the year ended 30 June 1999, Cur audit
report on the full financial report was signec on 29th September 1999, and was not subject to any qualification,

Qur procedures in respect of the audit of the concise financial report inchuded testing that the information in the concise

. financiat report is consistent with the full financiai report and examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the
amounts, discussion and analysis, and other disclosures which were not directly derived from the full financial report.
These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all material respects, the concise financial report
is presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 1039 "Concise Financial Reports”.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

Audit Opinion

tn our opinion, the cencise financial report of Ansett Holdings Limited and its controlled entities for the year ended 30
June 1999 complies with AASB 1039 "Concise Financial Reports”.

heng

KPMG
Chartered Accountants

Melbourne 5 J LESLIE
29th September 1999 . Partner
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Ansett Holdings Limited

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Uirectors’ Declaration

in the opinion of the directors of Ansett Holdings Limited the accompanying concise financial report of the
consolidated entity, comprising Ansett Holdings Limited and its controlled entities for the year ended 30 June 1999,
set out on pages 28 to 33:

a) has been derived from or is consistent with the full financial report for the financial year; and
b} complies with Accounting Standard AASE 1039 "Concise Financial Reports".

Dated at Melbourne this 29th day of September 1999,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

R | Eddington J McCrea
Director Director
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Ansett Holdings Limited

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Performance
for the vear ended 30 june 1999

The Ansett Group achieved an operating profit after tax of $156.8 million (1998: $29.5 million). Included within this
ameunt is a net abnormal profit of $52.8 million (1998: $22.5 million). The abnormal items principally refate to:

» The Ansett Group’ strategy of focusing on core operations, which resuited in the disposal of certain non-core assets.
= Write down of the carrying value of certain assets to more accurately reflect their realisable value,

Operating profit before abnormal itemns and tax amounted to $147.6 million {1998: $59.8 million). This improvement in
performance was predominantly due to a general improvement in trading and operating efficiencies arising from our

. change program:

= Ansett Australia, the core domestic airline, reported an improved result for the current financial year. Net passenger
revenue was 3.8% higher than the prior year, Although passengers uplified only increased by 0.3%, the improvement in
net passenger revenue was achieved from improved yields and a 3.8 point improvement in load factors. This arose mainly
from renewed strength in business related travel and business initiatives. :

= A decrease in direct costs such as fuel and air navigation charges resulting from a reduction in activity,

= Ansett international Limited, an associated company, substantially reduced its operating lass from the previous vear, due
to the suspension of services to unprofitable routes. ’

« Net interest expense reduced by 22%.
A profit margin of 4.6% was achieved (1398: 1.75%). Our long-term goal is to achieve a profit margin of 10%.

Shareholder’s equity improved by 30% to $697.4 million from the previcus financial vear. This improvement reflects the
Ansett Group’s profit performance during the current financial year and the results from asset sales included in abnormal items.

Total assets of the Group have decreased by 11%. This is largely attributable to the sale of non-core assets, and the write
down of assets to their recoverable amounts.

Return on assets (Earnings before Interest and Tax/Total Assets) of 6.3% was achieved (1998: 4.0%). Our fong-term: goal is
to achieve a return on assets of 10%,

Net deht has reduced by 36% to $817.4 million. This reduction in net debt has primarily arisen from profitable trading and
. the proceeds received on the sale of non-core assets. As a result the net debt to equity ratio improved to 54% (1998: 70%).

Increase in operating cashflows has largely arisen from the improved profit performance, as well as improved controls over
the collection of trade debtors and payment of trade creditors.

Payments for property, plant and equipment include capital expenditure made in respect of the Sydney
Terminat redevelopment. '

Repayments of borrowings and payment of related interest was in accordance with contractual agreements entered into
with third parties.
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Ansett Holdings Limited

AND 1TSS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

CONSOLIDATED
1999 1998
$'000 $'000

REVENUE 3,511,269 3,505,407

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE
ABNORMAL ITEMS AND INCOME TAX 147,595 58,759

Abnormal items 52,777 22,451

Operating profit before income tax 200,372 82,210
Income tax expense attributable to operating profit (41,244) (49,862)

Operating profit after income tax 159,128 32,348
Outside equity interest in operating profit (2,287} (2,819

OPERATING PROFIT AFTER INCOME TAX
ATTRIBUTABLE TO MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY 156,841

Accumulated losses at the beginning of the financial year . {184,946) 68,147}
Aggregate of amounts transferréd from reserves 3,426 {116,092}
TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION . {24,679) (154,710
Less appropriations

Aggregate of amounts transferred to reserves (10;952)

ACCUMULATED LOS5ES AT THE
END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR (13,727) (184,946}

The profit and loss statement is to be read in conjunction with the discussion and analysis on page 28 and the
accompanying notes {0 the financial staterments,




Ansett Holdings Limited Anniual Review [999

Ansett Holdings Limited

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

CONSOEIDATED
1999 1998
$'000 $'000

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash 497,404 517,036
Receivables 503,424 715,909
Inventories 44,603 40,320
Other 54,713 62,034
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,100,144 1,335,299

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables 56,027 111,749
investments 4,156 28,233
Property, plant and equipment 2,407,055 2,449,565
Other 121,714 220,242
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 2,588,952 2,809,789
TOTAL ASSETS 3,689,096 4,145,088

CURRENT LSARILITIES '

Accounts payable 858,337 1,012,354
Borrowings 368,699 419,148
Provisions 189,982 217,5G4
Other . 1,962 14,789
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,418,980 1,663,895

MNON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 188,134 163,843
Borrowings ) 946,085 1,367,506
Provisions : 437,997 408,738
Other 465 3,827
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,572,681 1,943,915
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,991,661 3,607,810

NET ASSETS 657,435 537,278

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Share capital 625,817 50,116
Reserves N 83,948 656,244
Accumulated losses (13,727} {184,946}
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ATTRIBUTAELE TQ MEMBERS OF THE COMPANY 696,038 521,414

Cutside equity interests in controlied entities 1,297 15,864
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 697,435 537,278

The balance sheet is to be read in conjunction with the discussion and analysis on page 28 and the accompanying notes
to the financial statements.




CASH FLOWS FROM COPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts in the course of operations

Cash payments in the course of operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FRROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dlvidends received

Interast received

Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payments for investments in controlled entities
Net proceeds on the disposal of controlled entities
Loans to associated companies

Loans from associated companies

Repayment of loans to associated companies
Repayment of joans by associated companies
Loan repayments by other associates

Proceeds from sale of non-current assets

Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowing costs paid

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Lease drawdowns

Lease payments

Net cash used in financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD

CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Cash balances in controlled entities disposed of during the year

CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

CONSOLIDATED

1999 1958
$'000 $'000
3,300,823 3,350,515
{2,730,719) (2,888,348)
(11,052) (2,253
559,052 459,914
3,059 4,397
42,301 38,838
(194,947) (202,185
- (6,390)
109,839 47,263
- {41,984}
- 62,971
(75,026) -
- 3,028 -
1,030 3,458
73,807 99,993
(36,899) 6,362
{125,736) (135,790
' 61,262 166,359
{282,271) (198,291)
10,720 6,349
{154,439) (73,988)
{490,464) (235,261)
31,689 230,915
513,921 283,006
(48,206)
497,404 513,021
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Ansett Holdings Limited

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Notes to the Concise Financial Stalamenss
at 30 june 1999

1. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONCISE FINANCIAL REPORT

The concise financial report has been prepared in accordance with Corporations Law, Accounting Standard AASB

1039 "Concise Financial Reports” and applicable Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views. The financial statements

and specific disclosures required by AASB 1039 have been derived from the consolidated entity’s full financial

report for the financial year. Other information included in the concise financial report is consistent with the

consolidated entitys full financial report. The concise financial report does not, and cannot be expected to,

provide as full an understanding of the financial performance, financial position and financing and investing
. activities of the consolidated entity as the full financial report.

It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and does not take into account changing money values or,
except where stated, current valuations of non current assets.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by each entity in the consolidated entity and, except
where there is a change in accounting policy, are consistent with those of the previous year.

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to achieve consistency in disclosure with current
financial year amounts and other disclosures.

CONSOLIDATED

1999 1998
57000 - $'000
2. REVENUE
Revenue from operating activities:
Rendering of services 3,275,419 3,287,041
Interest:
related parties i 2,697 3,233
other parties 39,604 35,606
Aircraft refinancing gains - 11,995
Net foreign exchange gain - 20,276

Revenue from outside operating activities:
. Gross proceeds from sale of controlled entities and non-current assets 193,549 147,256

3,511,269 3,505,407

3.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The details and estimated maximum amounts of contingent liabilities
that may become payable are set out below. The directors are not aware
- of any circumstance or information which would lead them to believe
that these liabilities will crystallise and conseguently no provisions are
included in the financial statements in respect of these matters.

Unsecured guarantees
Other corporations . 2,055,871 2,353,002

Included is an amount of $1,876,147,0600 (1998 $2,218,398,000) relating to the guarantee of other entities’
{Ansett Worldwide Aviation Limited and Ansett Worldwide Aviation USA) commitments under long term aircraft
leasing arrangements. The amount shown is the maximum liability that the consolidated entity could be called
upon to pay. However, the directors consider that this contingent liabifity is significantly hedged by the underlying
value of aitcraft under fease. Also included is an amount of $135,221,000 {1998: $63,934,000) for operating
lease commitments relating to aircraft of certain associates and $44,502,000 (1998: $70,670,000) for the
guarantee of creditors, other operating lease commitments and bank guarantees of certain associates.

Litigation

The consolidated entity is involved in various cfaims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business, none
of which is expected to have a significant effect upon its operating results or financial position.




4.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors

Total income paid or payable or othenwise
made available, to all directors of the
Company and controlled entities, from the
Company or any related party:

The number of directors of the Company
whose income from the Company or
any related party falls within the
following bands:

$0 - 39,999
340,000 - 349,999
$50,000 - $59,999
$100,000 - $109,999

$770,000 - $779,999
$790,000 - $799,999

Directors' income includes amounts paid
by the consclidated entity during the year
to indemnify directors and an allocation of
insurance premiums paid by the
consolidated entity in respect of Directors'
and Officers’ Liabilities and Legal Expenses
insurance contracts, in accordance with
common commercial practice.

Other Employees

The table below sets out the number of
individuals, excluding those whe have
retired or resigned during the year, in each
employment category whose total
remuneration for the financial year fell into
the following ranges:

$100,000 - $1%9,999
$120,000 - $139,989
$140,000 - $159,999
$160,000 - $179,999
$180,000 - $199,999
$200,000 - $219,999
$220,000 - $239,999
$240,000 - $259,999
$260,000 - $279,999
$300,000 - $319,000
$320,000 - £339,000
$340,000 - $359,000
$380,000 - $399,000
$420,000 - $439,000

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A

CONSOLIDATED

ND TS CONTROLLED
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Ansett Holdings Limited

ENTITIES

THE COMPANY
1999 1998 1999 1998
$'000 $'000 $000 $'000
5,263 3,809 1,004 925
2 4
1 1
1 -
1 1
- 1
1 -
CONSOQLIDATED
Pilots and
Managers Flight Engineers Other

59 76 81
43 248 74
19 84 22
20 35 4
6 75 -
2 172 -
6 101 -
2 33 -
4 6 -
2 - -
4 - R
2 R R

4 -
2 - -

The consolidated entity operates predominantly within the transport industry in Australasia.

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid or proposed in the current or prior financial years.

L
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Group structure

as at 30 June 19995

AIR NEW ZEALAND LIMITED THE NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED

ANSETT HOLDINGS
TLIMITED -

100%

Anseti Australia .
Kendell Ailines
. ~ Skywest Airlines _
Aeropelican Afr S.ervices
Ansett Australia Car.'go _
Ansett International Air Freigh

Ansett Aircraft Spares
and Services

-Travetand.
Show Group

Australian Concessuons
Managemem -

AUSTRALIAN . ANSETT INTERNATIONAL
INSTITUTIONS _ Ll MITED




AIRCRAFT

Anseit Australia

‘Boeing 767-200
Airbus A320-200
Boeing 737-300
BAe 146-300
BAe 146-200
Fokker F28-4000
BAe 146-200QC
Fokker 5¢ °

Ansett Air Freight

Boeing 727-200F
BAe 146-200QT7
Fokker F27

Ansett International

Boeing 747-300°
Boeing 767-300ER
Boeing 767-200ER

Ansett Regional Airlines

Saab 340A

Saab 340B
Fairchild Metro 23
BAe Jetstream 31
DHC-6 Twin Otter

* These aircraft replaced by B747-400s in August and September 1999,
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ENGINE PASSENGERS

CF6-804A
CFM56-5-A1
CFM56-3-B1
ALFSG2-R5
ALF50Q2-R5

Rolls Royce RB1§
ALF502-R5
PWI1258

JT8D-15
ALF502-R5
Rolls Rayce Dart

JTSD-7R4G2
CF6-B0C2B6F
CF6-80A

GE-CT7-5A
GE-CT7-9B
TPE-331-12
TPE-331-10
PT6-27

00128

fnsei fieet

as at 30 june 1988

IN QPERATION ON LEASE TO

OTHER CARRIERS

* 12 CRJ-200 aircraft are currently on order for delivery over the next three years. Options exist for the delivery
of a further 12 beyond this period.
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Route network
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el Aorlab oF v Sydney 2060 Dtymph: Carne

Siar Alllance™ nelwork

We would like to thank our staff, who have recognised the need for change at Ansett, and have worked hard towards helping Ansett become a Great Airline
and a Bettar Business. Our success is a reflection of their ongelng commitment and support.

We would also like to thank the following staff members for giving up thelr time to appear in this Annual Review:

Jodie Fraser Customer Service Officer, Sydney; Marty McBonald Lounge Porter, Sydney; Roslyn McKenzie Damestic Flight Attendant;

Catherine Devine Reservations Sales Agent, Launceston; Angela Scott Reservations 5ales Agent, Launceston;

Kelly Nicholas Reservations Sales Agent, Launceston; Jacgueline Manson Reservations Sales Agent, Launceston;

Carolyn Scott Reservations Sales Agent, Launceston; Paul Robinson Raservations Sales Agent, Launceston;

Debbie Snooks Reservations Sales Agent, Launceston; Bianca Badoock Reservations Sales Agent, Launceston;

Kevin Bowd Raservations Sales Agent, Launcestoh; Roban Lane Aircraft Mechanic, Engine Overhaul, Melbourne;

Shane Fisher Aircraft Mechanic, Engina Overhaul, Melbourne; Warren Fridell Aircraft Mechanic, Engine Overhaul, Melbourne,

Allan Melville Aircraft Mechanic, Engine Overhaul, Melbourne; Tim Matterson Aircraft Mechanic Apprentice, Englne Overbaul, Molboume;

Angela Belegrinas Customer Service Officer, Melbouwrne Golden Wing Lounge; Caroline Caruana Customer Senvice Officer, Melbourng Golden Wing Lounge.

DESIGNED BY MALPASS & BURROWS  PRINCIPAL PHOTOGRAPHY BY JAMES LAURITZ ~ WRITTEN BY DAVID WEBSTER
FGRM No. 12-50




U0ty

ANSETTAUSTRALIA

4
A STAR ALLIANCE WMEMBER "‘: -




ANSETT AUSTRALFA T IMTTED
ACN. 004 20 410

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

30 JUNE 1999

INDEX

Page
Directors' Report _
Independent Auditors' Report.
Directors Declaration
Profit and Loss Account

Balance Sheet
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements

60 ~] O Lh o LD e

00132




00133
ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

+

The ditectors present their report together with the financial statements of Ansett Australia Limited (*the Company") for the year ended 30
June 1999 and the auditors' report thercon.

DIREC GRS

The directors of the Company at any time duting or since the financial year are;
K.E. Cowley, A.O.

R, Eddington

C.A. Wallace
D.k Trvine

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activitics of the Company d_uring the course of the financial year were airline passenger and freight services.
RESULT
. The Company’s operatians for the financial year resufted in an operating profit afier income tax of $182,818,000 (1998 loss: $97,051,000)
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Included within the 1999 operating profit-after tax was a net abnormal profit of $40.1millien {1998 abnormal loss: $84.9 million). The
abnormal items principally relate {0 gains on the disposal of non-core assets and writedowns in relation to the aircraft fleet.

The improvement in performance for the year was in line with expectations and was predominantly dve to a general improvement in trading
and operating efficiencies. Net passenger revenue has improved due to renewed strength in business related travel and business initiatives,

STATE OF AEFAIRS

As part of the Company’s strategy of focusing on its core operations, the company dzspoch of its door to door freight business during the
financial year.

Ir: the opinion of the Directors there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company that occurred durmg the
financial year under review.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE
The directors are not aware of any matter or circurnstance not otherwise dealt with in the financial statements that has significantly affected

or may significantly atfect the operations of the Company, the resuits of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company in
subsequent financial years.

. LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

Information as te the likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of those operations in subsequent
financial years has not been included in this report because the directors beiieve, on reasonable grounds, that to include such information
would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company.




ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

ENVIRONMENT

The operations of the Company are subject to sigrificant environmental regulation under both Commonwealth and State legislation, In
pamcular thc A|rpon {Envirgnmental Protection) Reguiations 1997 and specific State tewislation, |~m spocificatlv preclidad hey i

Mk Soadabyian, affect abrcraft operations, maintenance i stlay oo : .

-

gl FEat

: used to tdentl!y any risk of breaching environmental legislation, Any identiticd pctemml breach W tr\uussed wuh the relcvant anthorlty to

ensure a satisfactory solution is rcachcd -

Environmental risk is also addressed through the development of management plans and delivery of compliance training. Ansett is
currently implementing its National Spill Response Strategy aimed at ensuring that spill response techniques are consisteat across all Ansett
operations. Other management plans have been introduced atAnseit’s maintenance and engineering facilities focused on minimising the
environmental risk associated with Ansett’s key engineering activities such as washing aircraft,

Overall, environmental risk has been managed through an Execotive Environmental Steering Committee. [t has now been determined that
environmental risk will be managed, with other company risk, through an Executive Compliance Committee.

To the directors knowledge, there have been no significant breaches of relevant legislation,
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND BENEFITS

No director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit {other than a benetit included in the aggregate amount of
remuneration received or due to be received by directors, as shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the
Company or a related body corparate, with any director or with a firm of which any director is a member or with an entity in which any
director has a substantial financial interest,

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

The Company has an agreement indemmifying ali the directors and officers of the Company against all liabilities to another person (other
than the Company or a related body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors and officers of the Company, except where the
liability arises out of conduct involving lack of good faith. The agreement stipuiates that the Company will meet the full amount of any
such liabilities, inciuding costs and expenses.

Since the end of the previous financial year the parent entity has paid insurance premiums of $153,275 in respect of Directors’ and Officers’
Liability and Legal Expenses insurance contracts, for current and former officers, including executive officers of the Company. This policy
insures against all liabitities and expenses arising as a result of work performed in the respective capacity of the person, to the extent”
permitted by the law.

ROUNDING

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/100 dated 10 Juty 1998 and in accordance with that Class Order, amounts in
the financial report and directots report have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated,

This report is signed for and on behalf of the directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directorshis &13\" day of
October 1999, at LTIV RN

Direetor Director

-2-
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TG THE MEMBRRSOF -~~~ - =~
ANSETT AUSTRALLA LAMIEL bk :

Seupe

We have audited the financial report of Ansett Australia Limited for the fmancist yew caded 30 June 1999, being a special purpose
financial report cansisting of the profit and toss statement, balance sheet, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes, and the directors’
declaration set out on pages 4 to 24. The Company's directors are responsible for the financial statements, The Directors have determined
that the accounting poficics used and described in Note 1 to the financial reports are appropriate to meet the requirements of the
Corporations Law and the needs ot the members. We have conducted an independent audit of these financial statements in order to express
an opinion on them to the members of the Company. Ne opinion is expressed whether the accounting policies used, and described in Note
L, are appropriate to the needs of the members.

The financial reports have been prepared for distribution 1o members for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of the Corporations Law,
We disclaim any assumption of responsibitity for any reliance on this repert, or on the financial reporis to which it relates, to any person
other than members, or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, Qur procedures included examination, on a test basis, of

. evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in the financial reports, and the evaluation of significant accounting estimates.
These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in all material respects, the financial statements are presented fairly in
accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 1 to the financial statements. These pelicies do not require the application of all
Accounting Standards nor other mandatery professional teporting requiremients.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been forimed on the above basis.

Audit Opinion

In our opirion, the financial report of Ansett Australia Limited ts in accordance with:
(&) the Corporations Law, including:

i} giving a true and fair view, in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements,
of the Company’s financial position as at 30 June 1999 and of its performance, as represented by the results of its
operations and its cash flows, for the year ended on that date; and

i) complying with AASB 1025 Application of the Reporting Eatity Concept and Other Amendments”, AASB 1034
“Information to be Disclosed in Financial Reports™, other Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1,

and the Corporations Regulations; and

(b} other mandatory professional reporting requirements to the extent described in Note 1 to the financial statements,

HWPMY

KEMG
Chartered Accountants

PEM fonan .
Melbourne P McDonald
L1327 Otdabea 1999 . Partner
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

S e DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION . -
. .
In the opinion of the directors of Anseti Austratia Limited:
l. {a) the company is not a reporting éntily;
(b} the financial statements and notes, sel out on pages 5 (o 24, wre in awwordance with the Corporations Law, incinding;
{i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 1999 and of its
perlormance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows, for the year ended on that

date in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Nete 1; and

(ii} complying with Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note 1 and the Corporations Regulations;
and

(c) there are reasonable grounds to beiieve that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable.

. Dated at Mclbourne this ;)\"‘ day of October 1999,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Director Director




ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS- STATEMENT -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3¢ JUNE 1999

Noie e Y

OPERATING REVENUE 3,116,213 © 3,155,225
QPERATING PROFITALOSS) BEFORE
ABNORMAL ITEMS AND INCOME TAX 2 205,120 (10,169
Abnormal items 3 46,134 (84,352)
Operating profit/(loss) before income tax 245,254 (95,021)
Income tax (expense}benefit atiributable to

. operating profit 4 (62,436) (2,030)
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER INCOME TAX 182,818 97,051)
Accumulated losses at the .
begimming of the financial year (300,432} {86,371)
Aggregate of amounts transferred from reserves . 16 4,052 {117,01%)
ACCUMULATED LOSSES
AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR (113,562) (300,432)

The profit and loss account is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

5.
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

T BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 JUNE 1999

Note $000 $000

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash : 56,979 31,803
Receivables 5 446,601 479,173
Inventories 7 23,633 19,567
Other 9 3,037 1,141
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 532,250 531,684
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables 5 6,500 6972
Investnients 6 . 1,023 1,085
. Property, plant and equipment 8 ~4~1,899,880 1,916,540
Gther g 25,073 4 909
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 1,932,476 1,926 506
TOTAL ASSETS 2,464,726 2,464,190
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 10 844,890 819,928
Borrowings 1t 02,846 79,105
Provisions 13 228,026 169.526
Other 14 612 1,648
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,166,374 1,070,247
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 10 92,778 73,683
Borrowings 11 927,178 1,247 401
Provisions 13 259,692 230,847
Other : 14 465 3,827
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,280,113 1,555,758
TOTAL LIABELITIES 2,446,487 2,626,005
NET ASSETS 18,23% {164,815}
. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Share capital 15 3,000 3,000
Reserves 16 128,801 132,617
Accumulated Yosses {113,562) (300,432)
TOTAL SHAREHCLDERS' EQUITY/DEFICIENCY) 18,239 (164,815}

The balance sheet is 1o be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

.




ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

STATEMENT-OF CASH FLOWS - -~ = o .

‘ FOR THE YEAR ENDED 36 JURNE 1999

Noie B LUy B Wi

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts in the course of operations 2992,058 3,029,719

Cash payments in the course of operations (2,536,211} (2,620,390}
Net cash provided by operating activities 22 455,847 409,325

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received - 400
Interest received 366 457
Payments for property, plant and equipment (149,018) (261,160)
Loans made to associated companies (13,803) (69,695)
.' Amounts paid to conirclled entities {3,111) 3,659
Net advances (to)/from related bodies corporate (31,040) 71,230
Loan repayments by dircctors and officers - 313
Proceeds from sale of non current assets 64,749 162,004
Net cash vsed in investing activities {131,859 (92,402)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACT lVITIES
Borrowing costs paid {70,199) (86,677)
Proceeds from borrowings - 126,932
Repayment of borrowiangs {57.808) {30,444}
Amounts received/(repaid)} on loan from parent entity (135,231) (269,741)
Lease payments (21,980) (33,301)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities . ) {285,218) {293,231)
NET INCREASE IN CASH HELD 38,770 23,696
CASH AT THE BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 22 18,209 (5,487}
CASH AT TEE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR . 22 56,979 18,209
. The Statement of Cashflows is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements,
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

‘NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICEES
The sipnificant pobefvs which have been ndonted fa i g
Basis of Preparation

The financial reportss of the Company are a special purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance
with Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views, other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting $tandards Board and the Corporations Law.

it has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and does not take into account changing money values or except
where stated, current valvations of non current assets,

The directors are of the view that the Companty is not a reporting entity. These financial statements have been prepared

as a special purpose financial report solely to meet the Corporations Law requirements to prepare financial statements.

tn the opinion of the Directors, the accounting standards applied in the preparation of these financial statements are -
appropriate to meet the needs of the members, and comply with all accounting standards applicable to general purpose
financial statements, except for:

- AASB 1033 * Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Instruments™
- AASB 1017 * Related Party Disclosures”
- AASB 1028 * Accounting for Employee Entitlements™ in respect of certain disclosures.

Other than non-compliance with the above standards, the Accounting Standards have been consistently applied by the
compary, and except where there is a change in accounting policy, are consistent with those of the previous year.

Receivables

Trade Pebtors

Teade debtors are carricd at nominal amounts due less any provision for doubtful debts. A provision for doubtful debts
is recagnised when collection of the full nominal amount is no longer probable.

Inventories

Inventories and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based onthe
weighted average cost principle. Other stacks and stores are valued at cost and provision is made for any diminution in
value.

Deferred Expenditure
Material items of expenditure are deferred to the extent that management consider that it is probable that future

cconomic benefits embodied in the asset will eventuate and can be measured reliably, Deterred expenditure is
amortised over the period in which the relfated benefits are expected to be realised.

Non Current Assels

The carrving amounts of all non cutrent assets are reviewed to determine whether they are in excess of their
recoverable amount at balance date. Where the carrying amount of anon current asset exceeds the recoverable
amount, the asset is written down 1o the lower amount.

In assessing tecoverable amounts of non enmrent assets, the relevant cash flows have not been discounted to their
present valug, except where specifically stated.

Certain non current assets have been revalued. With the exception of land and buildings, such revaluations oceur from
time ta time and arg not made in accordance with a policy of regular revaluation.

0140
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999

+

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments

Coniaiicd Suidiies

[nvestments in controlled entities comprise shares held inand non current advauces w0 twse controlled entities.
Shares held are shown in the Company's financial statements at cost or valuztion adjusted for any provision for
diminution. Dividends from controfled entities are accounted for on adividend received basis in the Company’s
financial statements.

Associated Companies

An associated company is one in which the economic entity exercises significant influence and where the investment in
that entity has not been acquired with a view to dispesal in the near future.

Investments in associated companies comprise shares held in and advances to those associated companies. Investments
in associated companies are carried al the lower of cost and recoverable amount. Dividends are brought to account as
they are received in the Company’s financial statements,

Other Companies

Other investments are shown at cost unless otherwise noted. A provision for diminution in vatue of investments is
created to account for any reduction in their valuation, Dividends are brought to account as they are received

Income Tax
The company adopts the liability method of tax effect accounting.

Income tax expense or benefit is calculated on operating profit or loss adjusted for permanent differences between taxable
and accounting income. The tax effect of timing differences, which arise from items being brought to account in different
periads for income tax and accounting purposes, is carried forward in the balance sheet as-a future income tax bensfit or a
provision for deferred income tax. - .

Furture income tax benefits are not brought to account untess realisation of the asset is assured beyond reasonable doubt.
Future income tax benefits relating to entities with tax losses are oaly brought to account when their realisation is
virtually certain, The tax effect of capitaf losses is not recorded unless realisation is virtually cestain.




ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Propecty, Plant and Bquipment

Acquisition

[tems of property, plant and equipment are initiaily recorded at cost and depreci-ated as outlined below.

Revaluations

Certain fixed assets shown in the financial statements have been revaiued at various times as indicated (Refer Note 8).

A provision for capital gains tax is only provided when it is known that the asset will eventualiy be sold.

Disposal of Revalued Assets

The gain or loss on disposal of revalued assets is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the assets
at the time of disposal and the proceeds on disposal and is included in the result for the year of disposal. Any related
revaluation increment or decrement relating to the disposed assets standing in the asset revaiuation reserve at the time of
disposal is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation

tems of property, plant and equipment, including buildings and leasehold property. but excluding freehold land, are
depreciated over the expected useful life, generally using the straight line method of depreciation.

The depreciation rates used for each class of assets are as follows:

Freehold buildings 2.5%
Leaschold buildings ' 5,5%
Aircratt, engines and spares (owned and leased} 4%

Plant and equipment {owned and leased) S 15%

Depreciation rates are reviewed annually and if necessary, adjusted so that they will reflect the most recent assessments
of the useful lives of the respective assets.

Leased Plant and Equipment

Leases of plant and equipment under which the economic entity assumes substantialty all of therisks and benefits
incidental to ownesship ate classified as finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating teases.

Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and liability equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments,
excluding executory costs, are recorded at the inception of the lease. Lease liabilities are reduced by payments of principal.
The interest component of the lease payment is charged to the profit and loss account. Capitalised lease assets are amortised

on a straight line basis against the income of the accounting periods which are expected 10 henefit from their use over the
term of the relevant lease, or where it is likely that the Company will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset.
Minimum lease payments made under operating leases are charged against profits in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term.

Derivatives

The company is exposed to changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices from its activities. It is group
policy to use derivative financial instruments to hedge these risks. It is group policy not to enter, held or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes.

Foreign Currency Hedges
Where hedge transactions arc designed 10 hedge the purchase or sale of goods and services, any unrealised exchange gains and

losses on the contracts, together with any costs or gains arising at the time of entering inte the hedge are deferred until matority
of the hedge transaction and included in the measurement of the underlying sale or purchase transaction.

-10-




ANSETT AUSTRALEA LENMIEEL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (contiiucd)
Derivatives (continued)

All non specific hedge transactions are fmitially mmde Al il _.;.;-f A R T
balance date are ransktud at de ey o Gudage AR ¢ | -

profit and loss account. Costs or gains arising at the t!mc of uucnn[, e lhc ln,uge are delemd and amomsed over the Ilfe of
the hedge. All contracts that are hedging principal repaymenis of borrowing’s are treated as nion specific hedges,

Accounts payable
Trade Creditors and Accruals

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goeds and services recetved, whether or not billed to the
Comipany.

Frequent Flyer Liability

The obligation to provide travel rewards and other benefits to members of Ansett’s frequent flyer program is progressively
provided for as points are accumulated by members.

The provision is reduced to reflect the value of points redeemed by members and the expiration of unused points.
Related [Marty Loans

Loans fron: related parties are carried at the principal amount. [nterest is taken up as an expense on an accrual basis.
Bank Overdrait and Bank Loans

The bank overdrafts and loans are carried at the principal amount. Interest on bank overdrafts is charged as an expense as
incutred. Interest on bank loans is charged as an expense on an accrual basis.

Employce Entitlements

Wages, Salaries and Annual Leave

The provisions for employee entitlements to wages, salaries and annual ieave represent the amount which the economic entity
has a present obligation to pay resulting from employees® services provided up to the balance date. The provisions have been
calculated at nominal amounts based on corrent wage and salary rates and include related on-costs.

Long Service Leave

The liability for employee entitlements to long service leave represents the present value of the estimated future cash outflows 1o
be made by the economic entity resulting trom employees’ services provided up to the balance date.

Tihie measurement of toag service leave entitlements which are not expected to be settled within twelve months have been based
on a calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash outflows, [n determining this liability, consideration has been
given to future increases in wage and satary rates, staff departure rates and applicable discountrates which most closely match
the terms of maturity of the related liabilities. Related on costs have also been included in the fiability.

Superannuation Plans

The economic entity contributes to various superannuation plans, including employer sponsored superannuation plans in
accordance with the requirements of trust deeds governing the respective superannuation plans,  Contributions are charged
against income as they are made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999
‘Revenue Recoghition
Sales Revenue
[’assenger and freight sales are not recognised as revenue until the lranspnrla!mn servion is repderad. AT the time of onls

- Pability for uncarned revonue is established. Svbecqued iy the o m a0t e ol
cntmes through biiling from another carrier who renders the service, or by rctund to the customer.

Interest Income
Interest income Is recognised as it accrues.
Asset Sales

The gross proceeds of asset sales are included as revenue of the economic entity. The prefit or loss on disposal of assets is
brought to account 4t the date an unconditional contract of sale is signed.

Foretgn Currency

. Transactions
]

Foreign currency transactions are translated to Australian Currency at the rates of gxchange ruling on the dates of the
transactions. Amounts receivable and payable in foreign currencies at balance date are translated at the rates of exchange filing
on that date.

Exchange differences relating to amounts payable and receivable in foreign currencies are brought to account as exchange gains
or losses in the profit and loss account in the financial year in which the exchange rates change.

Barrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest, amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs
incurred in connection with arrangement of borrowings and lease finance charges. Borrowing costs areexpensed as incurred
unless they relate to qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets which take more than 12 menths to get ready for the intended
use or sale. Where funds are borrowed specifically for the acquisition, constructior or production of a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing costs capitalised or those incurred in relation to that borrowing, net of any interest earned on those
borrowings. Where funds are botrowed generally, borrowing costs are capitaiised using a weighted average capitalisation rate.

Comparative [Information

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to achieve consistency in disclosure with current financiat year
amounts and other disclosures,

-12-




ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.AT 30 JUNE 1999..

1999 1998
2. OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS)
REVENUE
Operating profit/(loss) before income tax
has been arrived at atter including:
Revenue from operating activities:
Rendering of services 2,996,419 2,992,274
Dividend received :
- asgociate - 400
Interest
. - related patties 307 40t
- other parties 39 56
: Foreign exchange gain 46,93% -
Revenue from outside operating activities;
Gross proceeds from sale of non current assets 72,489 162,094
3,116,213 3,155,225
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Depreciationfamortisation of: : o
- building S 12,020 T 12,826
- aitcraft engines and spares 78,230 81,639
- plang and equipment _ 33,675 41,426
- leased assets capitalised 28,724 1712
- deferred expenditure : 593 593
Amounts set aside tof(released from) provisions for -
- employee entitlements : (9,410} 12,624
- doubtful trade debts {2,612) {12,962)
- other _ 1,167 (2,897)
Bad debts written oftf 793 932
Operating lease rental expense 126,002 135,629
. Borrowing costs:
other parties 20,533 21,751
capitalised leases 27,678 34,438
reiated parties 21,989 30,489
Less borrowing costs capitalised:
other parties (2,794} -
Auditors’ Remuneration:
Audit Services
- auditors of the Company : 210 281
Other Services
- auditors of the Company 320 -
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non current assets 1,520 (1,497
Net foreign exchange loss - (102,524)

-13-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999

N T T U

1999 1993
$ooo $000
A ABRNORERIAL FUUAS
Write off in retation to aircrafi flcet - ' {2,349) -
[ncome tax {expense)/benefit 835 -
{1,514) ) -
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of non curtent assets 42,483 (1,352}
Income tax (expense)/benefit 1,991 2,208
44,474 836
Debt forgiveness - (23,500)
Income tax (expense)benefit _ - -
. - (83,500)
Aggregate abnormal items before income tax 40,134 {84,852)
. Aggregate imcome tax effect 2,826 2,208
Aggregate abnormal items after income tax . 42,690 (82,644)

-14-




ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE-1999. .. . ... -

1999 1998
[WTaRalsl RN
4., TAXATION
(a}  Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit
Prima facie income tax benefit caleulated at 36%
{1998 36%) on the operating profit{loss) after abnormal items (38,288) 34,207
Adjusted by the tax etfect of
Debt forgiveness - {30,060)
Non assessable profit on sale of non current assets 17,285
Other non deductible expenses (2,092} (6,496)
. Income tax benefit on the operating loss (73,095) (2,349
{ncome tax over provided in prior ycérs 10,659 319
(62,436) (2,030)
(b}  Future lncome Tax Benefit
Future income tax benefit comprises the estimated
future benefit, at current income tax rates, of the
following items:
Timing diffcrences 17,015 1,955
Tax losses : - -
17,015 1,953

Future income tax benefit has been offset against the
provision for deferred income tax to the extent that
timing differences giving rise to the provision will
reverse within the reporting period during which the
benefits from tax losses and other timing differences
are available for deduction. Timing differences
recorded as future income tax benefits which have
been offset against the provision for deferred income
. tax amounts 1o $139,820,000 (1998: $174,463,000).

(¢)  Dividend Franking Account
As at 30 June 1998 the Company’s dividend franking

account had a surplus of $31,379,825 (1998
$31,379.825).
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

"NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999

1 '.'\OIQ
O 11 VLS
5, RECEIVABLES
Current
Trade debtors 386,947 402,627 -
Less provision for doubttul debts . 6,235 8,847
380,712 393,780
Sundry debtors and loans to other parties 5,053 7,953
Amounts owing by related parties 60,830 77,440
446,601 479,173
Non Current
. Sundry debtors and loans to other parties 6,500 6,972
6. INVESTMENTS
Controtled entities:
Shares - at cost 16,974 16,974
Less amount written off 15,943 15,943
1,331 1,031
Associated companies:
Unlisted shares - at cost : 50 50
Less associated companies reserves (62) -
: (12) 50
Shares in other corporatiens 4 4
1,023 1,085
7. INVENTORIES
. Finished gocds 335 1,530
Less provision for stock obsolescence {in 17
318 1,513
Raw materials and stores ) 22,734 16,933
Work in progress 531 1,121
23,633 19,567
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999 - - .0 n

1999 1998
: \nﬂ s
8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Freehold land and buildings
at cost _ 335 ' 159
less accumulated depreciation 23 2
812 157
at 1997 directors’ valuation 77,397 78,134
fess accumulated depreciation 3,041 1,532
74,356 76,602
Total treehold Land and buildings 75,168 76,759
Leasehold land and buiidings
at cost 5,515 1,317
. fess accumulated amortisation 624 202
4,891 1,115
at 1997 directors’ valuation 187,807 . 190,347
less accumulated amortisation 19,931 11,162
167,876 179,185
Total leasehold land and butldings 172,767 180,300
Total land and buildings : 247,935 257,059
Aircraft, engines and spares
at cost 1,727,559 1,761,356
less accumufated depreciation 624,326 590,698
1,103,233 1,170,658
at 1988 directors' valuation 17,525 17,525
less accumulated depreciation i2,351 11,728
5,174 5,797
Total aircraft, engines and spares 1.108.467 1,176,455
Aircraft, engines and spares under lease
at cost 514,905 514,905
Jess accumuiated amortisation 241,996 221,381
272,909 293,524
. at 1985 directors' valuation 47,824 47,824
less accumulated amortisation 30,281 28,368
17,543 i9.456
Total aircrafl, engines and sparcs under lease 290,452 312,980
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Plant and Equipment
at cost
less accumulated depreciation

Plant and equipment under lease
at cost
less accumulated amortisation

Total plant and equipment

Total property, plant and quipment

The directors' valuation of {and and buildings in 1997 was carried out as
at 30 June 1997 and was on the basis of the market valve of the
properties concerned in their existing wse. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that this valuation provides a reasonabie
estimate of recoverable amount as at 30 June 1999,

An independent valuation was carried out as at 30 June 1997 by Mr. P,
Murphy F.V.L.E. of Herron Todd White and JLW TransAct for resort
properties and Mr. J.D. Hatcher F.V.L.E. and Mr. P.R. Dickinson
AN.L.E. of Richard Eilis (Victoria) Pty Limited for the balance of the
land and buildings porifolio. This valuation was obtained in accordance
with the entity’s policy of obtaining an independent valuation of land
and buildings every three years.

-18-

60150

e -~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999 ... ... .

1999 (998
2900 w00
632,553 525,784
199,668 377,634
232,885 148,150
39,312 36479,

19,611 14,583
20.201 21,896
253,086 170,046
1 899.880 1,016,540
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

1999 1998
TN 4
9. OTHER ASSETS
Current _ .
Deferred expenditure 984 100
Prepayments 4,053 890
Other - 151
5,037 1,141
Non current
Deferred expenditure 5,991 200
Future income tax benefit 17,015 1,955
Other _ 2,067 2,754
25,073 4,909
14, ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Sos
Current
Trade ereditors and accruals 752,447 713,701
Amaounts owing to controlled entities 24,793 27,906
Amounts owing to related parties 67,648 64,516
Amounts owing to associated companies - 13,805
844,860 819,928
Non current )
Trade creditors and accruals 92.778 13,083
11. BORROWINGS
Current ]
Bank overdrafis - unsecured - 13,594
Bagk loans - fully secured 54,111 41,541
Other loans — fully secured : 1,045 1,443
Lease liabilities : 37,690 22,477

. 93.846 76,105

Non current

Bank loans - fuily secured 364,171 466,800
Other loans - tully secured 144 1,189
Lease labilities 237,945 275,138
Amounts owing to related parties 112,338 146,510
Amounts owing to parent entity : 212,580 357,764

027,178 1,247,401
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

v= s - NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999 - - - -

12. AMOUNTS PAYABLE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

13.

14

o -

The Australian dollar equivalent of unliedged amounts
payable in the following currencies calculated at the year end

exchange rates are as follows:

Amounts Payable

Current:
United States Dollars

Non current:
United States Dollars

PROVISIONS
Current
Employee entitlements

Other provisions
Income tax

Non corrent
Employee entitlements
Deferred incoms tax

OTHER LIABILITIES

Current
Deferred revenue

Nan current
Deferred revenue

SHARE CAPITAL

Issued and paid up capital
6,000,000 (£998: 6,000,000 of 50¢ par value) ordinary shares fully paid

1999 1998
Foad $o06
62,968 .
427,689 414,890
112,930 123,008
47,159 46,518
67,037 .
228,026 169,526
101,283 £00,389
158,409 130,458
259,692 230,847
612 1,688
465 3,827
3,000 3,000

The Company Law Review Act 1998 (“the Act”) came into effect on 1 July 1998. Fhe Act abolished par value shates. From 1 July
1998, share capital does not have 2 nominal (par) value.
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE-1999-- -- e

1999 1998
so0a _S000
16. RESERVES
Capitat profit ' 3,400 3,400
Asset revaluation 125,208 129,260
Foreign currency translation 255 42y
Associate company (62} -
128,801 132,618
MOVEMENTS DURING THE YEAR
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at beginning of year 129,260 -
. Revaluation decrement on freehotd land and buildings - {17,000}
Revaluation reserve transferred to accumulated losses {4,052) 117,010
Prior period adjustrment - 29,250
125,208 129,260
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance at beginning of year (42) 2
Translation adjustment on controlled :
foreign entities . 297 {44)
255 42
17. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS
Capital Expenditure Commitments
Contracted but not provided and payable;
Not later than one year 45,163 144,421
Later than one year but not later than two years 17,534 18,059
Later than twe years but not tater than five years . 48,355 33,307
Later than five years 52,624 41,408
: 203,676 237,195
Operating Lease Commitments
. Future operating lease rentals not provided for
in the financial statements and payable:
Not later than one year : 93,652 107,475
Later than one year but not later than two years 77,280 95,126
Later than two years but not later than five years 154,403 165,993
Later than five ycars 871,630 785,681
1,208,995 1,154,275
Finance Lease Commitments -
Finance lease rentsls are payable as follows:
Not Jater than one year . 63,394 49,581
Later thar one year but not later than two years 74,126 65,804
Later than two years but not later than five years 193,833 301,995
331,353 417,380
Less future finance charges ) {55,718) 119,766
275,635 297,614
Lease liabilitics provided in the financial statements:
Current 37,690 22,477
Non currend 237,945 275,137
275,635 297,614
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1999 1993
$'000 3060

[8. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The details and estimated maximum amounts of contingent liabilities that may become payable are set out below. The directors are
not aware of any circumstance or information which would lead them to believe that these liabilities will erystallise and consequently
no provisions are included in the accounts in respect of these matters,

Unsecured guarantees

Parent entity: :
- maximum 115,000 114,500

- at balance date ' 115,000 114,500
Other corporations 55,688 31,348

. Litigation

The Company is involved in various claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business none of which is expected to have
a signiticant etfect upon its operating resuits or finencial position.

19. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
Bank Overdraft
The Company has access to bank overdraft facilities to a maximum of §10,000,000 (1998 $10.000,060) which is a part of a group offset
facility leaving an unused facility of $nil (1992 $nil) at balance date. When aggregated with other balances which are a part of this
facility, the maximum amount has not been exceeded.,

Bank Loans

The Company has access to bank loans of $418,282,000 (1998 $508,391,000). At balance date, the unused portion was $nil (1998
$nil). Generally the bank loans are secured over atrcraft and other aviation related assets of the Company.

Other Loans

The Company has access to bank loans of $1,189,000 (1998 $2,632,000). At balance date, the unused portion was $nil (1998 $nil),
This is secured over certain assets of the Company.
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-AT 30 JUNE 1999 - - = -~ - - -

1999 1998
B L4
20. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
Directors
Total income paid or payable, or otherwise made available, to
the directors, including executive dirgetors from the Company or
any related party:
898 879
The number of directors of the Company, including executive
directors whose income from the Company or any related party
falls within the following bands:
50 - $9,999 2 3
$100,000 - $109,999 H 1
770,000 - $779.999 ~ 1
$790,000 - $799,999 i -

Directors’ income includes amounis paid by the parent entity
during the year te indemmify directors, but does not include
insusance premiums paid by the economic entity in respect of
Directors’ and Ofticers’ Liabilities and Legal Expenses insurance
contracts, as the insurance policies do not specify premiums paid
in gespect of individual directors., Details of the insurance
premiums paid are set out in the Directors’ Report,

21. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates predominantly within the
‘transport industry in Australasia,
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s e sms —NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 1999

1999 1998
Note C w000 o 3000
22, NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{a)  Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash
inciudes cash on hand and at bank, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts and letters of credit. Cash as at the end
of the financial year as shown in the Statement of
Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the balance
sheet as foliows:
" Cash 56,979 31,803
Bank overdraft and letters of credit 1§ - (13,594)
. 56,979 18,209
(b} Reconciliation of Operating Profit/(Loss) After Income Tax
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating profit/(loss) after income tax 152,818 (97.051)
Add/(Less) items classitied as investing/
financing activities:
(Profit)/Loss on sale of non current assets {1,520} 1,497
Dividends received - {400)
Borrowing costs . _ ' 67,405 T 86,677
Interest revenue : (3600} {457)
Add/(Less) non cash items:
Armounts ses aside to provisions (15,067) (3,235}
5 Depreciationfamortisation 152,171 164,291
| Unrealised foreign exchange (gains)/losses (43,400) 100,262
[ncrease in income tax payable 67,937
Capitalised interest . 2,794 -
Abnormal items:
Profit on sale or non-current assets (42,483} -
Asset write-down 2,349
Debt forgivenesscs - 83,500
. Loss on sate of non current asscts - £,352
. Net cash provided by operating activities before 372,638 336,536
change in assets and liabilities
Change in assets and lishilities:
Decrease in current assets 16,916 40,796
Increase in current liabilities ) 66,293 32,097
Net cash provided by operating activities 455,847 409,329
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their report together with the financial report of Ansett Holdings Limited {"the Company™) and the consolidated
tinancial report of the consolidated entity, being the Company and its controlled entities, for the year ended 30 June 2001 and the
auditors' report thereon.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:

Sir Selwyn John Cushing KNZM. CMG.

Appointed Director and Chairman in July, 2000, Chairman of Air New Zealand Limited, Briedley Investments Limited, New Zcaland
Ruta) Properties Limited, Viking Pacific Holdings Limited, New Zealand Symphony Orchestra and Passive Funds Management
Limited. Goveming Director of Pastoral Holdings (Waewaepa) Limited, Ashfield Farm Limited, Fairway Finance Limited, Seajay
Securities Limited and H&G Limited. Director of Bank of New Zealand Limited, Williams and Kettte Limited and 5t Lukes Group
Limited. Partner Esam Cushing & Company and Waewaepa Station.

James Alfred Farmer, QC. LLM (Hons). PhD {Cantab).
Appointed Director and Deputy Chairman in July, 2000, Director of Air New Zealand Limited. Trustee of Air New Zealand Staff
Share Purchase Schemes.

Hon. Philip Ralph Burdon LLB.

Appointed Director in July, 2000, Chairman of Superannuation Investment Limited, MFL Mutual Fund Limited and EBOS Limited.
Deputy Chairman of NZ Post Limited. Director of Air New Zealand Limitcd, Brierley Investments Limited, CGU Insurance Group,
ANZCO Limited, OPUS Intemational Limited and PDL Limited.

Sir Ronald Powell Carter KNZM. FIPENZ. FICE. FNZIM. FCIT.

Appointed Director in July, 2000. Chainman of Headmasters Council, Auckland Grammar Schoot. Executive Chairman of Auckland
Chamber of Commerce & Industry. Deputy Chairman of Elestricity Corporation of New Zeatand Limited. Director of Air New
Zealand Limited and Beca Group Limited.

John Simon Curtis LLB (Hons). BA, _

Agppointed Director in May 1998. Director of Ansett Australia Holdings Limited since May 1998. Appointed Chairman and Director-
of Ansett International Lisnited in June 2000. Chairman of Human Resources Committee. Chaimman. of Allianz Australia Limited,
SecureGate Limited, St Hilliers Pty Ltd, First Data Resources Australia Advisory Commitiee and Calibum Pantnership Pty Lid
{associated with The Lazard Hovses). Deputy Chairman of British American Tobacco Australasia Lid. Directer of Air New Zealand
Limited, Australian Technology Group Limited, Perpetual Trustees Australia Ltd, Stadium Austratia Management Ltd and St George
Bank Limited. Chief Representative (Australia} of Credit Agricole Lazard Finaacial Products Bank.

Ralph James Norris FNZIM. FNZCS. .

Appointed Director in July, 2000, Chairman of New Zealand Business Roundtable. Musaging Director and Chief Executive of ASB
Bank Limited. Director of Air New Zealand Limited, Northern Lifeguard Services and Auckland Children’s Hospital Foundation.
Deputy Chairman of the Child Development Foundation.

Gregory James Terry LLB. MA.
Appointed Director in july, 2000. Managing Director and Chief Executive of Brierley Investments Limited. Director of Air New
Zealand Limited, James Hardie Industries Limited and Thistle Hotels PLC. Advisory Board member for Blake Dawson Waldron.

Secan Patrick Wareing FCPA. ACIS. FAICD.

Appointed Director in July, 2000. Appointed Direcior of Ansett Australia Holdings Limited in July 2000. Director of Air New
Zealand Limited, Allianz Australia Limited, Email Limited, Wandglow Pty Limited, 8t Hilliers Pty Limited and Murdoch Magazines
Pty Limited. Chairman of Compliance Commitiee for Commonwealth Managed Investments Limited,

William McLeod Wilson QC.
Appointed Director in July, 2000. Chairman of BIL New Zealand Asseis Limited, Anafi Investments Limited, lsa Investments
Limited. Director of Air New Zealand Limited. Chairman of Trustees of BIL Mew Zealand Charitable Trust.

Charles Barrington Goode BCom (Hons), MBA (Columbia). Hon LLD {(Melb).

Appainted Director in August, 2000, Chairman Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited, Woodside Petroleum Lid,
Australian United Investment Company Ltd and Diversified United Investrnent Ltd.  Director of Singapore Airlines Limited, CSR
Limited and Queensland Investment Corporation Ltd,

2.




00159
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AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS' REPORT
DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr Choong Kong Cheong BSc (Hons), PhD. :

Appointed Director in August, 2000, Deputy Chairman and Chief Exccutive Officer of Singapore Airlines Limited. Chairman of

Singapore Airport Terminal Services Limited and SIA Engineering Company Limited, Vice Chairman of Singapore-US Business

Council. Director of Singapore Press Holdings Limited, The Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, Virgin Atlantic Airways
. Limited, Virgin Atlantic Limited, Virgin Travel Group Limited, Singapere International Foundation and Institute of Defence and

Strategic Studies. ’

Elizabeth Mary Coutts BMS. CA. ]

Appointed Director in August, 2000. Director of CME Limited, Health Funding Authority, Industrial Research Limited, New
Zealand Tennis Inc., Pharmaceutical Management Agency Limited, Rannoch Estate Limited, Robert Henry Limited, Viking Pacific
Holdings Limited, Venang Technologies Limited and Worley Group Limited and its subsidiaries. Commissioner of Earthquake
Commission, Trustee of Auckland Centre for Psychotherapy Inc. and New Zealand Law Foundation. Member of Financial Reporting
Standards Board (Institute of Chartered Accountants).

Michael Jiak Ngee Tan

Appointed director in August, 2000. Executive Vice President (Commercial) Singapore Airlines Limited. Chairman of SATS Afrport
Services Pte Limited. Deputy Chairman of Singapore Airport Terminat Services Limited. Director of Virgin Atlantic Limited, Virgin
Atlantic Airways Limited and Virgin Travel Group Limited.

The following were directors from the beginning of the financial year untif their resignations during the financial year or up to the
date of this reporl.

James MeCrea (resigned 7 July, 2000}

Robert Harry Nazarian {resigned 17 July,2000)

DIRECTORS MEETINGS

The number of directors’” meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and the number of meetings atiended by each of

the directors of the Company during the financial year were:

Director Directors’ Audit Human Resources Safety
Meetings Committee Committee Committes
Meetings Meetings Meetings

A B A B A B A B

S Cushing _ ' 5 5 » . 2 2 % 4

J A Farmer 7 7 - - - - - -

P R Burdon

R P Carter 4 7 - - . _ 3 3

C K Cheong

E M Coutts

J 8 Cortis 5 7 - - 2 2 - -

C B Goode

R J Norris

M J N Tan

G J Terry 5 1 2 2 ! 2 - .

S P Wareing ] 7 2 2 - - - -
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS' REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the consolidated entity during the cousse of the financial year were:

Transport industry related including airline passenger, freight and other travel related services

CONSOLIDATED RESULT

The consofidated operating loss after income tax atiributable to the members of the Company was $373,043,000
(2000 profit $144,436,000).

REVIEW OF OPERATICNS

A review of the operations of the consolidated entity during the financial yeat and the results of those operations are detailed in the
annual report.

STATE OF AFFAIRS

In June 2000, the Company became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Air New Zealand Limited Group through its acquisition of the
50% shareholding previously hebd by News Corporation Limited. :

As part of the consolidated entity’s sirategy of focusing on its core operations, the consolidated entity disposed of its Inflight Kitchens
business, as well as its equity interests in Rex Aviation (NZ) Limited, Anseft New Zealand Limited and ANEX Limited {formeriy
Ansett Express Limited).

In the opinicn of the directors, ihere were no other significant changes in the state of affaits ¢ the consalidated entity that oceurred
during the financial year under review.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

Fhe directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in this report that has significantly affected or may
significantty affect the operations of the consolidated entity, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the consclidated
entity in subsequent financial years. :

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

Information as to likely developments in the operatiohs of the consolidated entity and the expected results of these operations in
subsequent ficencial years has not been included in this repont because the disclosure of such information would be Iikely to result in
unreasonable prejudice to the consolidated entity.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

The operations of all entities in the Ansett Holdings Limited Group are subject to significant environmental regulation under both
Commonweslth and State legislation. In particular the Airport (Environmental Protection) Regulations 1997 and relevant State
legislation. not specifically preciuded by the Commonwealth legislation, affect aireraft operations, maintenance and other assosiated
activities. During the year, environmenta! risk was included in the Corporate Risk Profile and the risk associated with not meeting
environmental reporting requirements was assessed through a comprehensive risk assessment.

The consolidated entity managed its environmental risk through auditing and risk reduction initiatives. Regular internat and external
audits were used to identify any risk of breaching environmental legislation. Any identified potential breach was discussed with the
relevant authority to ensure a satisfactory solution was reached. The consolidated entity implemented its National Spill Response
Strategy which is aimed at ensuring that spitl sesponse techniques are consistent across all group operations. The development of an
Environmental Management System was commenced at Engineering focused on minimising the eavironmental risk associated with
the group’s key engineering activities.

To the directors” knowledge, there have been no significant breaches of relevant legislation.
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND BENEFITS

No director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than a benefit included in the agpregate
amount of remuneration received or due to be reccived by directors, as shown in the consclidated financial sepott} by reason of a
contract made by the Company, its controlled entities or a refated body corporate, with any dircetor or with a firm of which any
director is a member or with an entity in which any director has a substantial financial interest.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

The consolidated entity has an agreement indemnifying all the directors and officers of the Company against all liabilities to another
person (other than the Company or a related body corporate) that may arise from their position as directors and officers of the
Company, except where the liability arises out of conduct invalving lack of good faith. The agreement stipulates that the Company
wili meet the full amount of any such liabilities, including costs and expenses.

Since the end of the previous financial year the consolidated entity has paid insurance premiums of $153,275 in respect of Directors’
and Officers” Liability and Legal Expenses insurance contracts, for current and former directors and officers, incloding executive
officers of the Company and directors, executive officers and secretaries of its controlled entities. This policy insures against all
liabilities and expenses arising as a result of work performed in the respective capacity of the person, to the extent permitted by the
Jaw.

ROUNDING

The Company s of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 987100 dated 10 July 1998 and in accordance with that Class Order,
amounts in the financial report and directors’ report have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise stated.

This report is signed for and on behalf of the Directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors made pursuant to
section 298{2) of the Corporations Law this day of . 2001, at

Director . Director

-6-
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED

" Scope

We have audited the financial repert of Ansett Holdings Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2001 as set out on pages 7 to
45. The financial report incledes the consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity comprising the Company and the
entities it controlled at the year’s end or from time to time during the financial year. The Company's directors are responsible for the
financial report. We have conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the members
of the Company.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Avstralian Auditing Standards te provide reascnable assuwrance whether the
financial report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the
amounts and other disclosures in the financial report, and the evaluation of accounting policies and significant accounting estimates.
These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinjon whether, in all material respects, the financial report is presented fairly in
accordance with Accounting Standards issued in Australia and other mandatory professional reporting requirements and statutory
requirements so as 1o present a view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company's and the consolidated entity’s
financial position and performance as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows.

The avdit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

Aaxdit Opinion

In our opinion, the financial report of Ansett Holdings Limited is in accordance with:

{a) the Corporations Law, including:

oy )
i) giving a true and fair view of the Coinpany’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2001
and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

i} complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations; and

{b) other mandatory professional repotting requirements.

DELOITTE TQUCHE TOBMATSU

2001 Partner




ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In the epinion of the directors of Ansett Hotdings Limited:

1. (a) the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 8 to 45, are in accordance with the Corporations Law, including:

(i}  giving a true and fair view of the financial position ¢f the Company and consolidated entity as at 30 June 2001
and of their performance, as represented by the results of their operations and their cash flows, for the year

ended on that date; and

{ii} complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations; and

"(b) thete are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debis as and when they become due

and payable.

2. There are seasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the subsidiaries identified in Note 18, will as a group be
able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject by virtuc of the Deed of Cross

Guarantee between the Company and those subsidiaries pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418.

Pated at this day of

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Director

2001,

8-
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2001

Note

Revenue
Revenue from rendering of services
Other revenue from ordinary activities

Expenditure

Labour

Fuel

Maintenance & overhaul

Aircraft & traffic servicing

Passenger services

Sales & marketing

Aircraft operating leases

Depreciation and amortisation
Borrowing costs

Other expenses from ordinary activities
Share of net profits of associates accounted for
vsing the equity method

Profit/{foss) lrom ordinary activities before

income tax expense 2

Income tax (expense)/benefit relating to

ordinary activities : 3

Profit/{Loss) from ordinary activities after
related income tax (expense)/benefit

Net profit attributable to outside equity intercsts

Net Profit/(Loss) attributable to Members
of the Parent Entity

Increase in assel revaluation reserve arising on
revaluation of non cursent assets

Increase /(decrease) in foreign currency translation reserve
arising on translation of financial reports of self-sustaining
foreign operations

Total Revenue, Expense and Yaluation Adjustments
attributable to Members of the Parent Entity and
recognised directly in Equity

Total Changes in Equity other than those resulting
from transactions with Owners as Owners

G018

Consolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000
3,169,286 3,230,869 - -
17,511 38,618 12,131 -
(1,236,302)  (1,160,826) - -
(369,053)  (263,937) . -
(304,978)  {244,382) . B
(180,236) (193,027 . .
(173,345)  (143,656) - .
(423,672) (388,636} - -
(119,729) (136,444) - -
(228,200}  (184,229) . .
(102,715  {101,720) (3.615)  (3,206)
(660,352) (338,096} - -
2,571 18,085 - -
{609,914} 127,119 3,516 {3,206)
236871 17,317 1441 604
(373,043) 144,436 9,957 {2.602)
(373,043) 144,436 9,957 (2,602}
- i 9,781 - -
11,962 {6,831} - -
11,962 2,950 - -
{361,081} 147,386 9,957 (2.602)

The Statement of Financial Performance is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2001
Consolidated i Company
2001 2000 2001 2000

Note $000 $'000 £'000 $'000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 21,280 159,212 . -
Receivables 5 556,704 547,639 993 -
Inventories 6 176,568 130,442 - -
Other 10 19,169 63.415 - -
Total Current Assets 773,721 900,708 993 -
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Receivables 5 128,106 6,291 5,031 -
Investments 7 14,057 14,314 597,789 597,789
Property, plant and equipment 8 2,405,470  2,429.335 - .-
Intangibles 9 19,430 1,135 - -
Deferred tax assets 3 76,821 31,322 2,046 1,154
Other L 24372 142,567 - -

; Total Non Current Assets 2668256 2624984 604,866 598,943

TOTAL ASSETS 3441977 3,525,692 605,859 598,943
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 11 883,036 791,052 . -
Interest bearing liabilities 12 . 414,696 438,792 - 3,039
Current tax jiabilities 27,192 (17,325) - -
Provisions 14 184,501 160,560 - -
Other : 16 2467 364 - i -
Total Current Liabilities 1,511,892 1,373,443 - 3,039
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 11 186,594 120,922 - -
Interest bearing liabilities 12 1,102,361 777,083 50,350 50,350,
Deferred tax liabilities 15 75,756 294,037 - o -
Provisions 14 56,564 114,435 - -
Other 16 8.842 119 - -
Total Non Current Liabilities - ) 1,430,417 1106596 50,35C 56,350
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,942,300 2,680,039 50,350 53389
NET ASSETS 499,668 _ 845,653 555,509 545,554
EQUITY
Contributed equity 17 625,817 625,817 625,817 625,817
Reserves 18 102,947 93,390 - -
Retained protits/(accumulated fosses) 4 (230.493) 125049 (70.308) _ (80,263)
Equity attributable to Membets of
Ansett Holdings Limited 498,271 844,256 533,509 545,554
Qutside equity interests in controlled entitiez 22 1,397 1.397 . -
TOTAL EQUITY 499,668 845,653 555,500 545,554

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the finangial statements.

-10-




ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2001

001606

Consolidated Company
2001 2000 2003 2060
Note $'000 $'000 £'000 £'000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts in the course of operations 3,236,044 3,214,867 - -
Cash payments in the course of operations (3,312,618)  (2,992,348) - -
Income taxes refund (paid) 12.270 {55,792) - -
MNet cash provided by operating activities 28 {63,704) 163,727 - -
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received : 20,072 8,070 - -
Interest received 18,133 358,096 - -
Payments for property, plant and equipment {228,166} (369,296) . -
Net proceeds on the disposat of controlled entities - 1,125 - -
Loans to assaciated companies _ ) (25,215} {3,941) - -
Loans from associated companies - 4,439 - -
Acquisition of controlled entity less cash acquired (28,251) - - -
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets : 145,677 154.220 - -
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities _ (97,750} (166287} - -
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ) : : o
Borrowing costs paid (112,008) (94,081) {3.614) (3,206)
Proceeds from borrowings - external 341,797 177,886 3,206 2,954 -

- parent entity 189,166 - - -
Repaynient of bomowings : (300,062) {271,758) - -
Lease drawdowns 13,681 - - -
Lease payments ' (111.061) (147,698) - -
Net cash used in financing activities ’ 21,3513 {335.651) - -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN CASH HELD . {139,941) (338,211} - -
Cash at the beginning of the financial year 159,193 497,404 - -
CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 28 19,252 159,193 - -

The statements of cashflows are to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Preparation

The financial repott is & general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with the Corporations
Law, applicable Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views and other authoritative pronouncements of
the Australian Accounting Standards Board.

The financial report has been prepared on the basis of historical cost and, except where stated, does not take into account
changing money values ot current valuations of non current assets. Cost is based on the fair values of the consideration
given in exchange for assets.

. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by each entity in the consotidated entity to ensure that the resulfing
financial information satisfies the concepts of refevance and reliabifity. Except where there is a change in accounting
poticy noted, the policies are consistent with those of the previous year.

The consolidated entity has adopted the presentation and disclosure requirements of Accounting Standards AASB 1018
“Statement of Financial Performance”, AASB 1034 “Financial Report Presentation and Disclosure™ and AASE 1040
“Statement ot Financial Position”, for the first time. in the preparation of this financial report. In accordance with the
requircments of these new/revised Standards, comparative amounts have been reclassified in order to comply with the new
presentation format.

Where nccessary, comparative information has been otherwise reclassified to achieve consistency in disclosure wnth
current finzncial year amounts and other disclosures, .

The significant policies, which have been adopted in the preparation of this financial report, arc as follows:-

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the consolidated entity include the financial statements of the Company, being
the parent entity, and its controlled entities as defined in Accounting Standard AASB 1024 “Consolidated Accounts™. A
tist of cantrolled endities is set out in Note 27 to the financial statements. :

Where an entity either began or ceased to be controlled during the year, its results are included only from the date contro}
by the parent entity commenced or up to the date contro! ceased.

All baiances and transactions between controlled entities, and unrealised profits arising within the consolidated entity,
have been ¢liminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Outside interests in the equity and tesults of the entities that are controlled by the Company are shown as a separate ilem
in the consolidated financial statements.

Receivables
Trade Debtors

‘Trade debtors are carried at nominat amounts due less any provision for doubtful debts. A provision for doubtful debts is
recognised when collection of the full nominal amount is no longer probable.

Lease Receivables

Where the Company acts as a lessor in a finance lease arrangement, the investment in the lease comprises the present
value of the minimum lease payments plus the present valve of any ungearanteed residual value expected to acerue to the
benefit of the entity at the end of the lease term. The investment in the lease is recognised as a receivable at the beginning
of the lease term. Minimum lease payments received over the term of the lease are aflocated between reduction in ihe
investment and recognition of finance revenue,

|2




ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is based on the weighted
average cost principle. Other stocks and stores are valued at cost and provision is made for any diminution in value.

Deferred Expenditure

Material items of expenditure are deferred to the extent that management considers that it is probable that future economic
benefits embodied in the expenditure will eventuate and can be measured reliably. Deferred expenditure is amortised over
the period, not exceeding five years, in which the related benefits are expected to be realised.

Non Current Assets

The carrying amounts of all non current assets are reviewed to detetrine whether they are in excess of their recoverable
amount at balance date. The recoverable amount of an asset is the net amount expected to be recovered through the net
cash inflows arising from its continued use and subsequent disposal. Where the carrying amount of a non-current asset
exceeds the recoverable amount, the asset is written down to the lower amount.

In assessing recoverable amounts of non curzent assets, the relevant cash flows have not been discounted to their present
value, except where specifically stated.

Certain non current assets have been revafued. With the exception of land and buildings such revaluations occur from
time to time and are not made in accordance with a policy of regular revaluation.

Investments
Controlled Entities

Investments in controlled entities comprise shargs held in those controlled entities. Shares held are shown in the
Company's financial statements at cost or valuation adjusted for any provision for diminution. Dividends from controtled
entities are accounted for on a dividend received basis in the Company's financial statements.

Associated Companies
An associate is an entity, other than a parinership, over which the consolidated entity exercises significant influence.

In the Company’s financial statements, investments in associates are carried at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.
Income from interim dividends is brought to account in the statement of financial performance as dividends are received.
income from final dividends is recognised as revenue at the time the dividends have been declared by the associate in
general meeting.

In the consclidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for using equity accounting principles,
Investments in assoctates are carried at the lower of the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount. The
consolidated entity’s share of each associate’s net profit or loss afier tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial performance, after adjustment for revisions in the depreciation of depreciable assets, amortisation of goodwill
arising from notienal adjustments made as at the date of acquisition, dissimilar accounting policies, and the elimination of
unrealised profits and losses on transactions between the associate and entities in the consolidated entity. Other
novements in associates reserves are recognised directly in consclidated reserves.

Where the equity method of accounting for investments in associates reduces the carrying value of an investment below
zero, a provision for the associate’s losses is raised where the Company is otherwise liable for these losses.

Other Companies

Other investiments are recorded at cost unfess otherwise noted. If required, provision for diminution in the valve of
investments is created to account for any reduction in vatuation. Dividends are brought to account as received.

-13-
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cunli'n_ued)
Property, Plant and Equipment
Acquisition
lterns of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost and depreciated as outlined below.
Revaluations

_ Certain fixed assets shown in the consolidated financial statements have been revalued at various times as indicated.
{Refer Note 8).

A liability for capital gains tax is only provided when it is known that the asset will eventually be sold and that the liability
for such tax will crystallise.

Disposal of Revalued Assets

The gain or loss on disposal of revalued assets is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the assets at
the time of disposal and the proceeds on disposal and is included in the result for the year of disposal. Any related
reyaluation increment or decrement relating to the disposed assets standing in the asset revaluation reserve at the time of
disposal is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation
Items of preserty, plant and eqﬁipment, including freehold buildings and leasehold property but exciuding freehold land,

are depreciated so as o write off the the net cost or other revalued amount of each asset over its expected useful life,
generally using the straight line methed of depreciation.

The depreciation raies used for each class of assefs are as follows: 200t 2000
Freehold buitdings 2.5% 2.5%
Leaschold buildings . 5.5% 5.5%
Aircraft, engines and spares {owned and leased) 4.0-6.0% 4.0-6.0%
Plant and equipment {(owned and leased) 15.0% 15.0%

Depreciation rates are reviewed annually and if necessary, adjusted sc that they wilf reflect the most recent assessments of
the useful lives of the respective assets, :

Leased Plant and Equipment

Leases of plant and equipment under which the consolidated entity assumes substantially all of the risks and benefits of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalised, A lease asset and liability equal to the present value of the minimum Jease .payments,
excluding executory cosis, are recorded at the inception of the lease. Lease payments are allocated between reduction of
the prisicipal component of the lease liability and the interest expense charged to the statement of financial performance,
Capitalised lease assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant fease, or where it is likely that
the consolidated entity will obtain ownership of the asset, the Jife of the asset. Minimum lease payments made under
operating leases are charged against profits in equal instalments aver the accounting periods covered by the lease term.

For certain Tinance leases, controlled entities lave provided loans to the lessor and these loans to lessors are set-off against
lease liabilitics. The interest income is also set-off against the interest paid on capitalised finance leases.

Surplus Leased Aircraft

Provision is made for surplus Jeased aircraft when it is determined that no substantive future benefit will be obtained by
the consolidated entity from its use, This arises when aircrafi are currently leased under non-cancellable operating leases

-14-
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and the entity does not use the aircraft and does not expect to vse it in the future.
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND 1TS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cnmi’nlued)
Payables .
Trade Creditors and Accruals

Liabilities arc recognised when the consolidated entity-becomes obliged to make future payments for goods and services
received, whether or not bifled to the consolidated entity.

Frequent Flyer Liability

_The obligation to provide travel rewards and other benefits to members of Ansett’s frequent flyer program is progressively
provided for as points are accumulated by members.

The provision is reduced to reflect the value of points redeemed by members and the expiration of unused points.

Interest Bearing Liabilities

Bank overdrafis and loans are carried at the principal amounts outstanding. Interest expense is charged on an accrual
basis.

Ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are deferred and amortised over the period of
the borrowing.

Loans from related parties are.cartied at the princiﬁal amounts, Interest is recognised as an expense on an accrual basis.
Employee Entitlements

Wages Salaries and Annual Leave

Provisions for employee entitlements to wages, salaries and annual leave represent the amount which the consolidated
entity has a present obligation to pay resulting from employees' services provided up to the balance date. The provisions

have been calculated at nominal vatues based on current wage and salary rates and inciude related on-costs.

Long Service Leave

The liability for employee entitlements 1o long service leave represenis ihe present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made by each employer entity resulting from employees' services provided up to the balance date,

The measurement of long service leave entitlements which are not expected to be settled within twelve months have been
based on a calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash outflows. In determining this liability,
consideration has been given to future increases in wage and salary rates, staff departure expectations and applicable
discount rates which most closely match the terms of maturity of the related liabilities. Related on-costs have also been
included in the liability.

Superannuation Plans

The consolidated cntity contributes to various superannuation plans, including employer sponsored superannuation plans
in accordance with the requirements of trust deeds poverning the respective superannuation plans. Contributions are
charged against income as they are made.

<16-
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001
1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income Tax
The consolidated entity adopts the liability method of tax effect accounting,

Income tax expense or bencfit is catculated on operating profit or loss adjusted for permanent differences between taxable
and accounting income. The tax effect of timing differences, which arise from items being brought to account in different
periods for income tax and accounting purposes, is carried forward in the balance sheet at current tax rates as a future
income tax benefit or a provision for deferred income tax. '

Future incoms 1ax benefits are not brought to account unless realisation of the asset is assured beyond reasonable doubt.
Futuze income tax benefits relating to entities with tax losses are only brought to account when their realisation is virtually
certain. The tax effect of capital losses is not recorded unless realisation is virtually certain.

Revenue Recognition

Sales Revenve

Passenger and freight sales are not recognised as revenue until the transportation service is rendered, At the time of sale a
current liabitity for unearned revenue is established. Subsequently this is eliminated either through carriage by controlled
entities, through billing from another carrier who renders the service, or by refund to the customer.

Interest Income

Interest income is recogniised in the period in which it accrues

Asset Sales

The gross proceeds of asset sales are included as revenue of the consolidated entity. The profit or loss on disposal of assets
is brought to account at the date an unconditional contract of sale is signed.

Foreign Currency

Translation of Controlled Foreign Entities

The statements of financial position of overseas controlled entities that are self sustaining foreign operations are translated
using the rates of exchange ruling at balance date. Statements of financial performance are translated at a weighted
average rate for the year.

Exchange differences arising on translation are taken directly to the foreign currency translation reserve.

‘Fransactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated to Auvstralian currency at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of the
transactions. Amounts receivable and payable in foreign currencies at balance date are translated at the rates of exchange

raling on that date.

Exchange differences relating to amounts payable and receivable in foreign currencies are brought to account as exchange
zains or losses in the statement of financial performance in the financial year in which the exchange rates change.

Derivatives

The consolidated entity is exposed to changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity prices from its
activities. It is group policy to use derivative financial instruments to hedge these risks. Further details of derivative
financial instruments are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements. It is group policy not to enter into, hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

-1
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

1. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Forgign Currency Hedges

Where hedge transactions are designed to hedge the purchase or sale of goods and services, any unrealised exchange gains
and losses on the contracts, together with any costs or gains arising at the time of entering into the hedge are deferred wntil
maturity of the hedge transaction and included in the measurement of the underlying sale or purchase transaction. Any
exchange differences on the hedge transaction after that date are included in the statement of financial performance,

In prior years, this policy was applied to amounts receivable on sale of airctaft at the end of their useful life to the
economic entity. The residual values of aircraft, denominated in United States Dollars, were considered to be effectively
hedged by unhedged United States Dollar Joan obligations. In applying that policy the controlied entities sought

- independent advice of the anticipated amount to be received on sale of aircraft and designated specific borrowings as
hedge instruments.

Where a hedge transaction is terminated early and the anticipated transaction is still expected to cceur, the deferred gains
and losses that arose on the foreign currency hedge prier to its termination continue to be deferred and are included in the
measurement of the purchase or sale when it occurs. Where a hedge transaction is terminated eatly because the
anticipated transaction is no longer expected to occur, deferred gains and losses that arose on the foreign currency hedge
prior 19 its termination are included in the statement of financial performance for the period.

Hedges outstanding at balance date are translated at the rates of exchange ruling on that date and any exchange differences
are brought to account in the statement of financial performance. Costs or gaing arising at the time of entering into the
hedge are deferred and amorlised over the life of the hedge. Al contracts that are hedging principal repayments of
borrowings are treated as non specific hedges,

Interest Rate Swaps

Interest payments and receipts under interest Tate swap conlracts are recognised on an aceruals basis in the statement of
financial performance as an adjustment to jnterest expense during the period.

Commuodity Price Swap Contracts

Commodity price swap contracts are used to hedge anticipated purchase commitments. Any unrealised gains and losses
on these contracts, together with the costs of the contracts, are deferred until maturity of the contract,

Borrowing Costs

Botrowing costs inelude interest, amortisation of discounts or premiums relating to borrowings, amortisation of ancillary
costs incurred in conmection with arrangement of borrowings and lease finance charges. Borrowing costs are recognised
as expenses in the period incurred unless they relate to qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets which take more
than 12 months to get ready for their intended use or sale. Whese funds are borrowed specifically for the acquisition,
construction or production of & qualifying asset, the amount of botrowing costs capitalised are those incurred in relation to
that borrowing, net of any interest earned on those borrowings. Where funds are borrowed generally, borrowing costs are
capitalised using a weighted average capitalisation rate.

Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount
of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). In these circumstances the GST is recognised
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expensc.

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recaverable from, or payable ta, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the balance
sheet.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash
flows.
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

2. PROFITALOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Protit/(loss) from ordinary activities before incame tax
includes the following items of revenue and expense:

() Operating revenue:

Rendering of services

Interest revenue:
associate entities
other parties

Net foreign exchange gain
Equity share of associates’ profits

{b) Non operating revenue:

Proceeds from sale of non current assets:
Investments
Property, plant and equipment

{¢) Operating expenses:

Depreciation/amortisation of:
buildings
aircraft, engines and spates
plani and equipment
jeased assets capitalised
intangibles
deferred expenditure

Total depreciation and amortisation

Amounts set aside tofirelessed from) provisions fot:
employee entitlements
stock obsolescence
doubtfuil trade debts
other
Bad debts written off
Operating lease rental expense

Net forzign exchange loss

Borrowing costs:
related parties
other parties
capitalised eases
Less borrowing costs capitalised:
other parties
Borrowing costs expensed

Remuncration of Auditors

{a) Auditor of the parent entity
Auditing the financial report
Other services

{b) Other auditors
Auditing the financial report

-19.

Consolidated Company

2001 2000 2001 2000

$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
3,169,286 3,230,869 . - -
5,658 5,524 - .
11,852 33,094 . .
- 12,248 - -
2.571 18,085 - -
3.185.367 3,299,820 - -
155,345 155345 - -
155.345 155,345 i - -
3,437,080 3,511,269 : . - =
17,459 16,843 . . .
132,173 56,676 - .
50,516 28,116 - -
25,786 " 41,208 . .
1,346 - - -
473 1,386 - -
228.200 184.229 . -
13,761 13,761 « “
320 320 - -
184 184 - -
(36,795) (36,795) - -
4,207 4,207 - -
199,531 161,414 - -
277,987 - . .
14,050 13,378 3old 3,206
86,2338 86,398 - -
2,427 8432 - -
102,715 101,720 3,614 3206
696 696 - -
5,924 5.924 - -
6 6 - -
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

Consolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
3000 $'000 §'000 $'000
2. OPERATING PROFITALOSS) (continued)
Net gain on sale of non-current assets ' 7057 7.057 - -
(d) Individually significant items included in profit/(loss)
from ordinary activities before income tax expense
Net profit on disposal of controlled entities
and non-current assets 50,139 50,139 - -
Regional Network expansion costs {13,631) (10,169) - -
Goods and Services Tax implementation costs { 3,022) (9,584) - -
Restructuring costs (67.392) - - -
Olympic Games promotional cosls (36,6177 {4,489) - -
Loss of lease rental tncome and costs arising from
associated entity's pilots” dispute in New Zealand - {24,146) . - -
Change in accounting for foreign exchange
movements on aircraft residuals (220,168) - - -

(e} Revisions of Accounting Estimates

ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

Consolidated
Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
3000 $'000 $'000 $000
4. TAXATION
(a) Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit
Prima facie income tax (expense)/benefit caleniated 207,31 {45,763} (2,899) 1,154
al 34% (2000: 36%) on operating profit/{toss)
Adjusted by the tax effect of:
Share of associates’ net profi a4 6,510 - -
Non assessable profit on disposal of controiled
entities and non current assets 17,966 17,966 - -
Capital losses transferred from controlled entity - - 4,124 -
Other 3413 3.413 - -
Income tax (expense}benefit on operating profit/{loss} (£7,574) (17,874) 1,226 1,154
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(b)

{c)

(8,661)

00179

[ncome tax (under)fover provided in prior years {8,661) 549 (3500

Tax credit arising from rate change effect

on timing differences 43,852 (337 -

Income tax (expenseybenefit attributable to operating

profit/(loss) 236,871 17,317 1,441 604

Deferred Tax Assets

Future income tax benefit comprises the estimated future

benetit, at applicable income tax rates, of the following items:

Timing differences 41,126 15,393 - -

Tax iosses 35,695 15529 2,046 1.154
76,821 31,322 2046 1,154

Futare income tax benefit has been ofiset against the provision for deferred income tax to the extent that timing differences
giving rise to the provision will reverse within the reporting period during which the benefits from tax losses and other timing
differences are available for deduction within the respective controlled entity. Timing differences recorded as future income tax
benefits which have been offset against the provision for deferred income tax amount to $210,542,000, the Company $Nil (2000:

$151,135,000, the Company SNif}

Deferred Tax Assets Not Taken te Account

The potential future income tax benefit in controlled entities
arising from tax losses (excluding capital losses) and timing
differences which has not been recognised as an asset because
recovery is not virtuatly certain follows:

Tax losses 29,967

21,164

Timing differences -
: 29967

21,164

The potential future income tax benefit wiil only be obtained i

- the relevant company derives future assessable income of a natnre and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit to be
realised, or the benefit can he utilised by another company in the consolidated entity in accordance with Section 170 of the

Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 or relevant jurisdiction;

law; and

- the relevant company and/or the consolidated entity continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by the

- - nochanges in tax legislation adversely affect the relevant company andfor the conselidated entity in realising the benefit.
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

6.

RECLEIVARBLES

Current
Trade debtors
Less provision for doubtful debts

Sundry debtors and loans to other persons
Amount owing by associate

Amount owing by parent entity

Lease receivables

Non current

Sundry debtors and loans to other persons
Amount owing by related party

Amount owing by associate

Lease receivables have maturity dates within twelve months.

Interest rates on lease receivables vary between
7% and 13.5%. [ncome has been brought t¢ accuunt on a
yield o matority basis,

INVENTORIES

Raw materials and stores — at cost
Less provision for stock obsolescence

Finished goods — at cost
Less provision for stock obsolescence

General stores
Work in progress — at cost
Asscts held for resale

00177

Consolidated Company
2001 2000 001 1000
3000 $'000 $'000 £'000
453,188 439,923 - -
(11.372) {(5.993) - -
441,816 433,930 - .
104,354 79,878 993 B
693 3,767 - -
6,206 - - -
3.635 25.064 - -
556,704 547,639 993 =
33 6,291 - .
- - 5,031 -
128.023 - - -
128,106 6,291 5031 -
38,395 14,092 - B
- (1,868} - -
38395 12,224 - -
28,655 17,044 - -
(1.78%) (932} - -
26,872 16,112 - -

84,254 160,073

15,815 2,033 - .
14,232 - - -
176,568 130,442 - -
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

Consolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
$'009 §000 Fo00 $'000
7. INVESTMENTS
Investment in Controlled Entities:
Shares - at cost - - 672,789 672,789
Less amount wiitten off - - (75,000} (15.000)
- - 597,789 597,789
Investments in Associates
accounted for using the equity method:
Unlisted shares — at cost 30,679 22,802 - -
Less provision for diminnticn in value - - - -
30,679 22,802 - -
Untisted associated companies’ reserves (20,9811 (12.848) - -
9,698 0954 - ) -
Other Financial Assets:
Shares in other corporations — at cost ) 4,359 4,360 - -
Total Investments , _ o 14,057 14,314 597,789 597,789 -
Movement in carrying value of investment in
asspciates
Equity accounted investment at beginning of year ) ' 9,954 4,151
Cartying value of assaciate disposed of during the year . - {1,953)
Controiled entity’s shaze of post acquisition losses of
associate disposed of during the year - 1,294
Share of associates net results from operating activities 2,571 18,085
Prior year adjustment to carmying value 7,459 802
Write back of negative reserve on suspension of equity
method in respect of associate : 9,746 -
Dividends received (20,0723 (12.425)
Equity accounted investment at end of yeat 9,698 9,954
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

8 PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIFMENT Consolidated

Freehold Liand Leasehold Land  Aiverafi, engines  Aircraft, engines Plant and Plant and TOTAL
ad Buwaldings and Buildings and spares and spares by pui
vnder lease under lease
£'000 $000 000 $000 £000 £000 $00G

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance al Jung 2000 . 74,720 365330 2,523,344 565,465 616,208 43,416 4,194,243

Adj 10 opening bal {3,244) 6,121 {85,137 - 6,210 (2,924) {18274)

Additions 3382 11,672 170,386 62,324 1,986 245,750

Propress payments 5,988 15,588

Acquisition of contralled entity 389 259 9,748 1,169 B0 263 18,678

Disposals (260 10 {157.198) {6,212) {163,720)

et Foreign currency exchange differences

ariging on translation of ft ial stat 1t

of self ining forcign op i 113 462 515

Reallocation transfers 1,147 (38,056) 3z e (356,855) 26,597 (60) {44410
76,194 145,489 2,799,847 222,688 G93,005 50,605 4,192,428

Accumulated Depreciation

Balance al June 2000 - (59) {916,440) (3029110 (429,325) (26,157) {1,674,932)

Adi t to opening bal (2,588} &, 164 3,082 (5,147 1,511

Depreciation expense (1.429) (16,030) (132,173) (20,952) {50,963) {4,834} (226,391)

Diisposals k {E19) ’ 61,775 5,835 6T 494

MNet fareign currency sxchange differences

aniEing on Tation of fi ial

of self sustaining foreign operati (24} 327 (351)

Reallocation transfers {717 (166,320} 218,34 948 56 45,301
(1,426) (19,577) (1,146,994) (103,447} {478,979 (30,935} {1,787,358)

Net Book Value - . . .

As a1 30 Junc 2001 . : o o 14,768 I325,912 1,651,853 113,241 219,026 . ! 19,670 2,405,4T)

As at 30 June 2000 4,780 365,231 1,606,904 262,554 187,582 23,259 2,519,311

Current Value of Land and Buildings

i A valuation of land and buldings was carried out in June 2000 on the basis of independant assessments of the fair market,.
value of the properties concerned in their existing use, or in the case of the Sydney Terminal building, on the basis of
reptacement cost. The directors of the Company are of the opinion that this vatuation provides a reasonable estimate of
recoverable armount as at 30 June 2001.

Depreciation
Aggregate depreciation altocated during the year iz recognised as an expense and disclosed in Note 2 to the financial
statements.




ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

Cousolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
$'000 §.050 $'000 $'000
3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUiPMENT (continued)
Plant and equipment
at cost 668,673 616,508 -
less accumulated depreciation {486,901y (429.325) -
187,682 1B7.583 -
Plant and equipment under lease .
at cost 50,669 43,416 -
less accumulated amortisation (30,999) _ (26.157) -
19.670 22,259 -
Total plant and equipment 2,079,300 2.079.300 -
Total property, plant and equipment 2403470 2519311 -
The valuation of land and buildings was carried out as at 30 June 2000 and was
on the basis of independent assessments of the fair market value of the properties
concerned in their existing use, or, in the case of the Sydney Terminal building,
on the basis of replacement cost. The directors of the Company are of the
opinion that this valuation provides a reasonable estimate of recoverable amount
as at 30 June 2001.
The independent valuation of the {and and buildings portfolio was carried out as
at 30 June 2000 by CB Richard Ellis (V) Pty Limited, Certified Practising
Valuers. This valuation was obtained in accordarice with the entity’s policy of
obtaining an independent valvation of land and buildings every three years.
Aggregate depreciation allocated during the year is recognised as an expense and
disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements, .
ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001
' Consolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
$'000 §'000 $'000 3000
9. INTANGIBLES
Goodwill arising on acquisition of controlled entities 19,9860 135 - -
Accumnlated amortisation {2.727 - - .
) : 17,259 135 - -
Other 5,737 2,066 - -
Accumulated amortisation {3.366) {1,046} - -
2171 1,020 - R
19,430 1,155 “ -

5.
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Aggregate amortisation allocated during the year is recognised as an

expense and disclosed in nete 2 to the financial statements.

10. OTHER ASSETS

Current
Deferred expenditure 3ol 893 - -
Net hedging cantracts receivable 29 19,795 - -
Prepayments 13,683 37,219 - -
Other 1.846 5,508 - .
) 19,169 63415 - -

Non current . :
Deferred expenditure 829 510 - -
Unsealised foreign exchange gain on aircraft residual values - 141,937 - -
" Other 23.543 60 - .
24,372 142,567 - -
11, PAYABLES

Current
Trade creditors and accruals 563,195 383,828 - -
Unearned revenue . 289,650 407,224 - -
Amounts owing to parent entity 191 - .

__AR3036. 791,052 - .

Non current
Trade creditors and accruals 92,553 120,922 - -
Amounts owing to associates . 94.041 - - -

186,594 120922 - - i

Trade creditor terms are primarily between 7 and 30 days, In
general, no cost is incurred for the late payment of sccounts.

ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

Consolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
$£'000 $'000 $'000 $'600
12. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES
Current
Bank overdratis _ 2,028 19 - -
Bank toans - unsecured - 22,171 - -
Bank loans - fully secured 157,026 255,185 - -
Lease liakilities 67,068 161,269 - -
Anounts owing to controlied entity - - - 3,038
Amount owing to parent entity 188,574 - - -
Other loans - 148 - -
414,696 438,792 = 3,039
Non curvent
Bank laans ~ tnsecured 890,508 - - -
Bank loans - fully secured 933,733 691,211 - -
Lease Habilities 3,528 10,872 - -
Amaoinits owing to controlled entity - - 50,350 50,350
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13,

Amount owing to associate 75,000 75,000
Amount owing to parent entity 592 -
1,102,341 777,083

Bank overdrafts are payable at call. Interest is charged on the
overdrawn amount on a daily basis based upon the published
Corporate Overdraft Reference Rate plus a margin ranging from 0-5%.

Bank loans are generally for periods of up to 12 years with principal
and interest repayments occurring quacterly or semi-annualy.

interest is charged at 2 base market rate plus a margin. Margins range
fram 0.2% to 0.8%. Generatly the bank loans are secured over aircraft
and aviation related assets of the consolidated entity.

Asscciate boans are generally repayable on demand. Interest is
charged at a base market rate plus a margin. Margins range from
1% to 1.5%.

AMOUNTS PAYABLE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Australian doflar equivalent of unhedged amounts
payable in the following currencies calculated at year end
exchange rates are as follows:

Amounis Payable
Current:
United States Dollars 151,196 288,558
Japanese Yen - 40,011
Non current:
United States Dollars ) 913,705 660,753
Deutsche Marks . 22,706

«2 7




ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

14, PROVISIONS
Current

Employee entitlements
Other provisions

Non current
Employee entitlements
Other provisions

15. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Deferred income tax
The provision for deferced income tax has been reduced by
future income tax benefits attributable to timing differences
by the amount of $210,542,000 (2000: $151,135,000).
16. OTHER LIABILITIES
Current

Deferred revenue

Non current
Deferred revenue
17. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY
Issued and paid up capital
87,196,968 fully paid ordinary shares
524,250 fully paid 5% cumulative preference shares
394,000 fully paid non cumulative Class A preference shares

161,500 fully paid non cumulative Class B preference shares

28

Consolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
3000 $'000 §000 $'000
172,4%0 126,760 - -
12,011 33,800 - -
184,501 160,560 - -
56,327 111,926 - .
537 2,509 - -
56,864 114,435 - =
75.756 294,037 - -
75,756 294,037 - -
2.467 364 - -
2,467 364 = -
8.842 119 - -
8842 119 - -
137,114 137,114 137,114 137,114
§,049 1,049 1,049 1,049
382,579 382,579 382,579 382,579
105075 105,075 105,075 105,075
625,817 625,817 625,817 625817
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

Consolidated Company
2001 2800 2001 o000
$000 $'000 Foo0 $'000
18. RESERVES
Asset revaluation : 156,938 151,208 - -
Associated companies T {20,981) - (12,848) - -
Foreign currency tranglation (32,3623 {44,969} - -
: 93,390 93,390 - -
MOVEMENTS DURING THE YEAR
Share Premium Reserve
Balance at beginning of year - - - 575,701
included with share capital - - - (575,301}
Balance at end of year - - - -
Asset Revaluation Reserve
Balance at beginning of year 151,268 141,832 - -
Nel surplus on revalvation of land and buildings . i
during year - 9,781 : - -
Revaluation reserve transferred to retained profits - {455} - -
Balance at end of year ] 157,024 151,208 ER— -
Associated Companies Reserve
Balance at beginning of year : {12,848) {19,802) - -
Associated company oparating results transferred _ .
from retained profits : 2,57 18,085
Dividend received transferred from accumulated losses {20,072} (12,425) - -
Associated company reserve transferred $0 retained
profits on disposal - i,204 . . -
Balance at end of year : (20,981) (12.848) : - -
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Balance at beginning of year (44,969 (38,132) - -
Realisation of foreign currency movements on disposal )
of controlled entities transferred to accumulated losses - {63 - -
Translation adjustment on controlled
foreign entities” tiancial statements 11962 (6,831} - -
Balance at end of year {32,362) {44,969) - .
19. RETAINED PROFITS
Retained profits at beginning of the financial year 125,049 (13,727 (80,263) (79,319
Net profit (loss) attributable to members of the pacent entity (373,043) 144,436 0,957 (944)
Net transfers to and from reserves . 17,501 {8.499) - -
Retained profits/(accumulated losses) at end of financial year {230,493} 125,049 (81,504} (80203}
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

Consolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
£'000 $'000 $:000 £'000
19. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS
Capital Expenditure Commitments
Contracted but not provided and payable:
Wot later than one year . 13,946 163,949 - -
Later than one year but not later than two years - 16,711 - -
Later than two years but not later than five years - 47,176 - -
Later than five years o - 40,954 - -
' 13,946 268,750 - -
Operating Lease Commitments
Future operating lease rentals not provided for
in the financial statements and payable:
Not later than one year 202,658 106,379 - -
Later than one year but not Jater than five years . 547,880 295,812 - -
Later than tive years 750,817 737,909 - -
1.501,355 1,140,100 - -
Operating Jease commitments relating to aircraft amount
to $464,819,000 (2000: $138,357,000). The consolidated entity
leases aircraft, property and plant under operating leases
expiring from one to twelve years. Leases generally provide
the consolidated entity with a right of renewal at which time all
terms are renegotiated. Lease payments comprise a base amotint
plus an incrementat contingent rental based on either movements
in the Consumer Price lidex or operating criteria,
Finance Lease Commitments
Finance lease rentals are payable as follows:
Wot later than one year 71,402 176,214 - -
Later than one year but niot later than five years 18,103 162,775 - -
Later than tive years - - - -
89,504 338,989 - -
Less futute finance charges {4.88%) (6,230} - -
84,615 332,759 - -
Less secured loans to lessors (14,020} (160.68R) - -
70,595 172,141 - -
Lease liabilities provided in the financial statements:
Current 67,068 161,269 - -
Non current 3.527 10872 - -
70,595 172,141 - -

The financing of some of the leased assets above include secured loans by controlled entities 1o the lessor and these loans have been set-off
against lease liabilities, Interest of $7,558,000 (2000: $7,558,000) under these loans has been set-off against interest paid on capitalised
finance leases.

The consclidated entity leases aircraft and plant and equipment under finance leases expiring from one to four years, At the end of the lease
term the censolidated entity has the option to purchase the assets at a price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. Some leases involve lease
payments comprising & base amount plus an incremental contingent rental based on the Consumet Price Index.

The consolidated entity has entered into a defeasance of debt arrangement whereby a third party has assumed the primary obligation for the
principal amounts outstanding on certain finance feases. The amount defeased at balance date at current exchange rates is
$17,497.000 (2000; $17,497.000}. The third party primary cbligations mature over the financial years to 2002.
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 36 JUNE 2001

19. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS (continued)
Superannuation commitments
The Company and certain controlied entities contribute to several defined benefit and defined contribution superannuation plans.
Employers are required pursuant to the Trust Deeds and Rules of the respective defined benefit plans fo pay contributions o the Trustee(s) in
accordance with the Trust Deed provigions. Employer contributions are based on various percentages of gross salaries, The plans provide
defined benefits based on ycars of service and final average salary. All employees are entitled to benefits on retirement, resignation, redundancy,

_disability or death.

Employer contributions to the accumulation plans are made in accordance with the Trust Deeds and Rules of these phans.

In accordance with the provisions of the trust deeds, controlled entitics undertook transactions with the plans comprising the payment of
contributions.

In the case of defined benefit superannuation plans, employer contributions are based on the advice of the pian’s actuary.

The latest actuarial reviews of the defined benefit plans were performed as at 1 July 2000 by Mr Paul Francis BSc FIAA, Superannuation
Actuary of NSP Buck, for the Ground Staff Plan, Management Plan and Flight Engineers Plan and Mr Andrew Boal BSc FIAA, Superannuation
Actuary of Watson Wyatt for the FAB Scheme. Since that time employer contributions have been made in accordance with actuarial
recommendations designed to ensure that sufficient funds are available to satisfy all benefits that would be vested under the defined benefit plans
in the event of termination of the plans or voluntary or compulsory termination of the employment of each employes.

All group superannuation plans have sufficient net assets to satisfy all henefits that have vested under the plans on voluntary or compulsory
termination of employment of each employes.

The directors, based on advice of the trustees of the plans, arc not aware of any changes in circumstance since the date of the most recent
financial statements which would have a material impact on the overall financial position of the plans.

Defined benefit superannuation plans

" Anselt Austratia

Ground Staff Other

Superannuation Plan FAB Scheme Superannuation Plans  Consolidated

$7000 5000 $°000 $:000

Net market value of plan assets - June 2000 508,893 ' 152,354 54,488 805,735
Accrued benefits. 525375 135411 39,346 700,192
Excess of plan assets over acerued benefits 73518 16,883 15,142 105,543
Met market value of plan assets — tune 2000 598,803 - 152354 54.488 _ 805,735
Vested benefits . 553,088 151,342 43,191 747,621

(i)  The above measurement of plan assets at net market value and vested benefits has been calculated at 30 June 2000, being the most recent
finangial statements of the plans.

(i} Accrued benefits have been obtained from the most recent actuarial reviews performed as at 1 July 2000 for all defined benefit plans. Net
market values of plan assets at that date are shown for measurement.

{iii) The foliowing superanavation plans have been aggregated under the heading “Other Superannuation Plans™:
- Anseti Australia Pilots/Management Superannuation Plan.
- Ansett Australia Flight Engineers Superannuation Plan.

Accroed benefits are benefits which the plan is presently obliged to pay at some fusture date, as a result of membership of the plan. Vested
henefits are benefits which are not conditional upon continued membership of the plan or any factor, other than resignation from the plan.
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ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

Consolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The details and estimated maximum amounts of contingent liabilities that may become payable are set out below. The directors are not aware
of any circumstance or information which would lead them to believe that these liabilities will crystallise.

Unsecured guarantees

Other corporations 1,299,578 2,055,871 - -

Included is an amount of US$E,077,165,000.(2000: USE1,077,165,000) relating to the guarantee of other entities’ (Ansett Worldwide Aviation
Limited and Ansett Worldwide Aviation USA) commitments under long term aireraft Jeasing arrangements. The amount shown is the maximum
Jiability that the consolidated entity could be called upon to pay. However, the directers consider that this contingent Hability is significantly
hedged by the underlying value of aircraft under lease.  Also included is an amount of $172,977,000 (2000: $172,977,000) for operating lease
commitments relating to aircraft of certain asseciates and $49,436,000 (2000: $49,436,000) for the guarantee of creditors, other operating lease
commitmenis and bank guarantees of certain associates.

Litigation

The consolidated entity is involved in varicus claims and Yitigation arising in the ordinary course of business, none of which is expected to
have a significant effect vpon its operating results or financial position.

Deed of Cross Guarantee

Pursuant to an ASIC Class Order 98/1418, relief was granted to the separate wholly owned subsidiary groups listed below from the Corporations
Law requirements for preparation, audit, and Jodgement of financial reports, It is a condition of the Class Order that the respective subsidiaries
and their relevant holding company (being Skywest Holdings Pty Limited in respect of Group A companies, Ansett Australia Holdings Limited
in respect of Group B companies and Ansett Holdings Limited in respect of Group C companies) enter into a Deed of Cross Guarantee. The
effect of the Deeds is that the parties guarantee to each creditor payment in fult of any debt in the event of winding up of the relevant holding
company or any subsidiary party to the Deed under certain provisions of the Corporations Law. 1f a winding up occurs under other provisions of
the Law, the companies wilt only be liable in the event that after six months any creditor has not been paid in fuil.

The subsidiaries entitled to the benefit of the Class Qrder are:

Group A Group B ' Group C
Eastwest Airtines Limited Wridgways Holdings Limited Bodas Pty Limited
Rock-it-Cargo {Aust) Pty Limited 501 Swanston Strect Pty Limited Merael Pty Limited

Skywest Aviation Limited

ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continueoj}

Censolidated statements of financial performance and consolidated statements of financial position, comprising the relevant holding company
the respective subsidiaries which are party to the individual Deeds of Cross Guarantee at 30 June 2001, are detailed below. Transactions
between companies within each closed group have been eliminated in arriving at the consolidated amounts. Transactions between each group
lave not been eliminated.

Statements of Financial Performance Group A Group B Group C
$'000 $*000 3000
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Operating profit/(loss) before income tax - 38,858 . 8,516
Income tax (expense)benefit attributable

10 operating profit : ) (3} 2350 LAy
Operating protit after income tax . (8) 36,499 9,057

Accumulated 1osses at the beginning of
the financial year (169,695) (90,512) {91,136)

Adjustment to acoumulated losses arising from
release of entities under Deed of Revoration - - -

Accumulated losses at the end of the

financial year [L169.703) (54,011 (8117H

Statement of Financial Position

Cash - 53,542 -
Receivables - 172,760 993
Total current assets - 226,302 993
Receivables 32,11 1,229,066 8,021
Investments i 8,694 103,469 644,726
Deferred tax assets - 12,095 2,047
Toial non-current assets 41,467 1.344.630 _654.794
Total assets 41467 1570932 655,787
Payables - 151,985 -
interest bearing liabilities - 188,574 -
Provisions - - .-
Other - — = SO
Total current liabilities - _340.559 -
Payables . - ) 402,894 22162
Interest bearing liabilities 62,500 T241,703 88,387
Provisions . - o - _ .-
Total non-current Habilities : . 62,500 644,597 - 111.14%
Total liabilities __62,500 985,156 111,148
Net assets . (21,033) 285,776 - 344,638
Share Capital 141,000 639,281 625,817
Reserves 1,668 508 -
Accumulated Josses (169,700 (54,043} 1,17
Tatal shareholders equity ~{21,033) - 85,776 T 544638

ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

21, FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
The consolidated entity has access to the following financing arrangements:
Loans and Lines of Credit
The consolidated entity has access to loans and lines of credit, discounted note and bili acceptance facilities totalling $1,206,493,000 (1999:
$1.210,959.000), At balance date, the unused portion was $185,782,000 (1999 $179,158,000). Generally the bank loans are secured over

aircraft and aviation related assets of the consolidated entity.

Bank Overdraft

The consolidated entity has access to bank overdraft facilities to a maximum of $5,000,000 (2000: $5,000,000). At balance date, overdraft
balances of certain contralled entities totatling $176.796,000 (2000: $89,498,000) were offset against in fund balances of other entities under
group facility arrangements, leaving a net unused facitity of $2,972,000 (2000: $4,981,000) at balance date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

22.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
{n)  Interest Rate Risk
The censolidated entity enters into interest rate swaps to reduce the effect of volatility in interest rates.
(i} Interest Rate Swaps

USD interest rate swaps allow the consolidated entity to swap floating rate bormrowings into fixed rates. Terms of swap contracts are
principatly between 2 and 10 years.

Each contract involves quarterly or semi-annual payment or receipt of the net amount of interest at fixed and floating rates, At 30 June
2000 the fixed rates varied from 5.60% to 7.43% (1999; 5.60% to 7.43%) and the floating rates were based upon the London Inter
Bank Offer Rate, The weighted average effective floating interest rate at 30 June 2000 was 6.75% (199%: 4.22%).

(i) Interest Rate Risk Exposures

The consolidated entity's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and
financial liabilities is set out below:

2001
Fixed interest maturing in: :
Floating Iyearor Overlted  Morethan Non- Total Weighted
Interest less © years & years Interest Average
Rate Bearing interest Rate
2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001 2001
. Note $'000 $000 $2000 5000 37000 5000 %
Financial assets
Cash 21,280 - - - . 21,280 6.26
Receivables 5 8,767 - 7,109 - 512,990 528,866 -
Finance lcase receivables 5 - 3635 - - - 3,635 9.69
167.979 3.635 7,009 - 512.990 113,142 '
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable 0 “ - - - 511,974 611,974 -
Bank loans - unsecured 11 - - Co- - - 89,508 9.12
Bank loans - fully secured 1 756,144 24,905 165,347 - - 1,090,759 9.57
Other loans 1
Finance lease liabilities 11 - - 67,068 3,528 Co- - 70,596 891
Employse entitiements 13 - 172,490 95,088 16,838 - 238,686 6.17
756,144 335,105 271,307 16,838 911.974 2,291,368
Interest rate swaps*® (453,710} _ 165,000 210,038 78.673 . - 6.54

* Notional principal amount

ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

22.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

2000
~ Fixed interest maturing in:
Floating 1 year or Over1to s More than Non-  Tatal Weighted
Interest {ess years 5 years Interest Average
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Rate _ Bearing Interest Rate
2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
Note $'000 $'000 $:000 $°000 3'000 $*060 %
Financial assets
Cash 159,212 - - - - 159,212 6.26
Receivables 5 8,767 - 7,109 - 512,990 528,866 -
Finance lease receivables 3 - 25,064 - - 25,064 9.69
167.97% 25,064 7,109 . 512,990 713,142
Financial liabilities
Accounts payable i0 - - - - 911,974 911,974 -
Bank loans - unsecured 11 - 2,0m - - - 22,171 9.12
Bank loans - fully secured 1t 756,144 24,905 165,347 - - 946,396 9,57
Finance lease jiabilities 1t - 161,269 10,872 - - 172,141 391
Employee entiflements 13 - 126,760 95,088 16,838 - 238.686 6.17
756,144 335.105 271,307 16,838 911,974 2,291,368
Interest rate swaps™ (453,710} 165,000 210.038 78.673 - - 6.54

* Notional principal amount
(b}  Foreign Exchange Risk

The consolidated entity enters into forward exchange contracts to hedge certain anticipated purchase commitments denominated in
foreign currencies {principally US dollars). The terms of these commitments are rarcly more than two years,

The consolidated entity's policy is to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts io hedge a proporiion of foreign currency
| borrowings (principally US dollars and Japanese Yen), purchases and sales expected in each month within the following twa years
i within Board approved limits. The amount of anticipated future purchases and sales are forecast in light of current conditions in

toreign markets, commitments flom customers and experience. '
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22. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

The net unrecognised gain on hedges of anticipated foreign currency purchases and saleg at 30 June 2000 was $11,054,622 (1999 : $23,194,181
loss). As these contracts are hedging anticipated sales and purchases, any unrealised gains and losses on the contracts, together with the costs of
the contracts, are deferred and will be recognised in the financial statements at the time the underlying transaction oceurs.

The following table sets out the gross value to be received under foreign cusrency contracts, the weighted average contracted exchange rates and
the settlement periods of outstanding contracts for the consolidated entity:

2000 2000
AUD Amount Rate AUD Amount Rate
5000 $000
Not fonger than one year
Buy US dollars 270,217 0.6291 270,217 0.6291
Seli US dollars - - - -
Buy German marks 1,710 1.2748 11,710 i.2748
i Sell UK pounds - - - -
Buy Indonesian rupiah - - - -
Buy fapanese yen 8,344 .- 599238 8,344 599238
Sell Japanese yen 56,285 63.9607 36,285 63.9607
Bty Dutch guilders - - - 1.3986
Buy Singapore daliars - ' - - L1192
Longer than one year but not fonger than two years .
Buy US dollars 20,719 0.5792 20,719 0.5792
Buy fapanese yen 4,350 57.4600 : 4,350 57.4600
Sclt Japanese yen 22,597 57.9710 22,597 57.9710

{c) Commadity Price Risk

The censolidated entity enters into fuel swap and option contracts to reduce the effect of volatility in fuel prices. The terms of these
contracts are rarely more than one year. The consolidated entity’s policy is to enter into fuel swap and option confracts to hedge a
proportion of fuel purchases expected in each rnonth within the following twelve months and within Board approved limits, The amount
of anticipated future purchases are forecast in light of cursent conditions in fuei markets, changes 1o fuel consumption and experience.

As these contracts are hedging anticipated purchases, any unrealised gains and losses on the contracts, together with the costs of the
contracts, will be recognised in the financial statements at the time the underlying transaction occurs.

2000 2000
Barrels Weighted Average Barrels Weighted Average
Price (USD) Price {USD)
Not Jonger than one year
Fuel Swaps I
Buy Singapore Jet Fuel 1,433,000 27.91 1,433,000 2191
Average Rate Option
Buy Singapore Jet Fuel Call §76,900 26.78 876,900 2678
Buy Singapore Jet fuet Put 15,500 27.89 715,500 27.89
Sell Singapore fet Fuel Put 447,000 27.00 447,000 27.00
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22,  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

()

()

Credit Risk Exposures
Credit risk represents the Joss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as contracted.
On-Balance Sheet Financial Instrements

The credit rigk on financial assets, excluding investments, of the consolidated entity. which has been recognised on the balance sheet is
reflected in the carrying amount niet of any provision for doubtful debts.

The consolidated entity minimises concentration of credit risk in relation to trade accounts receivables by undcrtaking transactions with
a large mumber of customers in various industries. The majotity of customers are concentrated in Australia, and the consolidated entity
is not materially exposed to any individual customer or industry.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

Credit sisk in relation to off-balance sheet financial assets is minimised as counterparties are recognised financial intermediaries with
acceptable credit ratings determined by a recognised rating agency. Concentrations of credit risk are minimised by the imposition of
Board approved counterparty limits and the use of ratings provided by international ratings agencies. Dealings are strictly limited to
highly rated counterparty banks.

Credit risk arises from the potential failure of counterparties, which are principally large banks, to mect their obligations under the
contract or arrangement. The credit risk exposure arising from the derivative financial instruments is the sum of ali contracts with a
positive replacement cost. As at 30 June 200G the sum of all contracts with 2 positive replacement cost is $33,588,485.

Net Fair Valves

Net fair values of financial assets and Jiabilities are determined by the consolidated entity on the following bases:

On-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The net fair value of monetary financial assets and financiat liabilities not readily traded in organised financial markets is the principal
amount of the asset or liability. The carrying amounts of all en-balance sheet financial instruments approximate net fair value.

OHf-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The valuation of off-balance sheet financial instruments reflects the estimated amounts which the censolidated entity expeets to pay or

receive to terminate the contracts, o teplace the contracts at market rates in existence at reporting date, This is based on independent
market quotations and determined vsing standard valnation techniques.

The net fair value of off-balance sheet financial instruments held as at the reporting datc are:

200 2000
Coensolidated Consolidated
Net Fair Value Net Fair Value
$'000 $'000
[nterest rate swaps . 1,206 7,206
Forward exchange contracts 11,054 £1,054
Fuel forward contracts 2,329 2,329
Fuel eptions 12,956 : 12,956
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Consclidated The Company
2000 1999 2000 1999
$'000 $000 $000 $'000

23. DIRECTORS REMUNERATION
Directors
Total income paid or payable or otherwise made available, to alk directors

of the Company and controlied entities, from the Company or any related
party: 4,628 5263 1,188 1,004

The number of directors of the Company whose income from the
Company or any related party falls within the following bands:

50 - $9,9%9
$40,000 - - $49,999
$s0,000 - $59,999

$160,000 - $109,999
$790.000 - $799,990
$980,000 - 3989999

—_— =k R
| e b

Directors' income includes amounts paid by the consolidated entity during
the vear to indemnify directors and an allocation of insurance premiums
paid by the consofidated entity in respect of Directors’ and Officers’
Liabilities and Legal Expenses insurance contracts, in accordance with
commaon commezcial practice.

24, SEGMENT INFORMATION

The consolidated entity operates predominanily within the
transport industry in Australasia.

b
n

OUTSIDE EQUITY INTERESTS

Outside Equity Interest in Controlled Entitics comprise;

Interest in share capital 1,397 1,397 . -
Interest in reserves . - . .
Interest in retained profits

1,397 1,397 - =

26, DIVIDENDS

Dividend Franking Account

Balance of franking account adjusted for franking credits which will arise
from the payment of income tax provided for in the financial statements:

Class C (at 30%, 2000: 34%) franking credits 171,574 171,574 - -

The ability to utilise the franking account credits is dependent upon
there being sutficicnt available profits to declare dividends.

-38-




0194

ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Directors
Direciors holding office during the financial year were:

§.J.Cushing, J.A.Farmer, J.McCrea, R.H.Nazarian, P.R.Burden, R.P.Carter, I.5.Curtis, R Norris, G,), Tescy, 5.2 Warcing, W.M. Wilson, C.B.Goode,
C.K.Cheong, E.M.Coutts, M.J.N.Tan. .

Details of directors' remuneration are set out in Note 21.

Directors Transactions

From time to time directors of the Company or its controlled entities, or their director related entities, may purchase services from the
consolidated entity. These purchiases are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other consolidated entity employees. -

Shareholders

The sole shareholder of the Ansett Holdings Limited Group during the financial year, holding all the issued ordinary capital of the Company,
was the Air New Zealand Limited Group.

Controlled Entities

Amounts advanced to and by controlled entities are generally repayable after twelve months. interest is charged at variable rates as agreed
between the partics.

Amounts receivable by the Company from controlled entities at balance date are set out in Note 5. The aggregate zmounts payable te controlled
entities by the Company at balauce date are set out in Note 11. . .

During the year, the consolidated entity acquired for cash consideration of $25,272,000 a 100% interest'in Hazelton Airlines Limited. Details of
the net tangible assets acquired are set out in Note 28,

Associates

Refer notes 2,7.10 and 26.
ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS {(continued)

Other Related Parties

During the year various transactions were conducted on a commercial basis between certain controlled entities including trading, investment and
loan transactions,

Trading transactions conducted include: the purchase of transport aud communtcations services; the provision of airline sales/reservation
services: aircraft charter hire services; the provision of administrative and accounting services; and the provision of aircraft maintenance services
and terntinal facilities to other associates.

The purchase of transport and communications services from The News Corporation Limited and Air New Zealand Limited amounted to
$22.484,000 (1999: $11,690,366). Amounts received from The News Corporation Limited and Air New Zealand Limited in respect of property
rental, aircratt operating leases, freight, engineering services and insurance services amounted to $9,212,000 (1999: $17,814,890). Amounts
received from associates for the provision of services to associates amounted to $66,726,851 (199%: $79,087,146). Amounts paid to associates
for the provision of services by associates amounted 1o $13,062,047 (1999 $13,879,734),

Loan transactions conducted include the provision of finance to various associates. The interest rates charged and repayment terms vary
-39-
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according to the agreements between the parfies. Interest received on loans to associates is disclosed in Note 2.

Superannuation

During the year, contributions of $56,075,615 (1999: $55,436,723) were made by the consolidated entity to the consolidated entity's
superaniuation plans, '
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28, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

{2 Carrying value of equity consolidated investment
. Investment
Ownership Carrying
Interest Amount
Name Principal Class of 2001 2000 2001 2000
Activity Share % % $:000 $'000
Ansett International Ltd international ordinary 49 49 28,156 28, 156
airline opetator
Whitsunday .
International Airstrip B Class
Aviation Pty Limited operator ordinary 50 50 36 36
Travel Industries Travel agents ordinary -
Automated Systems distribution
Pty Limited systems 25 25 1,040 1,040
28,192 29,192
Writedown of investment in associated companies (5,390} {5,390)
Associated companies reserve _ {20,981} (12.848)

9,498 ___ 9,954

L

Dividends received from associates by the consolidated entity amounted to $20,072,000 (2000 $12,425,000).
Al teansactions with associated companies are jn the erdinary course of business and on normal terms and conditions.

[(3)] Performance and Financial Fosition of Associates

Equity Consclidated

2001 2000
$000 5000

Results of associates
Share of associates’ operating profit/(loss)
hefore income tax 12,449 26,943
Share of associates’ income tax expense attiibutable
{o operating profit {9.878) (8.838)
Share of associates’ operating profit/(Joss) after income tax 2,571 18,085

ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

Equity Consolidated
2061 2000
$'000 $°000

28.  ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

{b) Performance and Financial Position of Associates (continued)

41~




Share of asscts and liabilities attributable to associates

Curreni assets

Nan-corrent asseis

Total assets

Cutrent liabilities

Non-current liabilitics

Total liabilities

$hare of associates’ net assets

Share of pest-acquisition retained profits aitributable to associates
Share of associates’ accumulated losses at the beginning of the financial year
Share of net profit of associates - operating results

Transfer ex Reserves

Retained profits attributable fo interest in associate sold during year

Dividends from associates

Share of associates’ accumulated losses at the end of the financial year

Share of post-acquisitlon asset revaluation reserve attvibutable to associates
Share of associates” asset revaluation reserve at the beginning of the financial year
Share of increment in asset revaluation reserves of associates

Shate of associates’ asset revaluation reserve at the end of the financial year

Commitments
Share of associates’ operating lease commztments payable:
Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years

Operating lease commitments relating to aircraft amount to $73;95 1,000 (2000: $63,114,000).

Share of associates’ capital expenditure commitments payable:

Not later than one year

Contingent labilities
Share of associates’ contingent liabilities:

Not later than ong year

-42-

32,585 128,393
6,388 47,569
118,973 175.962
31,728 £39,909
65.257 3,019
96985 __142.928
—..21.088 __ 33,034
(25,796) (47,810)
2,57 18,085

- 12,502

- 3,852

(20,072 (12,425}
21 21

21 2]
23,250 - 20,268
51,17 67,873
74967 __28,141
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29. ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

~ Country of Interest held in
incorporation controfled entities
2001 2000
% %
Ansett Holdings Limited Aust 100 §00
‘Controlled entities:
Ansett Australia Holdings Limited Aust 100 100
Controtled entities:
Airport Terminals Pty Limited Aust 100 © 100
Aldong Services Pty Limited : Aust 100 100
Ansett Aircraft Finance Limited Aust 100 100
Ansett Airlines Avstralia Limited UK 100 100
Ansett Australia Limited Aust 160 100

Coutrolled entities:

501 Swanston Street Pty Limited -Aust 100 100

Ansett Carts Pty Limited Aust 100 100

Ansett Induostries (Hong Kong) Limited HKG 100 100

Ansett Leasing (HK) Limited HKG 100 100

Ansett Technologies (NZ) Limited NZ 100 100

Whitsunday Affairs Pty Limited Aust 100 100

Whitsunday Harbour Pty Limited Auvst 100 100
Ansett Aviation Equipment Pty Limited Aust 100 100
Ansett Equipment Finance Limited Aust 500 160
Ansett Equipment Limited Cayman Is. 100 100
Ansett Finance Limited Aust 100 100
Ansett Intemmational Air Freight Inc. USA 100 100
Ansett Niugini Enterprises Limited PNG e Lo
Northern Territory Aerial Work Pty Limited - Aust 106 100
South Centre Maintenance Pty Limited Aust 100 100
Southern Aviation Leasing Limited Cook 1s. 100 : 100
SPACA Pty Limited (formerly TNT / Ansett

Chinese loint Yenture Company Limited Aust 1040 ) 100
Transpacific Enterprises Inc. ’ UsA 100 100

Controlled entity:

Showfilm Inc. USA 100 100
Tranzair (NZ) Limited NZ 100 100
Traveland International Pty Eimited Aust 100 100

Controlled entities:

Traveland Pty Limited Aust 109 100

Controlled entity:
Traveland New Staff Pty Limited Aust 100 100

Traveland Discovery Holidays Pty Limited Aust 73 73

Controlled entities: _

Southern Aviation Leasing Pty Limited Auvst 100 100

Viva! Discovery Holidays Inc. USA 100 100
Traveland International {Aust) Pty Limited Awust 100 100

Controlled entity:

Traveland South Pacific Limited NZ 100 100

Traveland International (NZ) Limited NZ 106 100
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2%. ANSETT HGLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

Country of Interest held in
incorporation controlled entities
2001 2000
Y %
Westintech Limited Aust 100 100
Cantrolled entities:
Aceronautical Industries Australia Pty Limited Aust 100 100
Planar Holdings Pty Limited Aust 100 160
Westintech Nominees Pty Liniited Aust 100 100
Wridgways Holdings Limited Aust 100 100
Controlled entities: i
Wridgways (NSW) Pty Limited Aust 100 100
Wridgways (VIC) Pty Limited Aust (00 10G
Bodas Pty Ltd Aust {00 100
Controlled entity:
Aeropelican Air Services Pty Limited Aust 100 100
Austfin Nominees Pty Limited Aust 100 : 100
Hazelton Airlines Limited Aust 100 -
Controlled entities:
Hazelton Air Charters Pty Limited ) Aust 100 -
Hazelton Air Setvices Piy Limited Aust 100 -
Kendell Airlines {(Aust) Pty Limited Aust 100 {00
Show Group Pty Limited Aust 100 100
Controlied entities: '
Showfilm {NZ) Limited NZ 100 (09
Showfilm UK Limited SNG 100 10G
Showfreight (NZ} Limited NZ 100 S 10D
Showfreight Singapore Pte Limited SNG . 100 e 100
Showsports (NZ) Limited NZ 100 100
Showtickets (NZ) Limited ' NZ 100 1003
Showtrave! (NZ) Limited NZ 100 100
Traveland International (UK) Limited UK 100 . 100
Contrelied entities: ' '
Ansett Ticket Sales Limited ) UK 100 100
Showtravel UK. Limited UK 100 100
Skywest Airtines Pty Limited Auvst 10¢ 100
Controlled entities: :
Skywest Aviation Limited Aust 100 100
Skywest Jet Charter Pty Limited Aust 10G 100
The Witienoom Unit Trust Aust 100 100
Trans West Airlines Pty Limited Aust 100 100
Westralian Aviation Pty Limited Aust 100 100
Mearael Pty Limited Aust 100 100
Controlled eatity: :
Skywest Holdings Pty Limited Aust 130 100
Controlled entity:
Aircraft Leasing Pty Limited Aust 90 20
Controlled entity:
Aircraft Leasing Finance Pty Limited Aunst 90 20
Brazson Pty Limited
44




00204

ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

29. ANSETT HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

Country of Interest held in
incorporation cantrolled entities
‘ 2001 2000
Yo %
Eastwest Airlines Limited
Controlled entity:
Eastwest Aislines (Operations) Limited Aust 100 100
Northern Airlines Limited Aust 100 108
Rock-It-Cargo {Aust) Pty Limited Aust 100 100

Walgali Pty Limited Aust 100 100

The investment in all controlled entities shown above is in ordinary shares apart from:
s Ansett Industries (Hong Kong) Limited - 205,730 redeemable preference shares of HK$1 each
» Traveland Intemational Pty Limited - 12,000 non cumulative redeemable preference shares of HKS$1

Business is carried on in the country of incorporation shown. Ansett Australia Limited also carried on business in the United Kingdom and New
Zealand.
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Caonsolidated Company
2001 2000 2001 2000
Note _ 3000 $'000 §'000 $'000
30. NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{a} Reconciliation of Cash
For the purposes of the Staternents of Cash Flows, cash
sncludes cash on hand and at bank, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of the financial year
as shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled
to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position
as follows: )
Cash 21,280 159,212 -
Bank overdratt and Jetters of credit 11 (2.028) {19y - -
19,252 159,193 - -
(b}  Reconciliation of Operating Profit After Income Tax
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities
Operating profit/(loss) after income tax (373,043) 144,436 9,957 (2,052)
Add/(Less) items classificd as investing/ )
financing activities: i
(Profit)/Loss on sale of nop current assets - {74,236} {7,057) - -
(Profit)/Loss on sale of investments 1,953 .
Borrowing costs paid - 102,715 94,081 3,515 3,206
Interest received o (17,51 (39,096) . : -
Addf{Less} non cash items: o
Amounts set aside to provisions 27,530 27,530 - -
Depreciation and amortisation 228,200 184,220 - -
Unrealised foreign exchange (gains)/losses 306,227 {10,546} - -
Associated company resuits 2571y (5,660} - -
Abnormal items (] (96,191}
Net cash provided by operating activities before ' '
change in assets and liabilities 251,726 291,726 13,572 1,154
Change in assets and liabilities, net of effects
from acquisition of businesses:
(Increase)/Decrease in assels {66,558) {66,558) {6,024} -
Receivables {11,623)
Inventories
Other assets
(Decrease)/Increase in Tiabilities (61,441) (61,441) (3,039) (1,154)
Trade payables :
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities 163,727 163,727 - -

()  Acquisition and Disposal of Controlled Entities

In Aprif, 2001, the consolidated entity acquired a 100% holding in Hazelton Airlines Limited for a consideration of $25,272,000.
The operating results of this controlled entity have been included in the consolidated statement of financiat performance since

the date of acquisition.
Details of the acquisition are as follows:

Fair value of identifiable net assets of controlled entity acquired
Aidrcraft
Property, plant and equipment
Trade debtors
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16,918
1,760
7.915




lnventories

Other assets

Bank overdraft

Trade creditors

Lease liabilitics

Deferred tax

Pravisions and other liabilities

Goodwill on consolidation
Cash consideration

Outflow of cash to acquire controlled entity,
net of cash acquired

Cash consideration

Bank overdraft balance acquired
Qutflow of cash

Caonsolidated

2001
$'000

25,272
2,979

2000
$'000

00204

6,724
3,815
2,979
(10,144)
(10,163)
{1,620
(4281)
7,945
17,327
23270

Company

2001 2000
$°000 £000

28,253}
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors present their report together with the financial statements of Anselt Australia Limited ("the Campany") for the year ended 30
June 200 and the Auditors' report thereon.

DIRECTORS e
The directors of the Company at any time during o sinee the end of the financial year are:

J McCrea (resigned 7 July 2000}

C A Wallace (resigned 25 August 2000)

D I lrvine {resigned 21 August 2000)

A C Paterson {appointed 22 September 2000, resigned 16 February 2001}
A B Miller {appointed 22 September 2000)

1 A Dell {appointed 22 September 2000, resigned 16 February 2001)

G K Toomey {appointed 1& February 2001, resigned 24 Augus 2001)

I H Blair (appointed 16 Februasy 2001}

§ D Roworth (appointed 16 February 2001)

G Frazis {appointed 16 February 2001)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company during the course of the ﬁnanci.al‘ 5;ear wer; alifline ﬁaésénger aﬁd freight gervices.' '

RESULTS I

The Company’s operations for the financial year resulted in an ope'ratiﬁg loss after income tax of $219,600,000 (2000;profit $175,906,000).
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Included within the operating: loss after tax were individually sigﬁiﬂcant loss items of $112.8mitlion (2000: abnommal profits $130.%
millian). The items principally relate to restructuring costs, promotional expenses associated with the Olympic Games and a change in
accaunting for foreign curmency movements on aircraft residuals. -

In the opinion of the Directors there were no other significant changes jn the state of affairs of the Company that occurred during the
financial year under review,

STATE OF AFFAIRS

In the opinion of the Directors there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company that cccutred during the financial
year under review. ) e .

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

The directors are not aware of any matier of circumstance not etherwise dealt with in the financial statements that has significantly affected
or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations’or the state of affairs of the Company in
subsequent financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

Information as to the likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected resuls of those operations in subseguent
financial years has not been included in this report because the disclosure of such information wouid be likely to result in unreasonable
prejudice to the Company. : -

ENVIRONMENT

The operations of the Company are subject to significant environmental tegulation under both"Commonwealth and State legislation. In
particular the Airport {Environmental Protection) Regulations 1997 and relevant State legislation, not specifically precluded by the
Commonwealth legistation, affect aircraft operations, maintenance and other associated activities. During the year, environmental risk was
included in the Corporate Risk Profile and the risk associated with not meeting environmental reporting requirements was assessed through
a comprehensive risk assessment. :

The Company managed its environmental risk through auditing and tisk reduction initiatives. Regular internal and external audits were
used to identify any risk of breaching environmental legislation. Any identified potential breach was discussed with the relevant authority
1o ensure a satisfactory solution was reached. The Ansett Holdings group implemented its Nationa! Spill Response Strategy which is
aimed at ensuring that spill response techniques are consistent across all group operations. The development of an Environmental
Management System was commenced at Engineering, focused on minimising the environmental risk associated with the company's key
engineering activities. :

To the directors’ knowledge, there have been no significant breaches of relevant legislation.
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

DIRECTORS® INTERESTS AND BENEFITS

No director of the Company has received or become entitled i receive a benefit (other than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of
remuneration received or due to be received by directors, 45 shown in the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the
Company, its controlled entities or a related body corporate, with any director or with a firm of which any director is a member or with an
entity in which any director has a substantial financial interest.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

The Company has an agreement indemnifying all the directurs and officers of the Company against alt liabilities to another person (other

" than the Company or a related body corporate) that may arise rom their position as directors and officers of the Company, except where the
liability arises out of conduct involving lack of good faith. The agreement stipulates that the Comgpany will meet the full amount of any
such liabilities, including costs and expenses. .

Since the end of the previous financial year the parent entity has paid insurance premiums of $153,275 in respect of Directors’ and
Officers’ Liability and Legal Expenses insurance contracts, tor current and former.directors and officers, including executive officers of the

Company and directors, executive officers and secretaries of its controlled entitics. This policy insures against all liabilities and expenses
arising as a result of work perfomed in the respective capaciiv of the person, to the extent permitted by the law.

ROUNDING

The Company is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 9+ /100 dated 10 Juby.1998 and in accordance with, that Class Order, amouats in .. .. -
the financiat report and directors report have been rounded of7 to the nearest thousand dolfas, unless otherwise stated. o

This report is signed for and on behalf of the directors in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Ditectors this &é\y of 7
, 2001, at . B B

waa S rreme

Director

ER
LRI AL TR TN
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE MEMY 'S OF
ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

Scope

We have audited the financial report of Ansett Australia Limited for the finar 1 - ended 3+ fime 2001, being v sp - purpose
financial report consisting of the statement of financial performance, state & o finangial josition, statement of . .<h flows,
-accompanying notes, and the directors’ declaration set out on pages 4 t0 24, 1. - & pany’s dive s afe responsible for . - financia!

seport. The Directors have determined that the accounting poticies used wad dese - wote o linancial statemer. w0 wopric,
to meet the requirements of the Corporations Law and the needs of the roombers. = I ¢ conduetes. - independent andic or' s Jinancia:
report in order to express an opinion on it to the members of the Company. No o -2+ is expressey  liether the accounting 1 «jvies usial.

and described in Note |, are apprepriate to the needs of the members.

The financial report has been prepared for distribution to members for the purpo: - of {4 filling the « - wirements of the Curpo..itions Law
We disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any refiance on this seport, or « 1+ 17 financial | it to which it relais, i+ wy person
other than members, or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standard. 1o reovide reas. Ol assurance whetsr > financia
report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures included examinziion, onc 1 220 o ¢ suppurting the a:v.. und athe:
disclosures in the financial report, and the evaluation of significant accounting e ures have been i o o fean
an opinion whether, in alt material respects, the financial siwements v pree ¢ ° ‘roee with the ba - 1 eountiag
described in Note | to the financial stalements, so as to present a view  kich is ’ G Jerstanding of Co i
position and performance, as represented by the results of its operations und s ¢ 5 Soes Thesa p *ies do not require it . w; heation of
all Accounting Standards nor other mandatory professional reporting requirements in: Anstralia.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.
Audit Opinion

I out opinion, the financial report of Ansett Australia Limited is in accordance w.

{a} the Corporations Law, including:
iy giving a true and fair view of the Comp:iy’s finar. tal poss - - .t 5+ )oue I 1 and of its peclst, ERTIRRN
ended on that date in accordance with accounting ; clicies v . . i dvew Do ihe finwncial stater o ol

il complying with AASE 1025 “Application of the Reporthr |+ Concep ¢ 8 Other Amendme<*. " A%B 1.
“Information to be Disclosed in Financial Repori:™, other . . ¢ Howe  to the extent des. ' - a1 Nep 7
and the Corporations Regulations; and

(b} other mandatory professional reporting requirements (o the exteat des. “wv it Mot | tat - Hinancial statemern .

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Melbourne

2001 . ‘ ‘ -
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION -

In the opinion of the directors of Ansett Australia Limited;
1. {a) the company is not a reporting entity;
{b} the financial statements and notes, set out on pages 5 to 24, are in accordance with the Corporations Law, including:
(i) piving a true and fair view of the financial position of the ‘Company as at 30 June 200t and of its
petformance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows, for the year ended on that

date in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 1; and

(v} complying with Accounting Standards to the extent described in Note | and the Corporations Regulations; .
and

{c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to-pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable. : .

Dated at this day of 2001.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Dircctor

-4 ' _ -5-




ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2001

2001 2000
Mote $'000 $000
' Revenne
Revenue from rendering of services 2,742,084 2,942 062
Other revenue from ordinary activities 1,215 842 _
Expenditure : )
Labour : (1,095,606} (1,050,930)
Fuel ) {329,842 - {245,850)
Maintenance and overfiaul : (208,219} (157.045)
Aircraft and traffic servicing : : - ©+ T - {(153,283) (175,084)
Passenper services {159,508) {141,127}
Sales and marketing {428,136) (392,465)
Aircraft operating leases SR (119,791) {103,556)
Depreciation and amortisation (175,047) {144,418)
Borrowing costs ) (57.163) {63,299
Other expenses from ordinary activities i {385.889) . (352,698}
Profit{{Loss) from ordinary activities before )
income tax expense 2 (369,235} 116,432
Income tax {expense}/benefit attributable to
operating profit/(ioss) EEC 149,635 59474
Profit/(Loss) from ordinary activities after .
income tax expense : {219,600) 175,906
Increase in asset revaluation reserve arising on
revaluation of non current assets : i A : T 6,825
Increasef(cdecrease) in foreign currency translation seserve arising - - - .- .
on translation of self-sustaining foreign operations B T T T 161 (252}
Total Revenue. Expense and Valvation adjustments attributable " .....—.. .. ...
to Members recognised directly in Equity ] ] _ 6! {6.573) }
* Total Changes in Equity other than these resulting ) |
from transactions with Owners as Owners Coro DDAl (219,439) 182,479 T
|
|
I i

The statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with it accompanying notes te-the financial statements.  ~~ - =+ - Jwner o

.5- : -6
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2001
. 2001 2000
Note $:000 $'000
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash - - - .
Receivables 4 i 470,787 . 438,836
Inventories 3 140,507 114,986
Other 9 13,791 38,725
Tatal Current Assets 625,085 592,547
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Rcoeivahle§ 4 32,952 39,057
Financial assets 6 © 1,024 - 1,024 -
Property, plant and equipment 7 :1,798,861... . 1,839,253
Deferred tax assets 8 36,340 . : 4,162
Other 9 e - 32256, . . 1.07¢
Total Non Current Assets 1.891.433 1,884,575
TOTAL ASSETS 2516518 2477122
CURRENT LIABILITIES : oo .
Payables . ) e . 776,670 - - 870,627 .
Interest bearing liabilities 11 BRECEE 205,793 170,579
Current tax liabilities A . 26,615 . (17,325}
Provisions ) 13 160,523 143,621 .
Other 15 . 606 - 334
Total Current Liabilities . 1,170,207 1.167,836
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES '
Payables 10 C Tmssst 0 367332
Interest bearing liabilities 11 499,303 464,322
Provisions 13 . 52,276 109,164
Deferred tax liabilities 14 39,218 163,042
Other 15 e : - 118 e
Totat Non Current Liabilities 1,366,348 1,108,979
TOTAL LIABILITIES : = 2sS36,555 2,276,815
NET ASSETS / (DEFICIENCY OF NET ASSETS) (20.037) 200,307
EQUITY
Contributed equity |6 3,000 3,000
Reserves 17 135,124 134,963
Accuomulated losses - 18 {158,161} 62344
TOTAL EQUITY (DEFICIT) o i {20,037) - 200,307
The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
e
. 6




ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts in the course of operations
Cash payments in the course of operations
tnconte tax paid during year

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Loans made by / {10) associated companies
Net advances 1o related bodies corporate
" Proceeds from sale of non current assets and businesses
Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowing costs paid

Repaymient of borrowings

Amounts received/(repaid} on loan from parent entity
Lease payments

Net cash (used ih)/provided by financing activities
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE} IN CASH HELD

Cash af the beginning of the financial year

CASH AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The Statement of Cashffews is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

00210

2001 2000
Nete : $'000 $'600
2,930,255 2,992,058
(2,609217)  (2,480,419)
'(52.048) (55.792)
23 268,992 455,847
342 366
(229,422) (149,018)
59,004 **(13,305)
(40,004 .(34,151)
109.134 64,749
100446 (131859 .
(67.152) (70,199)
(65,552) (57,808)
. 43,459 (135,231}
75138 . - (21.980)
(264,376} (285.218)
195,830) 38,770
© 56,979 © 18209
23 % .o T L T{3BBEEY 86079 v

-

S norad Te




0021 ;

ANSETT AUSTRALIALIMITED ~ * . "o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001
i. SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING i’OL]ClES

L
Basis of Preparation

The directors are of the view that the Company is not a reporting entity, These financial statements have been prepared
as 4 special purpose financial report solely to meet the Cotporations Law requirements to prepar¢ financial statements.
1n the opinion of the Directors, the accounting standards applied in the preparation of these financial -staterents are: ..
appropriate to meet the needs of the members, and comply with alf accounting standards appiicable to general purpose
financial statements, except for: . .

- AASB 1033 “Presentation and Disclosure of Financial Instruments”
- AASB 1017 “Related Party Disclosures™ .
- AASBE [028 “Accounting for Employee Entitlements” in respect of certain disclosures. -

“The financial repost has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and, except where stated, does not take into
account changing money values or current valuations of non current assets.-Cost is based on the fair values of the
consideration given in exchange for assels,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis, notwithstanding the deficit of net assels, as
there are reasanable grounds to believe that additional working capitat witl be provided by the utimate parent-entity:---

Significant Accounting Policies . T
The accounting policies have been consistently applied to ensure that the resulting-financial information satisfies the
concepts of relevance and reliability. Except where there is a change in accounting policy noted, the policies are .
consistent with those of the previous year. . G

The company has adopted the presentation and disclosure requirements of Accounting Standards AASB 1413 “Statement of -
Financial Performance”, AASB 1034 “Financial Report Presentation and Disclosure” and AASB 1040 “Statement of Financial
Position™, for the first time in the preparation of this financial report. In accordance with the requiremnents of these new/revised
Standards, comparafive amounts have been reclassified in order to comply with the new presentation forinat.

Where riecessary, comparative information has been otherwise reclassified to achieve consistency in disclosure with current
financial year amounts and ather disclosures. ’

L

BRI E IR TR HEL I AR T AR R L PP P

The significant policies, which have been adopted in the preparatio;;af this financial report, are as follows

Receivables
Trade Debtors

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounis due less any provision for doubtful debts, A provision for doubtfut debts
is recognised when collection of the full nominal amount is no longer probable.

Inventaries

[nventories and work in progress are valued at the lower of oos:i,anq. net.teafisable. vaipe, (Cost aggqlnn the.. .
weighted average cost principle. Other stocks and stores are valued. at cost and provision is mads for any diminution in | ..
value. oot

Deferred Expenditure
Material items of expenditure are deferred to the extent that management consider that it is probable that firture

economic benetits embodied in the asset will eventuate and can be measured reliably. Deferred expenditure is
ainortised over the period in which the related benefits are expected to be reatised.




ANSETT AUSTRALIJA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEM: 7% 4 7 36 JUNE

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICI 5 (conti

& MNan Current Assets

‘I'le carrying amounts of all non current assets arc -

recoverable amount at balance date.  Where the car + n:

amaunt, the asset is written down to the low. 1 wnount.

In nssessing recoverable amounts of non current ass. .. = o

present value, except where specifically stated.

Certain non curtent assets have been revaluca With (- ¢ L
tinwe to time and are not made in accordance with a pol .+ e

Investments
Cantroiled Entities
luvestments in controlled entities compris. iares b’ -

¢'ompany’s financial statements at cost or valuation :
controiled entities are accounted for on a dividend receis: 3 basicd

Associated Companies

An associated company is one in which the cutity exer - o 0
has not been acquired with a view to disposi inthene L =

Iavestments in associated companies comprise shares -~ @ -
eampanies are carried at the lower of cost and reco. -
rescived in the Company’s financial stateni:t3

(tier Companies

Other investments are shown at cost unl_c.f:'-J{herwis

crvated 1o account for any reduction in theis - zluation.

jncome Tax

I he company adopts the liability method of tux effect aceounting,

" Income tax expense or benefit is calculated on operating profit o

1ax benefit ar a provision for deferred income tax.

1 nere income tax benefits are not browght 1 : necount
'mure income tax benefits relating.to en: .5 with
virtually certain. The tax effect of capital | .scs is no

Glnles

croeech flows

and by
.tion.
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ANETT AUSTRAL! " 'MITED

NOES TO THE Fi - 71 L. STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001
i SUMMARY OF & - © - =)LICIES {continued}
Properey, Pluood s 3 -0 » _ . ) -
& e
Acquisition
llems of properly. ##-0 . - © st are initially recorded at cost and depreciated as outlined below.
Reviluations
Certain fixed assel: < .+t ncial statements have been revalued at various times as indicated {Refer Nute 8}
A ptovision for capui: ¢-v 1. uly provided when it is known that the asset will eventually be sold.
Disposal of Reval} -
The gain or loss ot w® - 'ne. ued assets is calculated as the difference between the carrying ameum of the assets -
at the time of dispess., : _eds on disposal and is included in the result for the year of disposal. Any related

revaluation incren..: - : dating to the disposed assets standmg in the asset revatuation reserve 1 e lime of
disposal is trznsle-n! : s . - . .

Depreciation
ltems of property, i { cariinent, including buitdings and leasehold praperty, but excluding freehold land, are
depreciated over tha . “life, generally using the straight-line method of depreciation.
The deprecintion .o v -+ . class of assets are as foliows:
2000 ... 1999
Freehold buildings 2.5% o 25%
Leaschold tailding - o 5.5% 5.5%
Adrerafl, engines a . -~ nd leased) 4% - 6% 4%
Plant and equipme o ~ed} 15% - 15%
Depreciation rates # . * i 2 anlly and if necessary, adjusted so that they.will reflect.the most recent. assessments
of the usetul lives 1. sorLisels. e e .

Leased Planvand | -

Leases of plant ane ., ..t » which the economic entity assumes substantially all of the risks and ¥ =::1iks inctd.
to ownership are cf -« ¢ v leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalised. A fease asset and liability equal to the present value of the minimum lease paymcnts
excluding executory costs, are recorded at the inception of the lease. Lease liabilities are reduced by payments of principal.
The interest component of the lease payment is expensed in the statement of financial performance. Capitalised lease assets
are amortised on a straight fine basis against the income of the accounting periods which are expected to benefit from their
use over the term of the relevanr Ime or where it is likely that the Company will obtain, gwnership of the asset, the Jife of e

the asset. Minbm: 1 . < made under operating leases are charged against profits in equal inst:'ments over it
acconnting e - t A term. . B
Derivatives . T T INP
The compan: w+ -+ .. . in interest rates, foreign cxchange ralgs and cummﬂd:ty pnces from sk
policy o w0 - istruments to hedge these risks. 1i"is "group policy not to enter, | T
fincial ip~ouws L 0SES,
Fowsion Cuse s

Free pedes oLt 0 o - wd 0 hedge the purchase or sale of goods and services, any unreals T g .
logses on the cour . any costs Or gains arising at the time of entering into the hedge are . redumn - nai;

of ihe hedge 11any: .44 in the measurement of the underlying sale or purchase transaction.

=[0-




ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE % . :1

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Devivatives {continued)

All non specific hedge transactions are initially reconded at the spot rate a1 tae Jite of

balance dute are transtated at the rates ol exchange rutiig on that date and am cscting 0 e,

statemen of financial performance, Costs or gaing arising at the lime ofens. - fam
the lite of the hedge. All contracts that are hedging principal repayments of & . owing

Payables

Trade Creditors and Accrusls

Liahilities are recognised for amounts (o be paid in the fulure for goods and servic . noo

consolidated entity.

Frequent Flyer Liability

The obligation to provide trave! rewards and other benetits to members of 6 ¢
provided for as points are accumulated by members.

MPR

The provision is reduced 1o reflect the value of pointy redeemed by memben. 2 the s
Related Party Loans

Loans from related parties are carried 2t the principal amount. interest is takes
Bank Overdrait and Bank Loans

ta

The bank overdrafis and loans are carried at the principal amount. Interesi ¢ bar.
incurred. Titerest on bank loss is charged as an expense on an acerual basis.

Employce Entitlenents
Whages. Sataries and Annnal Leave
The provisions for employee entitlements to wages, szlaries and annual 1 L0 cesen

obligation 10 pay resulting from employees’ service: provided up o e .
nominal amounts based o current wage and safary riues and inelude refnged o

Long Service Leave

The liability for employee citiilemenis o long semiu leave represenis thay -

AT
be made by the entity-resuiiing from employces’ services provided up 10 The budunce 6.

in'

Ui estimated future ¢

-
. 5-?_.:_:‘
ramsaction.  Hedges ouistanding al

-+nces are brought 1o account in the
¢ are deferred and aminrtised over
ted as non specific hedges.

‘ived, whether or not bilied to the |

.~uent flyer program is progressively

", ;1 of unused points,

upt as @it o~ ese on an acerual basis.

wevdrafls is-charged as an ¢xpuense as -

;wunt which thie entity bas 2 present
. rrovisions have, bccn calevtated at

RTINS l(J' .

The measurement of long service leave entitlements which are not expected to be settled within twelve months have been based
on a calculation of the prcsent value of the estimated future cash outflows. In determining this liability, consideration has been
given to future increases in wage and salary rates, staff departure rates and applicable discount-rates. which most closely match
the terms of maturity of the related liabilities. Related on costs have also been included.in the Liability,. - st

Superanition Plans

TS RS
P TV . .

The enticy contributes to i s«
the requirernents of trust ¢
are e,

-11-
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

1. SUMMARY OF ACCOLUNTING POLICIES {continued)
Revenue Recognition
Sales Revenue

Passenger and freight sales arc not recognised as revenue until the transportation service is rendered. At the time of sale a
current fiability for unearned rovenue is established. Subscquently this is eliminated either through carriage by controlled
eatities. through billing from unother carrier who renders the service, ot by refund to the customer. e

Interest Incotne
Interest income is recognised in the period in which it accrues,
Asset Sales

The gross proceeds of asset sales are included in revenues of the entity, The profit or loss on disposat of assets is brought to
accouns at the date an unconditional contract of sale is signed,

Foreign Currency
Transactions

Foreign currency transactions are transiated to Australian Currency at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates of the
transactions., Amounts receivehie and payable in foreign currencies at balance date are translated at the rates of exchange ruling
on that date.

Exchange differences reliting 1o amounts payable and receivable in foreign currencies are brought to account as exchange gains
or losses in the statement of {inancial performance in the finandial year in which the exchange rates change.

Adircraft residual values, which are denominated in United States Dollars, are considered to be effectively hedged by ﬁnhedged
United States Dotlar loan obiiz.tions, Gains and losses arising from movements in exchange rates applicable to aircraft residual
values are recognised in the sieencial statements of the consolidated entity, Ansett Holdings Limited and its Controlled Entities.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs include interest. amortisation of discounts or premivms refating to borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs
incurred in connection with wtrangement of botrowings and lease finance charges. Borrowing costs are expensad as incurred.
unless they relate to qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets which take more than 12 months to get ready for the intended
use or sale. Where furnds ave borrowed specifically for the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, the
amount of borrowing cosin capitalised are those incurred in relation to that borrowing, net of any interest earned on those
borrowings. Where funds &rv Tovrrowed generally, borrowing costs are capitalised using a weighted average capitalisation rate.

Goods and Services Tax

Revenues. expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except where the amount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office (ATO). Inthese chréomituiites, the GST is recognised as part of
the cost of acquisition of the o sct or as part of an item of the expensé: =~

Receivables and payabic: © +:ned with the amount of GST included. ) -

- B - . - *

The net amount of GST 1 - »ihie from, or payable to, the ATO is included as & current asset or liability in the statemnent of
financial position. Lo ‘

Cash flows are included - '.' *xesement of cash flows ona gross'basts' "111e‘GST component of cash flows arising from
investing and financing 5. . .. which are recoverable from, of payab]c to, the ATO are class:f' ed as opcratmg cash flows.

e PO IR, BT PRI T T 13
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

2001 2000
$:000 $'000
. i N -
2. PROFRITALOSS) FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
Profit/{loss) from ordinary dctivities before income tax includes
the following items of revenue and expense:
{a) Revenue from 6perating activities:
Rendering of services 2,742,084 2,942,062
Interest ’
- related parties oo o 691 691
- other parties B L 151 151
Foreign exchange gain ' ’ . .
{b) Revenue from outside operating activities:
Gross proceeds from sale of controlled entities
and non-current assets 109,134 109,134
' 3,052,038 3,052,038
{c) Operating expenscs:
Depreciationfamortisation of: :
« buildings X 14,642
- aircraft engines and spares X 76,060
- plant and equipment X 23,596
- leased assets capitalised X 29,074
- deferred expenditure b3 1.046
% 144,418
Amounts set aside to/(released from) provisions for
- employee eatitiements X 13,227
- doubitéful trade debts x (2,813)
- other X {46,797
Bad debts written off X 4,149
Operating lease rental expense X 148,115
Borrowing costs:
other patties X 17,028
capitalised leases X 12,656
selated parties X 37,468
Less borrowing costs capitalised:
ather parties X {3.853}
X 63,299
Foreign exchange loss Lo LS e S e X 39,756
Remuneration of auditors:
- auditing the financial report : X 210
- other services . X 320
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of npn-current assels X - 1,520

-13-
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001 ‘ .. °
2001 2000
$:000 $000

{d) Individually significant items in: f212d in prafit/{loss)
from ordinary activities before racome tax

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of non cuzrer - +:sots and

assevliability carrying value adjustm. . Lo 38,683
Gain on purchase arésing from refinavains of _- " '
aircraft lease with related party - 69,317
Olympic Games promotional costs ' (36,359j -
GST implementation costs . (3,022),. . - - (-8,653)
Provision for legal settlement §] 1,00‘(-))"”- o -
Restructure costs . (62.425) -
{112 806} 993417

Lot .- . ot e




ANSETT AUSTRALIJIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

3. INCOMETAX

{a)

(b

Income ‘Tax (Expense)/Benefit -

Prima tacie income tax (expense)/benefit calculated at 34%

(2000: 36%) on the operating profit/(loss)
Adjusted by the tax effect of!

Non assessable profit/(loss) on disposal of non current
assets and controlied entity
Non assessable gain on purchase arising from
refinancing of aircratt
Other non assessable and exempt income
Provision for non recovery of loans receivable
Other permanent differences

Income tax {expense)/benefit on the operating profit
Income tax aver/(under) provided in prior years
Timing differences not previously recognised
Tax credit arising from rate change effect

on timing differences

income tax (expense)/benefit attributable
to operating profit

Dividend Franking Account

As at 30 June 2001 the Company's dividend franking
account had a surpius of $ x  (2000: $123,907,000).

Chnear i athar

vo21g

2000

2001
$000 $'000
“171,150 41,916)
" (®) 11,266
- : 24,954
10,843 .
(46,070) .
(1.571) 9,730
134,344 (73,095)
2,801) 25,043
12,301 -
(14,200} 36,397
149 635 50,474

P LTI
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

RECEIVABLES

Current
Trade debtors
L.ess provision for doubtful debts

Sundry debtors and ioans to other parties
Amount owing by associate

Amounis owing by parent entity
Amounts owing by related parties

Less provision for non-recavery

Non Current
Sundry debtors and loans to other parties
Amounts owing by related parties

INVENTORIES

Finished goods
Less provision for stock obsolescence

Raw materials and generai stores

Work in progress
Assets held for resale

INVESTMENTS
Controlled enatities:

Shares - at cost
i.ess amount written off

Associated companies:

Unlisted shares - at cost
Less associated companies reserves -

.

Shares in other corporations - at cost

o

-1 6-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

021y

2001 2000
$'000 $'000

406,570 398,754

(1754} (3.423)

398,816 395,331

| 56,688 32,217

ce . 648 -

6,062 .

10,073 11,288

{1,500} -

470,787 438,836

- 6,557

32,952 32,500

_32,952 39,057

356 671

27) {17

339 654

13,121 112,297

e 15,815 2,035

ST 11232 .

140,507 114,986

16,974 16,974

{15.943) (15,943}

] TE kY A i.031
.50, o ..
{627 ®2) 7 PR

{19 {12)

5 5

1,024 1,024
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED ' -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

2001 2000
3000 L9000 -
7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT N - . -
Freehold land and buildings . .
at cost o - 835
less accumulated depreciation - (23)
) - 812
at 2000 directors’ vaheation o 73,180 -
at 1997 directors' valuation ’ o - 77,397
less accumulated depreciation RV (3.041)
73.180 74,356
Total treehold fand and buildings B L 73,180 75,168
Leasehold land and buildings
at cost - 5,515
less accurnulated amortisation - (624)
- 4,891
at 2000 directors’ valuation ) . 320,370 -
at 1997 directors' valuation . - 187,807
less accumutated amortisation T - {19,931} .
) 320,370 167,876
Total leasehold land and buildings . . 320,370 172,767
Toetal land and buildings ’ 393,550 247,935
Alrcraft, engines and spares . . .
at cost _ 1,734,632 1,727,559
less accumulated depreciation L {657,492} (624,326}
1,077,140 1,103,233
at 1988 directors' valuation 17,525 17,525 |
less accumulated depreciation {12.945) (12.351) |
_ 4,580 3,174 _ |
Total aireraft, engines and spares 1,081,720 1,108,407 }
Aircraft, engines and spares under Jease i |
at cost i 516,805 514,905
Jess accumulated amortisation {263,752) {241.996)
253053 272,909
at 1985 directors’ valuation 45,924 47,824
less accumulated amortisation . {31,054y - {30,281)
) 14,870 17.543 :
Total aircraft, engines and spares under lease 267,923 290,453 G

-17- X0
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2000

2000 1959
$'600 : $000
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (centinued) ' 6
Plant and equipment S - : R Pl e
less accumnulated depreciation {410.087) (39%.668)
173.874 232.885
Plant and equipment under lease
at cost ] 48,416 39,812
less accumulated amortisation (26,157 {t%.651)
. . P . o . 22:259‘.' e T e .2(-,.201
Total plant and equipment - 196,133 253,086
N T Tami gt im
Total property, plant and equipment 1,939,326 : 1,899,880
The valuation of fand and buildings was carried out as at 30 June 2000 - - = :
and was on the basis of independent assessments of the fair market
value of the properties concerned in their existing use, of in the case of
the Sydney Terminat building, on the basis of replacement cost. The -
directors of the Company are of the opinjon that this valuation provides
a reasonable estimate of recoverable amount as at 30 June 2000, -~
The independent valnation of the land and buildings portfolio was
carried out as at 30 June 2000 by CB Richard Ellis (V) Pty Limited,
Certified Practising Valuers. This valuation was obtatned in accordance
with the entity’s policy of obtaismg an independent vatuation of land
and buildings every three years. o
L P .

. aerenf .
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

20 2000
$000 $'900
8. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS~
Futere income tax benefits comprising the estimated future
benefit, at current income tax rates, of the following
items:
Timing differences ' 7,506 -
Tax losses 30,381 4,162
. 36,340 4,162
Future income tax benefit has been offset against the : ' -
provision for deferred income tax to the extent that timing
differences giving rise to the provision will reverse within the
reporting period during which the benefits from tax losses
and other timing differences are availabte for deduction.
Timing difterences recorded as future income tax benefits
which have been offset against the pravision for deferred
income tax amount to $195,143,000 (2000: $127,045,000).
9. OTHER ASSETS
Current
Deferred expenditure - 9275
Prepayments 11,995 29,450
Qther - 1,796 -
. 13,791 38,728
Men current
Deterred expenditure ) - 59
Other 22256 : 1,020
22,256 1,079
19. PAYARLES
Corrent :
Teade creditors and accruals . : 469,136 285,286
Uneamed revenue 289,094 413,907
Amounts owing to refated parties 18,420 112,430
Amounts owing to associated companies - 59.004
776,670 870,627
Non current
Trade cteditors and accruals 92,553 111,293
Amounts owing to related parties 598,367 256,039
Amount owing to associate R 84631 ° -
. - ) o . . .. . R 4 -1 367,332
(1. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES ' I L.
Current
Bank overdratis - unsecured 31,064 18,851
Bank loans - fully secured 93,214 55,973
Other loans - fully secured™ : = 144
L.ease liabilities 67,016 75,611
Amounts owing to related partics ) 14.459 -
205,793 170,579
Non current ’
Bank loans - fully sccured ' _ 402,067 334,596
l.ease liabilities 17,39} 24,852

-19- o




Amuounis owing to related parties

00223

79.845 104,834
499.303 464,322

-
1
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001 : R
2001 2000
$'000 3000
e
12, AMOUNTS PAYABLE IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES ~ ~ "
The Australian dollar equivalent of unhedged amounts REEEENE i -:"j:?'?E‘-' ha

payable in the foliowing currencies calcuiated at the year end
exchange rates are as follows:

Amounts Payable

Current: : e e
United States Dollars x 49,563

Non gurrent:
United States Dollars X e 308,736

13. PROVISIONS

Current - :
Employze entitlements 160,523 118,276
Other provisions : - 25,362
160,523 __ 143,62}
Non current . - o e .
Ernployee entitlements 52276 109,164
14. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES T R
Provision for deferred income tax ' : - 39218 168,042
The provision for deferred income tax has been reduced
by future income tax benefits attributable to timing differences « -~ e o e e abimib .
by the amount of $195,143,000 (2000 $127,049,000). oo ' L e
15. OTHER LIABILITIES
Current
Deferred revenue 3 =

v Qi

Non current
Deterred revenue

oy . . = N P

. - ‘: 4 - * ‘. . " .
16. CONTRIBUTED EQUITY i - e . onie
Issued and paid up capital S AT T e e
6.000,000 (2000: 6,000,000) ordinary shares fully paid o 3.000 3,000
A . ] . . _ HSTLRTREHETIT T !:-=-:1 ifaar B veirs
o e ® T o iy
i Doabdiney st belod b Bl Sunpgiad ,-{QE--.m-.-.uls:

RS TII T
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

RESERYES

Capital profit

Asset revaluation

Foreign currency translation
Associated company

MOVEMENTS DURING THE YEAR

Assct Revaluation Reserve Tl i

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Surpius on revaluation of land and buildings
Revaluation reserve transferred to retained profits
Balance at end of the financial year -

Forcign Currency Translation Reserve

Balance at beginning of the financial year

Transtation of controlled foreign operations
financial staternents

Balance at end of the financial year

. CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

Capital Expenditure Commitments

Conlracted bot not provided and payable:

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years
Lates than tive years

Operating Lease Commitments

Future operating lease rentals not provided for
in the financial statemenis and payable:

Not later than one yzar

Later than one year but not later than five years
Later than five years :

Operating lease commitments relating to atreraft amount to $396,910,000
{2000: $127,580,000}. The entity leases aircraft, property and plant under
operating leases expiring from one to twelve years. Leases generally provide
the entity with a right of renewal at which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments comprise a base amoiint plus an incremental contingent rental based
an either movements in the Consumer Price Index or operating criteria.

Finance Lease Commitments

Finance lease rentals are payable in respect to aircraft as follows:
Not later than one year i

Later than one year but not later than five yeats

Less fiture finance ¢harges

Lease liabilities provided in the financial statements:

Current
MNan current

-22-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

2601- 2000
$1000 $000
3,400 3,400
131,622 131,622
164 3
(62) (62)
135.124 134,963
131,622 125,208
. 6.825
. @1
131,622 131,622
3 255
461 . o - (252)
|64 3
. 19,401
- 63,886
- 40.954
. 193,679 (10218 -
474,737 270,175
741.597 731,562
1,390,013 1.112.955
71,193 80,000
18.103 26.734
89,296 106,734
(4,889) (6.231)
84407 100,503
67,016 75,611
17.391 24,892
84 407 100,503

00285
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ANSE'VT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTiLS TO THE.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JU-. i 2001
29l 2000
e s000__

19. CONVINGENT LIABILITIES

‘hle are set out below The directors are

The dewils and estimated maximum amouats of contingent liabilities that may becon: -
nel awsre of any circumstance or information which would lead them to believe that th:

Ylnseoured guarantees

Parciit entity:

- maximum 41,400 Trantig,400
- ot balance date 41,400 - 41,400
Othes carporations 33,276 53,276

Litizxtion

The Company is involved in variovs claims and litigation arising in the crdma:y cours. #:'business none of which is expected to have
a sigriticant effect upon its operating results or financial positmn o

20. FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS
Bank Overdrait

: 73.000.600) which is a-part of a group offset
i "e otier balances which are a part of this

The Company has access to bank overdraft facilities to a maximum of $5,000,000 (20 -
fach iy feaving an unused facility of $nil (2000: $nil) at balance date. When aggregat:
faciiizy. the maximum amount has not been excecded.

Bank Loans

The Lompany has access to bank toans of $390,569,000 (1999: $418,282,000). Ath - ¢z date, the unused portion was $nit (1999:
Enils. Cjencrally the bank loans are secured over aircraft and other aviation related ass. - 1o]'the Company.

Otk Luans

The Company has access to other loans of $144,000 (1999: $1,189,080). At balance o.:¢, tihe unused portion was $nit (1999: $nil).
Fhis is secured over certain assets of the Company.

-23- b



ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED L

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

2401 2000
$'000 $000
2i. DIRECTORS REMUN!'RATION 5
.'u’;’f;

Total incon. paid or pa: “hle, or otherwise made available, to the
directors, including excetive directors from the Company or any Lo
related party:

The number of directors of the Company, including executive
directors whese income from the Company or any refated party B R T
falls within the Tollowing bands:

$0 - $9,999 T RIS 2
£100,000 - $109.999 [ 1
$790,000 - $799,999 - .
240,000 - $949.999 [ I

Directors' income inclides amounts paid by the parent entity
during the year to indamnify directors, but does not include
insurance premiums p:id by the parent entity in respect of
Directors' and Officers’ Liabilitics and Legal Expenses insurance
contracts, as the insuran. ¢ policies do not specify premivms paid
in respeet of individusl directors. Details of the insurance
premiume paid are st ou-L in the Directors’ Report.

22, SEGMENT INFORM - TION

The Company operates yredominantiy within the
transport industry in Au- iralasia.

24
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ANSETT AUSTRALIA LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AT 30 JUNE 2001

23. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a}

(b}

Reconciliation of Cash

IFar the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, ca:':

includes cash on hand and at bank, net of outstandin: haok
overdrafts and letters of credit. Cash as at the end of ihe

financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows

is reconciled to the related items in the statement of
financial position as follows:

"Cash

Bank overdraft and letters of credit

Reconciliation of Operating Profit/(Loss) After brame Tax

to Net Cash Provided by Operafing Activities

Operating profit after income tax
Add/{Less) items classified as investing/
financing activities:
{Profit¥Laoss on sale of non cusrent assets
Borrowing costs
[nterest revenue
Add/(Less) non casii items:
Amounts set aside to provisions
Depreciation/amontisation
Unrealised foreign exchange (gains)/losses
Increase/(decrease) in income taxes payable
Capitalised interest
Abnormal itemns:
Profit on sale on non-cutzent assets
Asset write-down

et cash provided by operating activities before
clhiange in assets and liabilities

Change in assets and liabilities:
{IncreaseyDecrease in current assets
[nerease in current liabtlities

Net cash provided by operating activities

-25.

00220

2601 2000
$'000 $'000
{38.85]) (38,851
—{38451) . (38.851)
175,906 182,818
(9,580) (1,520)
63,299 67,405
(842) (366)
(33.570) (15,067)
144,418 153,242
30,920 (43,400)
(62,793) 67,937
3,853 2,794
(40,916) (42,483)

. 2,349

270,695 373,709
{11,327) 15,845
9.624 66,293
—268.0992 455847
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Asset Code
22211596
22211876

22211505
22211875
22211874
22211590
22211594
22211872
22211873

AAL.  ASSET REGTS e CXCE LT

Acq Date
0 BLDGOWO01 | 15.07.1980
0 LANDOWO1 | 15.07.1980

0 BLDGOWOQ1 | 15.07.1980
0 LANDOWO1 | 15.07.1960
0 LANDOWO1 | 15.07.1960
0 BLODGOWO1 | 15.07.1960
0 BLDGOWO1 | 15.07.1960
0 LANDOWO1 | 15.07.1960
0 LANDOWO1 | 15.07.1980

Detail

1080 501 Swanston St, Melbourne, VIC, 3000 Head Office

1980

1860
1960
1960
1960
1960
1960
1960

501 Swanston St, Melbourne, VIC, 3000 Head Office

489 Swanston St, Melbourne, VIC, 3000 IT and State
489 Swanston St, Melbourne, VIC, 3000 IT and State
465 Swanston St, Melbourne, VIC, 3000 Travel Centr
20-24 Franklin St, Melbourne, VIC, 3000 Storage bu
465 Swanston St, Melbourne, VIC, 3000 Travel Centr
20-24 Franklin St, Melbourne, VIC, 3000 Storage bu
26-32 Franklin St, Melbourne, VIC, 3000 Carpark




00230

Cost Acc Dep'n wDv
14,375,281.10 331,737.26 14,043,543.84 |
3,360,000.00 0.00 3,360,000.00 |
3,879,930.01  89,536.85 3,790,393.16 |
1,613,409.00 0.00 1,613,409.00 |
1,248,347.00 0.00 1,248,347.00 |

636,208.55 14,683.81 621,614.74 |
592,384.56  13,670.41 578,714.15 |
484,313.73 0.00 484,313.73 |
465,686.27 0.00 465,686.27 |
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